
 

NOTICE: Persons with disabilities needing accommodations for effective participation in this meeting should 
contact the City Clerk at (248) 524-3316 or via e-mail at clerk@troymi.gov at least two working days in 
advance of the meeting. An attempt will be made to make reasonable accommodations. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 

Regular Meeting of the 
 
 

CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF TROY 

 
JANUARY 25, 2010 

CONVENING AT 7:30 P.M. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Submitted By 
      The City Manager 

mailto:clerk@troymi.gov�


 

 

 
 
 
TO:   The Honorable Mayor and City Council 
   Troy, Michigan 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Background Information and Reports 
 
Ladies and Gentlemen: 
 
This booklet provides a summary of the many reports, communications and 
recommendations that accompany your Agenda.  Also included are 
suggested or requested resolutions and/or ordinances for your 
consideration and possible amendment and adoption. 
 
Supporting materials transmitted with this Agenda have been prepared by 
department directors and staff members.  I am indebted to them for their 
efforts to provide insight and professional advice for your consideration. 
 
As always, we are happy to provide such added information as your 
deliberations may require. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
 
 
 
  

 



 

 

 
MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC AND VISITORS 

(City Council Rules of Procedure – Rule 16) 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with 
recognition of the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or 
comment. City Council requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring 
it to the attention of the appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel 
that the matter has not been resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it 
to the attention of the City Manager, and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the 
Mayor and Council 
. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be 

extended with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak 

for up to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent 
Agenda items or any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act 
during the Public Comment portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are 
related to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public 
Comment may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up 
to speak either on a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of 
the agenda. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 

 

      

  

 
CITY COUNCIL 

AGENDA 
January 25, 2010 – 7:30 PM 

Council Chambers  
City Hall - 500 West Big Beaver 

Troy, Michigan 48084 
(248) 524-3317 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Bob Cholette – Troy Assembly of God 1 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 1 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 1 

B. ROLL CALL: 1 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION: 1 

C-1 Presentations: 1 

(a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program 
(November/December), Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will 
present a check in the amount of $1,130.05 to Honor Flight Michigan Inc. .......... 1 

D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 1 

D-1 No Carryover Items 1 

E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 1 

E-1 No Public Hearings 1 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 2 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 2 

G-1 No Postponed Items 2 



 

 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 2 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees: 2 

(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled ............................................................. 2 
(b) City Council Appointments: Building Code Board of Appeals............................... 3 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees: 3 

(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled ............................................................... 3 
(b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals and Building Code Board 

of Appeals ............................................................................................................ 3 

H-3 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 4 

H-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, South Side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and John 
R Road, Section 11 – R-1C 15 

H-5 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 
11 – R-1C 15 

H-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Adams Road Site 
Condominium, East Side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 16 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 16 

I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 16 

I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council 16 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 17 

I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: 17 

(a) School Board Recognition Month – January 2010 ............................................. 17 

I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: 17 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidders 
– Custodial Supplies ........................................................................................... 17 

b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 
Services – Fire Stations and Training Center ..................................................... 18 



 

 

c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – MITN 
Cooperative Gasoline and Diesel Fuel ............................................................... 18 

I-5 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – John R Road Improvement Project, 
Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel 43 – Sidwell 
#88-20-02-279-002 – Munchiando 18 

I-6 William and Elaine Middlekauff v. City of Troy 19 

I-7 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 
County 19 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 19 

J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 19 

J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 
some future point in time): None Submitted 19 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS: 19 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 19 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 19 

L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 19 

M. REPORTS 20 

M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 20 

(a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – October 1, 2009 ....................... 20 
(b) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust/Final – October 14, 2009 ............. 20 
(c) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 2, 2009 .............................. 20 
(d) Planning Commission/Draft – December 8, 2009 .............................................. 20 
(e) Planning Commission/Final – December 8, 2009 .............................................. 20 
(f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 9, 2009 .. 20 
(g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 15, 2009...................... 20 
(h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 15, 2009 ...................... 20 
(i) Election Commission/Final – December 17, 2009 .............................................. 20 
(j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 6, 2010 .................................. 20 
(k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 7, 2010 ....................... 20 
(l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 11, 2010 ........................................ 20 



 

 

(m) Election Commission/Draft – January 14, 2010 ............................................. 20 

M-2 Department Reports: 20 

(a) Building Department – Permits Issued December 2009 ..................................... 20 
(b) Building Department – Permits Issued July 2009 through December 2009 ....... 20 
(c) Building Department – Permits Issued January 2009 through December 2009 . 20 
(d) Police Department – Liquor License Compliance Checks .................................. 20 
(e) City Manager’s Office – December 31, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report ........... 20 
(f) City Attorney’s Office – 2009 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report .......................... 20 
(g) Police Department – 1st Quarterly Review of Performance and Compliance of 

Towing Contract – A & M Towing ....................................................................... 20 

M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 20 

(a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Phil and Myra Jones Regarding the 
Courtesy and Thoughtfulness of Officers Linton and Stansbury ........................ 20 

(b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Troy Sports Center President Dennis 
Bostick Regarding the Hard Work and Dedication of Officers Morgan and 
Malik ................................................................................................................... 20 

(c) Letter of Thanks to Rick Shepler from George Renaud Regarding 
Professionalism and Assistance of Andy Willetts and Troy Water Department . 20 

(d) Letter of Thanks to Troy Fire Department from the Sakalian Family .................. 20 
(e) Letter of Appreciation from Dominick Tringali Architects Regarding the 

Professionalism of Building, Planning and Fire Departments ............................. 20 
(f) Letter of Thanks to Community Center Counselors Kelly Molinar, Lauren 

Johnson and Preston Alman from Winter Break Aqua Camp Attendees ........... 20 

M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: 20 

(a) Village of Beverly Hills Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325 ....................... 20 
(b) Royal Oak City Commission Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325 ............. 20 

M-5  Communication from Acting Planning Director Brent Savidant Regarding 
Troy/Birmingham Transit Center Project Update 20 

M-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding The Michigan 
Medical Marihuana Act:  A Municipal Lawyer’s Perspective Article Authored by 
Assistant City Attorney Christopher Forsyth 21 

M-7  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Molnar v. City of Troy et. al. 21 

M-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Papadelis v. City of Troy 
(Telly’s Nursery) 21 



 

 

N. STUDY ITEMS 21 

N-1  City Manager John Szerlag Requests an Update on Organizational Restructuring 
from Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle-Wortman Associates 21 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 21 

O-1 Closed Session 21 

P. ADJOURNMENT 21 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 22 

Monday, February 1, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................... 22 
Wednesday, February 10, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 22 
Monday, February 15, 2010 Regular City Council ................................................. 22 
Wednesday, February 17, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) Regular City Council . 22 
Monday, March 1, 2010 Regular City Council ....................................................... 22 
Monday, March 15, 2010 Regular City Council ..................................................... 22 
Monday, April 5, 2010 Regular City Council .......................................................... 22 
Monday, April 19, 2010 Regular City Council ........................................................ 22 
Monday, April 26, 2010 Special Study Session – Budget ...................................... 22 
Monday, May 3, 2010 Special Study Session – Budget ........................................ 22 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

INVOCATION:  Pastor Bob Cholette – Troy Assembly of God 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

A. CALL TO ORDER: 

B. ROLL CALL: 
(a)  Mayor Louise E. Schilling 

Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 
 

(b) Absent Council Members: 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by  
Seconded by   
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of _______________  
at the Regular City Council Meeting of Monday, January 25, 2010 and the Closed Session of 
Monday, January 25, 2010 due to____________. 
 
Yes:    
No:    

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

C-1 Presentations: 
(a) On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program 

(November/December), Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in 
the amount of $1,130.05 to Honor Flight Michigan Inc. 

  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

 
F. PUBLIC COMMENT:                                                                                    

In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
Any person not a member of the City Council may address the Council with recognition of 
the Chair, after clearly stating the nature of his/her inquiry or comment. City Council 
requests that if you do have a question or concern, to bring it to the attention of the 
appropriate department(s) whenever possible. If you feel that the matter has not been 
resolved satisfactorily, you are encouraged to bring it to the attention of the City Manager, 
and if still not resolved satisfactorily, to the Mayor and Council. 
• Petitioners shall be given a fifteen (15) minute presentation time that may be extended 

with the majority consent of City Council. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five (5) minutes to address any Public Hearing item. 
• Any member of the public, not a petitioner of an item, shall be allowed to speak for up 

to five minutes to address Postponed, Regular Business or Consent Agenda items or 
any other item as permitted under the Open Meetings Act during the Public Comment 
portion of the agenda. 

• City Council may waive the requirements of this section by a majority of the City 
Council members. 

• City Council may wish to schedule a Special Meeting for Agenda items that are related 
to topics where there is significant public input anticipated. 

• Through a request of the Chair and a majority vote of City Council, public Comment 
may be limited when there are fifteen (15) or more people signed up to speak either on 
a Public Hearing item or for the Public Comment period of the agenda. 

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The appointment of new members to all of the listed Board and Committee vacancies will 
require only one motion and vote by City Council. Council members submit nominations for 
appointment at the meeting prior to consideration. Whenever the number of submitted names 
exceeds the number of vacancies, a separate motion and roll call vote will be required to 
confirm the nominee receiving the greatest number of votes in the Council polling process 
(current process of appointing). Remaining vacancies will automatically be carried over to the 
next Regular City Council Meeting Agenda for consideration.  
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

(b) City Council Appointments: Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following person to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term: 3 residents with background, training or 
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience.*   
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 
Theodore Dziurman *Civil Engineer/Resident Term Expires 01/01/2015 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
The following Boards and Committees have expiring terms and/or vacancies. Bold black lines 
indicate the number of appointments required: 
 
The nomination of applicants to the following listed Board and Committee vacancies will be 
moved forward to the next Regular City Council Meeting for consideration of appointment. 
 
(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals and Building Code Board of 

Appeals 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Board of Zoning Appeals 
Appointed by Council  (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
Donald L. Edmunds              Planning Commission Rep.* Term Expires 01/31/2011 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

 
Philip Sanzica         Planning Commission Alternate Rep.* Term Expires 01/31/2011 
*Planning Commission’s recommendation. 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term for 3 Residents: with background, training or 
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience.*   
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 

*Resident Term Expires 01/01/2015 
 

*Resident Term Expires 01/01/2015 
 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-3 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279, Public Acts of Michigan, 1909, as amended 
(“Act 279”) and the City Charter of the City of Troy (the “City”), and as a result of the affirmative 
vote of the City’s electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 1999, the City issued its 
General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Streets, Roads and Streetscape 
Improvements) (the “2001 Street Improvement Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of 
$6,850,000 for the purpose of defraying the cost of the acquisition, construction and 
reconstruction of various street, roadway and streetscape improvements in the City and related 
site furnishings and improvements and all costs related thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, The 2001 Street Improvement Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate 
principal amount of $5,000,000, mature in various principal amounts on October 1 in the years 
2010 through 2020 and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 4.000% to 4.700%; 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279 and the City Charter of the City, and as a 
result of the affirmative vote of the City’s electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 
1999, the City issued its General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Public Safety 
Facilities) (the “2001 Public Safety Bonds”) in the aggregate principal amount of $1,170,000 for 
the purpose of defraying the cost of the acquisition, construction and equipping of new public 
safety facilities for police and fire department services and the sites therefore and all costs 
related thereto; and 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

WHEREAS, The 2001 Public Safety Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate principal 
amount of $920,000, mature in various principal amounts on October 1 in the years 2010 
through 2020 and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 4.125% to 4.750%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Pursuant to the provisions of Act 279 and the City Charter of the City, and as a 
result of the affirmative vote of the City’s electors at the general election in the City on April 5, 
1999, the City issued its General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Community 
Center and Recreational Facilities) (the “2001 Community Center Bonds” and with the 2001 
Street Improvement Bonds and the 2001 Public Safety Bonds, collectively, the “2001 Bonds”) 
in the aggregate principal amount of $9,470,000 for the purpose of defraying the cost of the 
renovation and improvement of the City’s Community Center Building, the site therefore and 
any furnishings and facilities related thereto and the acquisition and improvement of additional 
park lands and open space for recreational facilities and all costs related thereto; and 
 
WHEREAS, The 2001 Community Center Bonds remain outstanding in the aggregate principal 
amount of $6,620,000, mature in various principal amounts on October 1 in the years 2010 
through 2020 and bear interest at rates per annum which vary from 4.000% to 4.625%; and 
 
WHEREAS, Part VI of Act 34, Public Acts of Michigan, 2001, as amended (“Act 34”) authorizes 
the City to refund all or any part of its outstanding securities; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City has received a proposal from Fifth Third Securities, Inc. (the 
“Underwriter”) to refund all or part of the outstanding 2001 Bonds; and 
 
WHEREAS, The City Manager has recommended that this resolution be adopted in order to 
effect the refunding of all or part of the outstanding 2001 Bonds and this Council has 
determined that it is in the best interest of the City that such refunding be undertaken. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED: 
 
1. AUTHORIZATION OF BONDS -- PURPOSE.   
 
Bonds of the City, aggregating the principal sum of not to exceed Twelve Million Eight Hundred 
Fifty Thousand Dollars ($12,850,000) (the “Refunding Bonds”), shall be issued and sold 
pursuant to the provisions of Act 34, and other applicable statutory provisions, for the purpose 
of refunding all or part of the 2001 Bonds (the “2001 Bonds To Be Refunded”).  The City 
Manager shall determine which of the 2001 Bonds shall be refunded and the principal amount 
of the Refunding Bonds at the time of sale. 
 
2. BOND DETAILS.   
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be designated “General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds, 
Series 2010;” shall be dated as of such date as shall be approved by the City Manager at the 
time of sale; shall be numbered from 1 upwards; shall be fully registered; shall be in the 
denomination of $5,000 each or any integral multiple thereof not exceeding the aggregate 
principal amount for each maturity at the option of the purchaser thereof; shall bear interest at a 
rate or rates not exceeding 6% per annum to be determined by the City Manager at the time of 
sale payable on such dates as shall be determined by the City Manager at the time of sale; and 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

shall mature in such principal amounts and on such dates and in such years as shall be 
determined by the City Manager at the time of sale. 
 
3. PAYMENT OF PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST.   
 
The principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be payable in lawful money of the 
United States.  Principal shall be payable upon presentation and surrender of the Refunding 
Bonds to the bond registrar and paying agent as they severally mature.  Interest shall be paid 
to the registered owner of each Refunding Bond as shown on the registration books at the 
close of business on the fifteenth day of the calendar month preceding the month in which the 
interest payment is due.  Interest shall be paid when due by check or draft drawn upon and 
mailed by the bond registrar and paying agent to the registered owner at the registered 
address. 
 
4. PRIOR REDEMPTION.   
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be subject to redemption prior to maturity if so determined by the 
City Manager at the time of sale and if so determined, upon such terms and conditions as shall 
be approved by the City Manager. 
 
5. BOOK-ENTRY SYSTEM.   
 
Initially, one fully-registered bond for each maturity of the Refunding Bonds, in the aggregate 
amount of such maturity, shall be issued in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of The 
Depository Trust Company (“DTC”) for the benefit of other parties (the “Participants”) in the 
book-entry-only transfer system of DTC.  In the event the City determines that it is in the best 
interest of the City not to continue the book-entry system of transfer or that the interests of the 
holders of the Refunding Bonds might be adversely affected if the book-entry system of 
transfer is continued, the City may notify DTC and the bond registrar and paying agent, 
whereupon DTC will notify the Participants of the availability through DTC of bond certificates.  
In such event, the bond registrar and paying agent shall deliver, transfer and exchange bond 
certificates as requested by DTC and any Participant or “beneficial owner” in appropriate 
amounts in accordance with this resolution.  DTC may determine to discontinue providing its 
services with respect to the Refunding Bonds at any time by giving notice to the City and the 
bond registrar and paying agent and discharging its responsibilities with respect thereto under 
applicable law or the City may determine that DTC is incapable of discharging its duties and 
may so advise DTC.  In either such event, the City shall use reasonable efforts to locate 
another securities depository.  Under such circumstances (if there is no successor securities 
depository), the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall be obligated to deliver bond 
certificates in accordance with the procedures established by this resolution.  In the event bond 
certificates are issued, the provisions of this resolution shall apply to, among other things, the 
transfer and exchange of such certificates and the method of payment of principal of and 
interest on such certificates.  Whenever DTC requests the City and the bond registrar and 
paying agent to do so, the City and the bond registrar and paying agent shall cooperate with 
DTC in taking appropriate action after reasonable notice to make available one or more 
separate certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds to any Participant having Refunding 
Bonds certificated to its DTC account or to arrange for another securities depository to maintain 
custody of certificates evidencing the Refunding Bonds. 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

Notwithstanding any other provision of this resolution to the contrary, so long as any bond is 
registered in the name of Cede & Co., as nominee of DTC, all payments with respect to the 
principal of, interest on and redemption premium, if any, on the Refunding Bonds and all 
notices with respect to the Refunding Bonds shall be made and given, respectively, to DTC as 
provided in the Blanket Issuer Letter of Representations previously entered into by the City and 
DTC, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into any additional documents with DTC on 
behalf of the City as deemed to be appropriate in order to accomplish the issuance of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with law and this resolution. 
 
6. BOND REGISTRAR AND PAYING AGENT.   
 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. is hereby appointed as bond registrar and 
paying agent for the Refunding Bonds, and the City Manager is authorized to enter into an 
agreement with the bond registrar and paying agent.  The City Manager from time to time may 
designate, and may enter into an agreement with, a successor bond registrar and paying agent, 
which shall be a bank or trust company located in the State of Michigan which is qualified to act 
in such capacity under the laws of the United States of America or the State of Michigan. 
 
7. EXECUTION, AUTHENTICATION AND DELIVERY OF BONDS.   
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be executed in the name of the City by the facsimile signatures of 
the Mayor and the City Clerk and authenticated by the manual signature of an authorized 
representative of the bond registrar and paying agent, and the seal of the City (or a facsimile 
thereof) shall be impressed or imprinted on the Refunding Bonds.  After the Refunding Bonds 
have been executed and authenticated for delivery to the Underwriter, they shall be delivered 
by the Treasurer to the Underwriter upon receipt of the purchase price.  Additional Refunding 
Bonds bearing the facsimile signatures of the Mayor and the City Clerk and upon which the 
seal of the City (or a facsimile thereof) is impressed or imprinted may be delivered to the bond 
registrar and paying agent for authentication and delivery in connection with the exchange or 
transfer of the Refunding Bonds.  The bond registrar and paying agent shall indicate on each 
Refunding Bond the date of its authentication. 
 
8. EXCHANGE AND TRANSFER OF BONDS.   
 
Any Refunding Bond, upon surrender thereof to the bond registrar and paying agent with a 
written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent duly executed 
by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney, at the option of the registered owner 
thereof, may be exchanged for Refunding Bonds of any other authorized denominations of the 
same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest as 
the surrendered Refunding Bond. 
 
Each Refunding Bond shall be transferable only upon the books of the City, which shall be kept 
for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon surrender of such Refunding 
Bond together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying 
agent duly executed by the registered owner or his duly authorized attorney. 
 
Upon the exchange or transfer of any Refunding Bond, the bond registrar and paying agent on 
behalf of the City shall cancel the surrendered Refunding Bond and shall authenticate and 
deliver to the transferee a new Refunding Bond or Bonds of any authorized denomination of 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

the same aggregate principal amount and maturity date and bearing the same rate of interest 
as the surrendered Refunding Bond.  If, at the time the bond registrar and paying agent 
authenticates and delivers a new Refunding Bond pursuant to this section, payment of interest 
on the Refunding Bonds is in default, the bond registrar and paying agent shall endorse upon 
the new Refunding Bond the following:  “Payment of interest on this bond is in default.  The last 
date to which interest has been paid is __________.” 
 
The City and the bond registrar and paying agent may deem and treat the person in whose 
name any Refunding Bond shall be registered upon the books of the City as the absolute 
owner of such Refunding Bond, whether such Refunding Bond shall be overdue or not, for the 
purpose of receiving payment of the principal of and interest on such Refunding Bond and for 
all other purposes, and all payments made to any such registered owner, or upon his order, in 
accordance with the provisions of Section 3 of this resolution shall be valid and effectual to 
satisfy and discharge the liability upon such Refunding Bond to the extent of the sum or sums 
so paid, and neither the City nor the bond registrar and paying agent shall be affected by any 
notice to the contrary.  The City agrees to indemnify and save the bond registrar and paying 
agent harmless from and against any and all loss, cost, charge, expense, judgment or liability 
incurred by it, acting in good faith and without negligence hereunder, in so treating such 
registered owner. 
 
For every exchange or transfer of Refunding Bonds, the City or the bond registrar and paying 
agent may make a charge sufficient to reimburse it for any tax, fee or other governmental 
charge required to be paid with respect to such exchange or transfer, which sum or sums shall 
be paid by the person requesting such exchange or transfer as a condition precedent to the 
exercise of the privilege of making such exchange or transfer. 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange Refunding 
Bonds or portions of Refunding Bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
9. FORM OF REFUNDING BONDS.   
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be in substantially the following form: 
 
UNITED STATES OF AMERICA 
STATE OF MICHIGAN 
COUNTY OF OAKLAND 
CITY OF TROY 
GENERAL OBLIGATION UNLIMITED TAX REFUNDING BOND, SERIES 2010 
 

INTEREST RATE 
 

MATURITY DATE 
 

DATE OF ORIGINAL ISSUE 
 

CUSIP 
 

Registered Owner: 
 
Principal Amount:  
 
The City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan (the “City”), acknowledges itself 
indebted to, and for value received hereby promises to pay to, the Registered Owner identified 
above, or registered assigns, the Principal Amount set forth above on the Maturity Date 
specified above, unless redeemed prior thereto as hereinafter provided, upon presentation and 
surrender of this bond at the corporate trust office of The Bank of New York Mellon Trust 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

Company, N.A., the bond registrar and paying agent, located in Detroit, Michigan, or other 
designated office, or at such successor bond registrar and paying agent as may be designated 
pursuant to the Resolution, and to pay to the Registered Owner, as shown on the registration 
books at the close of business on the 15th day of the calendar month preceding the month in 
which an interest payment is due, by check or draft drawn upon and mailed by the bond 
registrar and paying agent by first class mail postage prepaid to the Registered Owner at the 
registered address, interest on such Principal Amount from the Date of Original Issue set forth 
above, or such later date through which interest has been paid, until the City’s obligation with 
respect to the payment of such Principal Amount is discharged, at the rate per annum specified 
above.  Interest is payable on the first days of _________ and _________ in each year, 
commencing on ___________ 1, 20__.  Principal and interest are payable in lawful money of 
the United States of America. 
 
This bond is one of a series of bonds aggregating the principal sum of 
_______________________________________ Dollars ($__________) issued by the City 
under and pursuant to and in full conformity with the Constitution and Statutes of Michigan 
(especially Act No. 34, Public Acts of 2001, as amended) and a resolution adopted by the City 
Council of the City and an order adopted by the City Manager of the City (said resolution and 
order herein collectively referred to as the “Resolution”) for the purpose of refunding the City’s 
outstanding General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Streets, Roads and 
Streetscape Improvements), General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Public 
Safety Facilities) and General Obligation Unlimited Tax Bonds, Series 2001 (Community Center 
and Recreational Facilities) maturing in the years 20__ through 20__.  The full faith and credit 
of the City are hereby pledged for the prompt payment of the principal of and interest on this 
bond.  The City is authorized and required to levy annually ad valorem taxes, without limitation 
as to rate or amount, to pay such principal and interest as the same shall become due. 
 
This bond is transferable, as provided in the Resolution, only upon the books of the City kept 
for that purpose by the bond registrar and paying agent, upon the surrender of this bond 
together with a written instrument of transfer satisfactory to the bond registrar and paying agent 
duly executed by the registered owner or his attorney duly authorized in writing.  Upon the 
exchange or transfer of this bond a new bond or bonds of any authorized denomination, in the 
same aggregate principal amount and of the same interest rate and maturity, shall be 
authenticated and delivered to the transferee in exchange therefore as provided in the 
Resolution, and upon payment of the charges, if any, therein provided.  Bonds so authenticated 
and delivered shall be in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof not 
exceeding the aggregate principal amount for each maturity. 
 
The bond registrar and paying agent shall not be required to transfer or exchange bonds or 
portions of bonds which have been selected for redemption. 
 
Bonds maturing prior to ______________, ______, are not subject to redemption prior to 
maturity.  Bonds maturing on and after __________________, __________, are subject to 
redemption prior to maturity at the option of the City, in such order as shall be determined by 
the City, on any one or more dates on and after _____________, __________.  Bonds of a 
denomination greater than $5,000 may be partially redeemed in the amount of $5,000 or any 
integral multiple thereof.  If less than all of the bonds maturing in any year are to be redeemed, 
the bonds or portions of bonds to be redeemed shall be selected by lot.  The redemption price 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

shall be the par value of the bond or portion of the bond called to be redeemed plus interest to 
the date fixed for redemption [and a premium as follows: 
 
__% of the par value if called for redemption on or after __________, ____, but prior to 
__________, ____; 
 
No premium if called for redemption on or after __________]. 
 
Not less than thirty nor more than sixty days’ notice of redemption shall be given to the 
registered owners of bonds called to be redeemed by mail to each registered owner at the 
registered address.  Bonds or portions of bonds called for redemption shall not bear interest on 
and after the date fixed for redemption, provided funds are on hand with the bond registrar and 
paying agent to redeem the same. 
 
It is hereby certified, recited and declared that all acts, conditions and things required to exist, 
happen and be performed precedent to and in the issuance of the bonds of this series, existed, 
have happened and have been performed in due time, form and manner as required by law, 
and that the total indebtedness of the City, including the series of bonds of which this bond is 
one, does not exceed any constitutional, statutory or charter limitation. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the City of Troy, County of Oakland, State of Michigan, by its City 
Council, has caused this bond to be executed in its name by facsimile signatures of the Mayor 
and City Clerk and its corporate seal (or a facsimile thereof) to be impressed or imprinted 
hereon.  This bond shall not be valid unless the Certificate of Authentication has been manually 
executed by an authorized representative of the bond registrar and paying agent.  
 
CITY OF TROY 
 
By: _______________________________   
  Tonni L. Bartholomew, City Clerk    
 
By: _________________________________ 
 Louise E. Schilling, Mayor  
 
 (SEAL) 
 
CERTIFICATE OF AUTHENTICATION 
 
This bond is one of the bonds described in the within mentioned Resolution. 
 
 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A. 
Bond Registrar and Paying Agent 
 
By:  __________________________ 
  Authorized Representative 
 
AUTHENTICATION DATE: 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

ASSIGNMENT 
 
For value received, the undersigned hereby sells, assigns and transfers unto 
__________________________________________________ (please print or type name, 
address and taxpayer identification number of transferee) the within bond and all rights there 
under and does hereby irrevocably constitute and appoint 
_______________________________________________ attorney to transfer the within bond 
on the books kept for registration thereof, with full power of substitution in the premises. 
 
Dated: _______________   
 
Signature Guaranteed: _______________________________ 
 
Signature(s) must be guaranteed by an eligible guarantor institution participating in a Securities 
Transfer Association recognized signature guarantee program. 
 
END OF BOND FORM 
 
10. SECURITY.   
 
The full faith and credit of the City are hereby pledged to the payment of the principal of and 
interest on the Refunding Bonds.  There shall be levied upon all taxable property in the City 
upon the tax roll of the year 2010 and upon the tax roll of each year thereafter while any of the 
Refunding Bonds shall be outstanding, an amount such that the estimated collections there 
from will be sufficient to pay promptly at maturity the principal and interest maturing on the 
Refunding Bonds prior to the time of the following year’s tax collections.  Taxes required to be 
levied to pay principal of and interest on the Refunding Bonds shall be levied without limitation 
as to rate or amount. 
 
11. DEFEASANCE.   
 
In the event cash or direct obligations of the United States or obligations the principal of and 
interest on which are guaranteed by the United States, or a combination thereof, the principal 
of and interest on which, without reinvestment, come due at times and in amounts sufficient to 
pay, at maturity or irrevocable call for earlier optional redemption, the principal of, premium, if 
any, and interest on the Refunding Bonds, shall have been deposited in trust, this resolution 
shall be defeased and the owners of the Refunding Bonds shall have no further rights under 
this resolution except to receive payment of the principal of, premium, if any, and interest on 
the Refunding Bonds from the cash or securities deposited in trust and the interest and gains 
thereon and to transfer and exchange bonds as provided herein. 
 
12. PRINCIPAL AND INTEREST FUND.   
 
There shall be established for the Refunding Bonds a Principal and Interest Fund.  From the 
proceeds of the sale of the Refunding Bonds there shall be set aside in the Principal and 
Interest Fund any accrued interest received from the Underwriter at the time of delivery of the 
same.  The proceeds of the taxes (both current and delinquent) to be used to pay the principal 
and interest on the Refunding Bonds when due shall be deposited as collected in the Principal 
and Interest Fund and so long as the principal or interest on the Refunding Bonds remain 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

unpaid, no moneys shall be withdrawn from such fund except to pay such principal and interest 
or to pay from any investment earnings on such fund the fees and expenses of the bond 
registrar and paying agent. 
 
13. PAYMENT OF ISSUANCE EXPENSES -- ESCROW FUND. 
 
 The remainder of the proceeds of the Refunding Bonds shall be used, together with available 
moneys of the City, if any, to pay the issuance expenses of the Refunding Bonds and to 
establish an escrow fund for the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded.  After the issuance expenses 
have been paid or provided for the remaining proceeds and City moneys, if any, shall be used 
to establish an escrow fund (the “Escrow Fund”) consisting of cash and investments in direct 
obligations of, or obligations the principal of and interest on which are unconditionally 
guaranteed by, the United States of America or other obligations the principal of and interest on 
which are fully secured by the foregoing and used to pay the principal of, interest on and 
redemption premiums on the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded.  The Escrow Fund shall be held by 
The Bank of New York Mellon Trust Company, N.A., hereby appointed as escrow agent (the 
“Escrow Agent”), in trust pursuant to an escrow agreement (the “Escrow Agreement”) which 
irrevocably shall direct the Escrow Agent to take all necessary steps to pay the principal of and 
interest on the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded when due prior to redemption and to call the 2001 
Bonds To Be Refunded for redemption at such time as shall be determined in the Escrow 
Agreement.  The City Manager shall approve the Escrow Agreement at the time of sale of the 
Refunding Bonds and shall be authorized to execute and deliver the Escrow Agreement for and 
on behalf of the City.  The amounts held in the Escrow Fund shall be such that the cash and 
the investments and the income received thereon will be sufficient without reinvestment to pay 
the principal of, interest on and redemption premiums on the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded 
when due at maturity or call for redemption as required by the Escrow Agreement. 
 
14. APPROVAL OF DEPARTMENT OF TREASURY.   
 
The issuance and sale of the Refunding Bonds shall be subject to permission being granted 
therefore by the Department of Treasury of the State of Michigan as provided in Act 34.  If 
necessary, the City Manager is authorized to file an application with the Department of 
Treasury for approval of the Refunding Bonds. 
 
15. SALE, ISSUANCE, DELIVERY, TRANSFER AND EXCHANGE OF REFUNDING 

BONDS.   
 
The Refunding Bonds shall be sold pursuant to a negotiated sale to the Underwriter as 
hereinafter provided, and it is hereby determined that such negotiated sale is in the best 
interests of the City and is calculated to provide the maximum flexibility in pricing the Refunding 
Bonds.  The City Manager is authorized to enter into a Bond Purchase Agreement with the 
Underwriter, which Bond Purchase Agreement shall set forth the 2001 Bonds To Be Refunded 
and the principal amount, principal maturities and dates, interest rates and interest payment 
dates, redemption provisions, if any, purchase price to be paid by the Underwriter with respect 
to the Refunding Bonds and such other terms and provisions as the City Manager determines 
to be necessary or appropriate in connection with the sale of the Refunding Bonds.  The Bond 
Purchase Agreement and the terms of the Refunding Bonds set forth therein shall be approved 
by an order adopted by the City Manager at the time of the sale of the Refunding Bonds.  The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager and the Treasurer are each hereby authorized to do all 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 13 - 

things necessary to effectuate the sale, issuance, delivery, transfer and exchange of the 
Refunding Bonds in accordance with the provisions of this resolution.  In making the 
determination in the order authorizing the sale of the Refunding Bonds and in the Bond 
Purchase Agreement with respect to principal maturities and dates, interest rates, purchase 
price of the Refunding Bonds and compensation to be paid to the Underwriter, the City 
Manager shall be limited as follows: 
(a) The interest rate on any Refunding Bond shall not exceed 6% per annum. 
(b) The final maturity date of the Refunding Bonds shall not be later than October 1, 2020. 
(c) The present value of the savings (net of issuance costs) to be realized by the issuance of 

the Refunding Bonds shall be equal to or greater than 3% of the principal amount of the 
2001 Bonds To Be Refunded. 

(d) The purchase price of the Refunding Bonds shall not be less than 98% of the principal 
amount thereof. 

(e) The Underwriter’s discount with respect to the Refunding Bonds or the compensation to 
be paid to the Underwriter shall not exceed 1% of the principal amount of the Refunding 
Bonds. 

 
16. REPLACEMENT OF BONDS.   
 
Upon receipt by the City Clerk of proof of ownership of an unmatured Refunding Bond, of 
satisfactory evidence that the bond has been lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken and 
of security or indemnity which complies with applicable law and is satisfactory to the City Clerk, 
the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and paying agent to deliver a new executed 
Refunding Bond to replace the Refunding Bond lost, apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken 
in compliance with applicable law.  In the event an outstanding matured Refunding Bond is lost, 
apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken, the City Clerk may authorize the bond registrar and 
paying agent to pay the Refunding Bond without presentation upon the receipt of the same 
documentation required for the delivery of a replacement Refunding Bond.  The bond registrar 
and paying agent, for each new Refunding Bond delivered or paid without presentation as 
provided above, shall require the payment of expenses, including counsel fees, which may be 
incurred by the bond registrar and paying agent and the City in the premises.  Any Refunding 
Bond delivered pursuant to the provisions of this Section 16 in lieu of any Refunding Bond lost, 
apparently destroyed or wrongfully taken shall be of the same form and tenor and be secured 
in the same manner as the Refunding Bond in substitution for which such Refunding Bond was 
delivered. 
 
17. TAX COVENANT.   
 
The City covenants to comply with all applicable requirements of the Internal Revenue Code of 
1986, as amended (the “Code”), necessary to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds 
will be and will remain excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes.  The 
Mayor, the Clerk, the City Manager, the Treasurer and other appropriate City officials are 
authorized to do all things necessary (including the making of such covenants of the City as 
shall be appropriate) to assure that the interest on the Refunding Bonds will be and will remain 
excludable from gross income for federal income tax purposes. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 14 - 

18. QUALIFIED TAX EXEMPT OBLIGATIONS. 
 
The Refunding Bonds are hereby designated as “qualified tax exempt obligations” as described 
in Section 265(b)(3)(B) of the Code. 
 
19. OFFICIAL STATEMENT.  
 
The City Manager is authorized to cause the preparation of an official statement for the 
Refunding Bonds for the purpose of enabling compliance with Rule 15c2-12 issued under the 
Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Rule”) and to do all other things necessary 
to enable compliance with the Rule.  After the award of the Refunding Bonds, the City will 
provide copies of a “final official statement” (as defined in paragraph (e)(3) of the Rule) on a 
timely basis and in reasonable quantity as requested by the Underwriter to enable the 
Underwriter to comply with paragraph (b)(4) of the Rule and the rules of the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board. 
 
20. CONTINUING DISCLOSURE.   
 
The Mayor and the City Clerk are hereby authorized to execute a certificate of the City to 
comply with the continuing disclosure undertaking of the City with respect to the Refunding 
Bonds pursuant to paragraph (b)(5) of the Rule, and amendments to such certificate from time 
to time in accordance with the terms of such certificate (the certificate and any amendments 
thereto are collectively referred to herein as the “Continuing Disclosure Certificate”).  The City 
hereby covenants and agrees that it will comply with and carry out all of the provisions of the 
Continuing Disclosure Certificate. 
 
21. PROFESSIONAL SERVICES.   
 
The following are appointed to act in the following capacities with respect to the Refunding 
Bonds: 
As financial consultant:  Bendzinski & Co., Municipal Finance Advisors 
     Detroit, Michigan 
As Underwriter:   Fifth Third Securities, Inc. 
     Cincinnati, Ohio 
 
As bond counsel: Dickinson Wright PLLC 
   Bloomfield Hills, Michigan 
 
22. CONFLICTING RESOLUTIONS.  All resolutions and parts of resolutions insofar as they 
may be in conflict herewith are hereby rescinded. 
 
BE IT FINALLY RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES this resolution 
AUTHORIZING the issuance of not to exceed $12,850,000 general obligation unlimited tax 
refunding bonds, Series 2010. 
 
Yes: 
No: 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 15 - 

 
H-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest Site 

Condominium, South Side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and John 
R Road, Section 11 – R-1C 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site Condominium 
Plan (Extension), as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted 
One Family Residential Development) for the development known as Oak Forest Site 
Condominium, located on the south side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and 
John R. Road in Section 11, including 76 units on 39.23 acres within the R-1C zoning district, 
with the following conditions:  
 

A. All areas noted as mitigation areas on the attached plan shall be included as 
MDEQ regulated conservation easements, and shall be reflected on the final 
site condominium plan; and  

B. A public meeting will be held with Engineering and surrounding residents to 
review the final engineering plans before final site condominium plan is 
submitted to City Council; and  

C. MDEQ approval will be obtained with all necessary assessment and permit 
documents prior to the final site condominium plan submitted to City Council; 
and  

D. The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner shall approve the site 
condominium plan prior to the final site condominium plan submittal to City 
Council.  

 
Yes: 
No: 
 
H-5 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest South Site 

Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 
– R-1C 

 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site Condominium 
Plan (Extension), as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted 
One Family Residential Development) for the development known as Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of Square Lake Road, in 
Section 11, including 25 units on 10.03 acres within the R-1C zoning district, with the following 
conditions:  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 16 - 

A. A public meeting will be held with Engineering and surrounding residents to 
review the final engineering plans before final site condominium plan is submitted 
to City Council; and  

B. MDEQ approval will be obtained with all necessary assessment and permit 
documents prior to the final site condominium plan is submitted to City Council; 
and  

C. The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner shall approve the site 
condominium plan prior to the final site condominium plan submittal to City 
Council. 

 
Yes:   
No:   
 
H-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Adams Road Site 

Condominium, East Side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site Condominium 
Plan (Extension), as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance (Unplatted 
One-Family Residential Development) for the development of a One-Family Residential Site 
Condominium, One-Family Cluster Option, known as Adams Road Site Condominium, located 
on the east side of Adams, south of South Boulevard, in Section 6, including 5 home sites, 
within the R-1A zoning district, being 4.98 acres in size. 
 
Yes: 
No: 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
RESOLVED, That all items as presented on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as 
presented with the exception of Item(s) _____________, which SHALL BE CONSIDERED 
after Consent Agenda (I) items, as printed. 
 
Yes: 
No: 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 17 - 

I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01-  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of January 4, 2010 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the following City of Troy 
Proclamation: 
 
(a) School Board Recognition Month – January 2010  
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:   
 
a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidders – 

Custodial Supplies          
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS contracts to provide one (1) year 
requirements of custodial supplies for the City of Troy with an option to renew for one (1) 
additional year to the lowest bidders meeting specifications as follows: 
 

BIDDERS        ITEMS 
SupplyDen of Rochester Hills    1 
 
Kellermeyer Company of Bowling Green Ohio   2, 9 
 
HP Products Corporation of Belleville    3, 6, 7 
 
Hercules & Hercules Inc of Detroit    4, 5 
 
Nichols of Muskegon      8 

 
at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened November 23, 2009, a copy of which shall 
be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting, with contracts expiring November 30, 
2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the awards are CONTINGENT upon contractors’ 
submission of properly executed bid and contract documents including insurance certificates 
and all other specified requirements. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 18 - 

 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 

Services – Fire Stations and Training Center          
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to provide seasonal 
requirements of snow removal services for the City’s Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training 
Center with an option to renew for two (2) additional seasons to the low bidder, Advanced 
Landscape & Builders Supply Co of Clawson, at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened December 21, 2009, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting, with a contract expiration of April 15, 2010; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements. 
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – MITN Cooperative 

Gasoline and Diesel Fuel          
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
 
WHEREAS, On January 28, 2008, two (2) year contracts with an option to renew for two (2) 
additional years to provide gasoline and diesel fuel were awarded to the low bidders meeting 
specifications, Mansfield Oil Company of Gainesville, GA and RKA Petroleum Companies of 
Romulus, MI (Resolution #2008-01-023-F-4c); and  
 
WHEREAS, Both awarded bidders have agreed to exercise the two-year option to renew and 
the City of Sterling Heights has approved the contracts under the same pricing structure, terms, 
and conditions for participating members of the MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade 
Network) Cooperative; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXERCISES the option to 
renew the contracts with Mansfield Oil Company and RKA Petroleum Companies to provide 
gasoline and diesel fuel under the same pricing structure, terms and conditions for two years 
expiring January 31, 2012. 
 
I-5 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – John R Road Improvement Project, 

Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel 43 – Sidwell #88-
20-02-279-002 – Munchiando  

  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES, as required by Michigan Laws and 
Federal Regulations, the relocation claim from James W. Munchiando and Elizabeth S. 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 19 - 

Munchiando pertaining to the City of Troy’s acquisition of their property at 6675 John R, having 
Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002, and hereby AUTHORIZES payment in the amount of $6,938.40. 
 
I-6 William and Elaine Middlekauff v. City of Troy  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES and DIRECTS the City Attorney to 
represent the City of Troy in any and all claims and damages in the matter of William 
Middlekauff and Elaine Middlekauff  v. City of Troy (52-4th District Court Case No. 2010-
C00011-GC; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney 
to pay necessary costs and expenses and to retain any necessary expert witnesses to 
adequately represent the City.  
 
I-7 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County  
  
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby GRANTS approval to pay the renewal of the City of 
Troy’s membership in the Traffic Improvement Association for the year 2010, in the amount of 
$24,400.00, and the fee is to be divided equally between the Traffic Engineering and Police 
departments, and funds are available in the 2009-2010 Traffic Engineering budget, account 
number 443 7958 and the 2009-2010 Police budget, account number 318 7802 070. 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 
 
K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  

Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 

L. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1   No Council Comments Advanced 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 20 - 

M. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – October 1, 2009 
(b) Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust/Final – October 14, 2009  
(c) Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 2, 2009 
(d) Planning Commission/Draft – December 8, 2009  
(e) Planning Commission/Final – December 8, 2009  
(f) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 9, 2009  
(g) Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 15, 2009  
(h) Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 15, 2009  
(i) Election Commission/Final – December 17, 2009  
(j) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 6, 2010 
(k) Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 7, 2010  
(l) Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 11, 2010 
(m) Election Commission/Draft – January 14, 2010 

M-2 Department Reports: 
(a) Building Department – Permits Issued December 2009  
(b) Building Department – Permits Issued July 2009 through December 2009 
(c) Building Department – Permits Issued January 2009 through December 2009    
(d) Police Department – Liquor License Compliance Checks  
(e) City Manager’s Office – December 31, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report  
(f) City Attorney’s Office – 2009 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report  
(g) Police Department – 1st Quarterly Review of Performance and Compliance of Towing 

Contract – A & M Towing   
 
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: 
(a) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Phil and Myra Jones Regarding the Courtesy and 

Thoughtfulness of Officers Linton and Stansbury  
(b) Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Troy Sports Center President Dennis Bostick 

Regarding the Hard Work and Dedication of Officers Morgan and Malik 
(c) Letter of Thanks to Rick Shepler from George Renaud Regarding Professionalism and 

Assistance of Andy Willetts and Troy Water Department   
(d) Letter of Thanks to Troy Fire Department from the Sakalian Family  
(e) Letter of Appreciation from Dominick Tringali Architects Regarding the Professionalism 

of Building, Planning and Fire Departments  
(f) Letter of Thanks to Community Center Counselors Kelly Molinar, Lauren Johnson and 

Preston Alman from Winter Break Aqua Camp Attendees 
 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:  
(a) Village of Beverly Hills Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325  
(b) Royal Oak City Commission Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325 
 
M-5  Communication from Acting Planning Director Brent Savidant Regarding 

Troy/Birmingham Transit Center Project Update 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 21 - 

M-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding The Michigan 
Medical Marihuana Act:  A Municipal Lawyer’s Perspective Article Authored by 
Assistant City Attorney Christopher Forsyth 

 
M-7  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Molnar v. City of Troy et. al. 
 
M-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Papadelis v. City of Troy 

(Telly’s Nursery) 

N. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1  City Manager John Szerlag Requests an Update on Organizational Restructuring 

from Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle-Wortman Associates 

O. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session  
 
Suggested Resolution 
Resolution #2010-01- 
Moved by 
Seconded by 
 
BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council SHALL MEET in Closed Session, as permitted by 
MCL 15.268(c) Strategy for Labor Negotiations and MCL15.268 (e) Pending Litigation – Troy v 
MNAD Property LLC; Troy v Rochester Road Associates; Troy v Picano Land Limited 
Partnership (Vacant Land); Troy v Picano Land Limited Partnership; Troy v Atto Construction 
Company; and Troy v Diajeff, LLC.  
 
Yes: 
No: 

P. ADJOURNMENT 

Respectfully submitted, 

 
John Szerlag, City Manager 
 



CITY COUNCIL AGENDA January 25, 2010 
 

- 22 - 

SCHEDULED CITY COUNCIL MEETINGS: 
Monday, February 1, 2010 ........................................................ Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 10, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 
Monday, February 15, 2010 ...................................................... Regular City Council 
Wednesday, February 17, 2010 (Liquor Violation Hearing) ...... Regular City Council 
Monday, March 1, 2010 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, March 15, 2010 ........................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 5, 2010 ............................................................... Regular City Council 
Monday, April 19, 2010 ............................................................. Regular City Council 
Monday, April 26, 2010 ........................................... Special Study Session – Budget 
Monday, May 3, 2010 .............................................. Special Study Session – Budget 

 



 

 
 
January 18, 2010 
 
 
TO:    The Honorable Mayor and City Council Members 
 
FROM:  John Szerlag, City Manager  
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance & Administration 
 
SUBJECT:  General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 
 
 
 
After reviewing the City’s outstanding bonds with our financial advisor, we have determined that it 
would be in the best interest of the City to refinance the callable maturities of the 2001 Public Safety 
Bonds and the 2001 Community Center Bonds. The bonds to be refunded bear interest at rates in the 
4.00% to 4.75% range. 
 
The process entails purchasing governmental securities tied to the maturity dates of the bonds.                         
The securities and interest earnings will then be used to pay the principal and interest on the 
refunded bonds.  
 
It is estimated that the net present value benefit of this transaction to the City will be approximately 
$503,000.00 (about $50,000 per year) in saved interest cost, after paying the cost of completing this 
transaction. 
 
City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm has reviewed the resolution authorizing the issuance of general 
obligation unlimited refunding bonds prepared by bond counsel Dickinson Wright, PLLC.  
 
It is recommended that City Council approve the attached resolution, prepared by bond counsel and 
reviewed by our city attorney to authorize the issuance of general obligation unlimited tax refunding 
bonds.  
 
Reviewed as to form and legality: 
 
         
Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
JML/mr\AGENDA ITEMS\2010\01.25.10- General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds 

AAGGEENNDDAA  IITTEEMM  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-03





1 
 

 
 
DATE: January 12, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest Site Condominium, South 

side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and John R Road, Section 11 – R-1C  
 
City Council approved the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan for Oak Forest Site Condominium 
on January 26, 2009.  The applicant seeks a one-year extension for Preliminary Site Condominium 
Approval.  During this time, the applicant may submit a Final Site Condominium Plan to City 
Council for Final Site Condominium Approval. 
 
The applicant is proposing a 76-unit site condominium on a 39.23 acre parcel.  Access is provided 
to both Square Lake Road and John R Road.  Two stub streets to the north on the east side of the 
Fetterly Drain and one stub street to the south on the west side of the Fetterly Drain are also 
proposed.  The development will utilize the Lot Averaging Option (Section 34.10.00) which 
provides for up to a 10 percent reduction in lot areas and widths.   
 
The applicant eliminated the walkway between Units 31 and 32, and added a ten-foot wide 
maintenance easement between units 70 and 71.  Both items were conditions of approval by City 
Council on January 25, 2009.  No other revisions are proposed. 
 
The application meets all relevant regulations, including complying with Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.  City Management recommends approval of Preliminary Site Condominium Plan for 
Oak Forest South Site Condominium. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared for Planning Commission dated December 3, 2008. 
3. Minutes from the January 26, 2009 City Council Regular meeting. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Oak Forest Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest Site Condo Sec 11\CC Approval Oak Forest Site Condo 01 25 10.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-04



Oak Forest Site Condominium

1/14/2010

Legend

1: 4,750

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3960792 792Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



Oak Forest Site Condominium

1/14/2010

Legend

1: 4,750

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3960792 792Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



1 
 

DATE: December 3, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – Oak Forest Site 

Condominium, south side of Square Lake Road, between Willow 
Grove and John R Road, section 11 – R-1C 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the south side of Square Lake Road, between Willow 
Grove and John R Road, in section 11. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 39.23 acres in area.  It has access to both Square 
Lake Road and John R Road. 
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing a 76-unit site condominium, with access to both 
Square Lake Road and John R Road.  Two stub streets to the north on the east 
side of the Fetterly Drain and one stub street to the south on the west side of the 
Fetterly Drain are also proposed.   
 
This project received Preliminary Approval from City Council on April 18, 2005, 
and was granted a one-year extension on June 5, 2006.  Preliminary Approval 
expired on April 18, 2007. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
Two single-family homes presently sit on the property. 
  
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential and vacant. 
South: Single family residential and vacant. 
East: Single family residential and vacant. 
West: Single family residential and vacant. 
  



2 
 

Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: R-1C One Family Residential. 
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Master Plan Designation: 
The property is designated on the Master Plan as Single Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family Residential 
District: 
 
Lot Area: Minimum lot area in the R-1C district is 10,500 square feet.  However, 
the applicant is utilizing the Lot Averaging Option, which permits a 10 percent 
reduction in lot area to 9,450 square feet.   
 
Lot Width:  The minimum required lot width is 85 feet.  The applicant has utilized 
the lot averaging option, which permits a 10 percent reduction in lot widths, to 
76.5 feet.  
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  30 feet. 
  Side (least one):  10 feet. 
  Side (total two):  20 feet.  
  Rear:  40 feet. 
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,200 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 
  



3 
 

Storm water detention: 
The applicant is proposing two storm water detention basins.  One will serve the 
38 units on the east side of the drain, one will serve the 38 units on the west side 
of the drain. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and a drain 
on the property.  The MDEQ has a draft wetland permit for the site but it has not 
been finalized.  The applicant is required to receive a permit from the MDEQ prior 
to commencing any construction activity such as dredging, filling, or draining 
within a regulated wetland.   
 
The MDEQ typically requires conservation easements over mitigated wetlands 
that are approved under the MDEQ wetland permit.  These areas are owned and 
maintained by the property owner but enforced by the MDEQ, under the 
parameters set up by the MDEQ conservation easement.  All mitigation areas to 
be regulated by MDEQ conservation easements need to be clearly indicated as 
such prior to being reviewed by City Council.   
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Streets: The proposed development has direct vehicular access to both 
John R and Square Lake Roads.  The paved portion of all proposed 
streets will be 28 feet wide, located within a 60-foot wide public right-of-
way. 
 
The applicant has provided two future connections to the north and one to 
the south.   

 
Sidewalks: The applicant is proposing sidewalks on both sides of the 
proposed streets.  In addition, a 12-foot wide pedestrian connection is 
provided to the south, between units 31 and 32. 

 
Utilities: The parcel is served by public water and sewer. 

 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
The applicant provides a 12-foot wide pedestrian connection with the Holm Street 
right of way to the south, between units 31 and 32.  At the request of the 
Planning Department, the applicant provided an alternate layout showing a 
vehicular connection in place of the pedestrian connection.  Interconnecting 
neighborhoods using paths or streets is generally considered a sound planning 



4 
 

principal.  In this instance, the Holm Street right of way (platted in 1928) is 
unimproved and there are no plans to construct Holm between Abbotsford and 
the northern property line.  The right of way essentially serves as the backyard 
for two homes in an established residential neighborhood.  If a path or street is 
extended to the southern property line, it is unclear if and when it will ever be 
connected to the right of way to the south.  It seems wasteful to have the 
applicant construct a path or street that ends at the property line.  The applicant 
proposes five points of ingress/egress for this development, with sidewalks on 
both sides of all interior streets.  For these reasons, City Management would 
support the elimination of a pathway or street at this location.  
 
City Management recommends approval of the Oak Forest Site Condominium 
application, subject to the following: 

 
1. All mitigation areas to be regulated by an MDEQ conservation easement 

need to be clearly indicated as such on all plans prior to being reviewed by 
City Council.   

 
Furthermore, City Management requests that the Planning Commission make a 
determination on whether to have a pathway connection, a vehicular connection 
or neither, between units 31 and 32 to the Holm Street right of way to the south. 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Oak Forest Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest Site Condo Sec 11\Oak Forest Site Condo Report 12 09 08.docx  
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  January 26, 2009 
 
 
E-9 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest Site Condominium, 

South Side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and John R Road, 
Section 11 – R-1C  

 
Resolution 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One Family Residential Development) for the development known as Oak 
Forest Site Condominium, located on the south side of Square Lake Road, between 
Willow Grove and John R. Road in Section 11, including 76 units on 39.23 acres within 
the R-1C zoning district, with the following conditions: 
 

A.  All areas noted as mitigation areas on the attached plan shall be 
included as MDEQ regulated conservation easements, and shall be 
reflected on the final site condominium plan; and  

B. If feasible in the sole determination of the City Engineer, there shall 
be an easement granted to the City that shall provide access to City 
land, and that land that shall be located between Units 70 and 71; 
and  

C. The walkway between Units 31 and 32 on the attached preliminary 
site condominium plan is eliminated; and  

D. A public meeting will be held with Engineering and surrounding 
residents to review the final engineering plans before final site 
condominium plan is submitted to City Council; and 

E. MDEQ approval will be obtained with all necessary assessment and 
permit documents prior to the final site condominium plan submitted 
to City Council; and  

F. The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner shall approve 
the site condominium plan prior to the final site condominium plan 
submittal to City Council.  

 
Vote on Resolution to Amend Resolution to Approve the Preliminary Site Plan for 
Oak Forest Site Plan Condominium 
 
Resolution #2009-01-011 
Moved by Eisenbacher 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLUTION, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the resolution to Approve 
Preliminary Site Plan for Oak Forest Site Plan Condominiums by ADDING “proposed” 
before “Units” in Item B and C, and by STRIKING “walkway” and INSERTING ”concrete 
sidewalk” in Item C. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  January 26, 2009 
 
 
Yes: All-7 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution as Amended 
 
Resolution #2009-01-012 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One Family Residential Development) for the development known as Oak 
Forest Site Condominium, located on the south side of Square Lake Road, between 
Willow Grove and John R. Road in Section 11, including 76 units on 39.23 acres within 
the R-1C zoning district, with the following conditions:  

A.  All areas noted as mitigation areas on the attached plan shall be 
included as MDEQ regulated conservation easements, and shall be 
reflected on the final site condominium plan; and  

B. If feasible in the sole determination of the City Engineer, there shall 
be an easement granted to the City that shall provide access to City 
land, and that land that shall be located between proposed Units 70 
and 71; and  

C. The concrete sidewalk between proposed Units 31 and 32 on the 
attached preliminary site condominium plan is eliminated; and  

D. A public meeting will be held with Engineering and surrounding 
residents to review the final engineering plans before final site 
condominium plan is submitted to City Council; and  

E. MDEQ approval will be obtained with all necessary assessment and 
permit documents prior to the final site condominium plan submitted 
to City Council; and  

F. The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner shall approve 
the site condominium plan prior to the final site condominium plan 
submittal to City Council.  

 
Yes: All-7 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 



 

 

 
 
DATE: January 12, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest South Site 

Condominium, East side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C  
 
 
City Council approved the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan for Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium on January 26, 2009.  No changes to the development are proposed.  The applicant 
seeks a one-year extension for Preliminary Site Condominium Approval.  During this time, the 
applicant may submit a Final Site Condominium Plan to City Council for Final Site Condominium 
Approval. 
 
The applicant is proposing a 25-unit site condominium on a 10.03-acre parcel.  The development 
will utilize the Lot Averaging Option (Section 34.10.00) which provides for up to a 10 percent 
reduction in lot areas and widths.   
 
The application meets all relevant regulations, including complying with Zoning Ordinance 
requirements.  City Management recommends approval of Preliminary Site Condominium Plan for 
Oak Forest South Site Condominium. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps.  
2. Report prepared for Planning Commission dated December 3, 2008. 
3. Minutes from the January 26, 2009 City Council Regular meeting. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Oak Forest South Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest South Site Condominium Sec 11\CC Approval Oak Forest South Site Condo 01 25 10.docx 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-05



Oak Forest South

1/12/2010

Legend

1: 3,218

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2680536 536Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



Oak Forest South

1/12/2010

Legend

1: 3,218

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

2680536 536Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

I-75
Road Centerline

Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:    Band_1
Green: Band_2
Blue:   Band_3



DATE: December 3, 2008 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Planning Director 
 R. Brent Savidant, Principal Planner 
 Ronald Figlan, Planner 
 Paula Preston Bratto, Planner 
 
SUBJECT: PRELIMINARY SITE CONDOMINIUM REVIEW – Oak Forest 

South Site Condominium, east side of Willow Grove, south of 
Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C. 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Dale Garrett of Ladd’s Inc. 
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of Square Lake 
Road, in Section 11. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 10.03 acres in area. 
 
Description of proposed development: 
The applicant is proposing a 25-unit site condominium.  The applicant proposes a 
layout with a future road stubbing at the northern property line.   
 
This project received Preliminary Approval from City Council on April 18, 2005, 
and was granted a one-year extension on June 5, 2006.  Preliminary Approval 
expired on April 18, 2007.  Note that the original application included only 23 
units. 
 
Current use of subject property: 
The property is presently vacant. 
  
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Single family residential. 
South: Jaycee Park (City of Troy). 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential. 



Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: R-1C One Family Residential. 
South: E-P Environmental Protection.  
East: R-1C One Family Residential. 
West: R-1C One Family Residential. 
 
Master Plan Designation: 
The property is designated on the Master Plan as Single Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family Residential 
District: 
 
Lot Area: Minimum lot area in the R-1C district is 10,500 square feet.  However, 
the applicant is utilizing the Lot Averaging Option, which permits a 10 percent 
reduction in lot area to 9,450 square feet with lot sizes averaging 10,500 square 
feet.   
 
Lot Width:  The minimum required lot width is 85 feet.  The applicant has utilized 
the lot averaging option, which permits a 10 percent reduction in lot widths, to 
76.5 feet.  
 
Height:  2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  30 feet. 
  Side (least one):  10 feet. 
  Side (total two):  20 feet.  
  Rear:  40 feet. 
 
Minimum Floor Area:  1,200 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1C One Family 
Residential District. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Environmental provisions, including Tree Preservation Plan: 
A Tree Preservation Plan was submitted as part of the application. 



Storm water detention: 
The applicant is proposing two storm water detention basins.  One will serve the 
11 units on the east side of the drain, one will serve the 14 units on the west side 
of the drain. 
 
Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands, woodlands and a drain 
on the property.  The applicant is required to receive a permit from the MDEQ 
prior to commencing any construction activity such as dredging, filling, or draining 
within a regulated wetland.   
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Blocks: The applicant proposes an approximately 1,100-foot road that 
ends in a cul-de-sac.  A stub road is proposed to the north east of unit 20.   
 
Lots: All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the 
Zoning Ordinance. 
 
Streets: The paved portion of the street will be 28 feet wide, located within 
a 60-foot wide public right-of-way. 

 
Sidewalks: The applicant is proposing a 5-foot wide sidewalk on both 
sides of the proposed interior roads and a 5-foot wide sidewalk on the east 
side of Willow Grove Road.  There is an opportunity for a pedestrian 
connection between the development and Jaycee Park to the south, 
through the conservation easement located between units 13 and 14. 

 
Utilities: Detention ponds are proposed on each side of the Fetterly Drain. 

 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends approval of the Oak Forest South Site 
Condominium, subject to the following condition: 
 

1. Provide a public pathway connection between the Brookwood Street 
sidewalk and Jaycee Park, through the conservation easement located 
between units 13 and 14.   

 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/Oak Forest South Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Oak Forest South Site Condominium Sec 11\Oak Forest South Site 
Condo Report 12 09 08.docx 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final   January 26, 2009 
 
 
E-10 Preliminary Site Condominium Review – Oak Forest South Site 

Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, 
Section 11 – R-1C 

 
Resolution #2009-01-013 
Moved by Eisenbacher  
Seconded by Fleming  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Preliminary Site 
Condominium Plan, as submitted under Section 34.30.00 of the Zoning Ordinance 
(Unplatted One Family Residential Development) for the development known as Oak 
Forest South Site Condominium, located on the east side of Willow Grove, south of 
Square Lake Road, in Section 11, including 25 units on 10.03 acres within the R-1C 
zoning district, with the following conditions:  
 

A.  A public meeting will be held with Engineering and surrounding 
residents to review the final engineering plans before final site 
condominium plan is submitted to City Council; and  

B. MDEQ approval will be obtained with all necessary assessment and 
permit documents prior to the final site condominium plan is 
submitted to City Council; and  

C. The Oakland County Water Resources Commissioner shall approve 
the site condominium plan prior to the final site condominium plan 
submittal to City Council. 

 
Yes:  Howrylak, Kerwin, Broomfield, Eisenbacher, Fleming  
No: Schilling, Beltramini  



 

 

 
 
DATE: January 11, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: Preliminary Site Condominium Review (Extension) – Adams Road Site Condominium, 

East side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A  
 
 
The applicant received Preliminary Site Condominium Approval on January 26, 2009.  The applicant 
seeks an extension of Preliminary Site Plan Approval from City Council.  The Planning Commission 
recommended approval of the Adams Road Preliminary Site Condominium Plan at the October 13, 
2009 Regular meeting.   
 
The applicant is proposing a 5-unit site condominium on a 4.98-acre parcel.  The development will 
utilize the One-Family Cluster Option (Section 34.70.00) which provides for reduced lot sizes and 
setbacks.  The applicant is required to provide at least 30% open space; at least 25% of the open 
space shall be non-regulated wetlands.  The applicant prepared a parallel plan that indicates that five 
units can be developed on the property using conventional R-1A area and bulk requirements. 
 
An extension of Preliminary Site Condominium Approval is valid for a period of one (1) year, during 
which time the applicant may submit an application for Final Site Condominium Approval, which is 
granted by City Council. 
 
 
Attachments: 
1. Maps. 
2. Report prepared for the October 13, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
3. Minutes from the October 13, 2009 Planning Commission Regular meeting. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Adams Road Site Condominium 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Adams Road Site Condo Sec 6\Renewal 09 16 09\CC Approval Adams Road Site Condo 01 25 10.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
H-06



Adams Road Site Condominium - Section 6

10/8/2009

Legend

1: 3,995

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3330666 666Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline
Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



Adams Road Site Condominium - Section 6

10/8/2009

Legend

1: 3,995

City of Troy Planning Department

Printed:

3330666 666Feet

Note: The information provided by this application has been compiled from recorded deeds, plats, tax maps, surveys, and other public records and data. It 
is not a legally recorded map survey. Users of this data are hereby notified that the source information represented should be consulted for verification.

Scale

Road Centerline
Major Road
Industrial Road
Local Road

Zoning
(PUD) Planned Unit Development
(B-1) Local Business District
(B-2) Community Business District
(B-3) General Business District
(R-C) Research Center District
(C-F) Community Facilities District
(C-J) Consent Judgment
(E-P) Environmental Protection District
(R-EC) Residential Elder Care
(P-1) Vehicular Parking District
(H-S) Highway Service District
(M-1) Light Industrial District
(O-1) Office Building District
(O-M) Office Mid-Rise District
(OSC) Office Service Commercial District
(CR-1) One Family Residential Cluster District
(R-1A) One Family Residential District
(R-1B) One Family Residential District
(R-1C) One Family Residential District
(R-1D) One Family Residential District
(R-1E) One Family Residential District
(R-1T) One Family Attached Residential District
(R-2) Two Family Residential District
(R-M) Multiple Family Residential Medium Density
(RM-1) Multiple Family Residential District (Low Rise)
(RM-2) Multiple Family Residential District (Mid Rise)
(RM-3) Multiple Family Residential District (High Rise)

Hydrography Poly
Hydrography Arc
Parcels
Aerial Photos - 2008

Red:Band_1
Green:Band_2
Blue:Band_3



PC 2009.10.13 
Agenda Item # 5 

 
 
DATE: October 8, 2009 
 
TO: The Planning Commission 
 
FROM: R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT: SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Adams Road Site 

Condominium (Renewal), 5 units/lots proposed, East side of Adams, South of 
South Boulevard, Section 6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 

 
 
GENERAL INFORMATION 
 
Name of Owner / Applicant: 
The owner and applicant is Choice Development.   
 
Location of subject property: 
The property is located on the east side of Adams Road, south of South Boulevard, in 
section 6. 
 
Size of subject parcel: 
The parcel is approximately 4.98 acres in area.   
 
Description of proposed development: 
The application received Preliminary Site Plan Approval by City Council on June 5, 2006; 
however, the approval expired after one year.  The applicant received Preliminary Site 
Condominium Approval again on October 15, 2007; however, approval again expired.  The 
applicant received Preliminary Site Condominium Approval again on January 26, 2009.  
The applicant seeks an extension of Preliminary Site Plan Approval.  The applicant is 
proposing to use the One-Family Cluster Option (Section 34.70.00) to develop a 5-unit site 
condominium.  The number of units was determined through the preparation of a parallel 
plan.   
 
Current use of subject property: 
The property is presently vacant.  
 
Current use of adjacent parcels: 
North: Vacant. 
South: Single family residential. 
East: Single family residential. 
West: Single family residential (Bloomfield Township). 
 
Current zoning classification: 
The property is currently zoned R-1A One Family Residential. 



PC 2009.10.13 
Agenda Item # 5 

Zoning classification of adjacent parcels: 
North: R-1A One Family Residential. 
South: R-1A One Family Residential. 
East: R-1A One Family Residential.  
West: R-2 One Family Residential (Bloomfield Township). 
 
Future Land Use Designation: 
The property is designated on the Master Plan as Single Family Residential. 
 
 
ANALYSIS 
 
Compliance with area and bulk requirements of the R-1A One Family Residential District: 
The applicant is proposing to utilize the One-Family Cluster Option (Section 34.70.00).  The 
parallel plan indicates that five units can be developed on the property using conventional 
R-1A area and bulk requirements. 
 
The applicant is required to provide at least 30% open space; at least 25% of the open 
space shall be non-regulated wetlands.  The applicant meets this requirement. 
 
Lot Area: 21,780 square feet in R-1A; N/A using the One-Family Cluster Option. 
 
Lot Width:  120 feet in R-1A (108 feet using Lot Averaging); N/A using the One-Family 
Cluster Option. 
 
Height:  Maximum permitted height is 2 stories or 25 feet. 
 
Setbacks: Front:  20 feet required.  The development meets this requirement. 

Side:  15 feet between units (50 feet on Adams Road).  The development 
meets this requirement. 
Rear (perimeter):  45 feet.  The development meets this requirement. 
 

Minimum Floor Area:  1,400 square feet. 
 
Maximum Lot Coverage:  30%. 
 
The applicant meets the area and bulk requirements of the R-1A One Family Residential 
District, One-Family Cluster Option. 
 
Off-street parking and loading requirements:  
The applicant will be required to provide 2 off-street parking spaces per unit. 
 
Storm water detention: 
The site plan indicates that underground storm water detention will be utilized.  Note that 
the City will not accept underground detention facilities.  These will have to be owned and 
maintained by the Site Condominium Association. 



PC 2009.10.13 
Agenda Item # 5 

Natural features and floodplains: 
The Natural Features Map indicates there are wetlands located on the property.  A Wetland 
Determination Report was completed for the property on October 11, 2005 by Holloway 
Environmental Planning, Inc.  The report indicates that there are State-regulated wetlands 
on the property.  A permit from the MDEQ will be required prior to disturbing any of the 
wetland areas. 
 
The wetland area will be delineated by a split rail fence.  The applicant will be required to 
prepare a conservation easement ensuring the wetlands will remain undisturbed, prior to 
Final Site Condominium Approval.  
 
The floodplain boundary shown on the site plan has been modified.  The new elevation 
(835 feet) actually increases the buildable area on the site.  The boundary will not affect the 
number of units permitted since this was based on a Parallel Plan.  Additionally, the wetland 
boundaries have not changed.  The floodplain boundary should be corrected prior to Final 
Site Plan Approval.  
 
A maintenance agreement will be required for the landscaped island in the private street 
prior to Final Site Plan Approval. 
 
Subdivision Control Ordinance, Article IV Design Standards  
 

Lots:  All units meet the minimum area and bulk requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, 
One-Family Cluster Option, Section 34.70.00. 
 
Streets:  The proposed development has direct vehicular access to Adams Road.  Sheet 
4 indicates that the private road will be constructed of pervious pavement. 
  
Sidewalks:  An 8-foot wide sidewalk is proposed for the east side of Adams Road.  A 5-
foot wide sidewalk is proposed for both sides of the interior street. 
 
Utilities:  The parcel is served by public water and sewer. 

 
 
CITY MANAGEMENT RECOMMENDATION 
 
City Management recommends approval of the Adams Road Site Condominium 
application, as submitted. 
 
 
 
cc: Applicant 
 File/ Adams Road Site Condominium 
 
 
G:\SUBDIVISIONS & SITE CONDOS\Adams Road Site Condo Sec 6\Renewal 09 16 09\Adams Road Site Condo PC Report 10 13 
09.doc 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL OCTOBER 13, 2009 
  
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 
6. SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN REVIEW – Adams Road Site Condominium 

(Renewal), 5 units/logs proposed, East side of Adams, South of South Blvd., 
Section 6, Zoned R-1A (One Family Residential) District 
 
Mr. Savidant presented a summary of the Planning Department report on the 
renewal of the proposed site condominium site plan review, and reported it is the 
recommendation of City Management to approve the application as submitted.   
 
Dave Donnellon of Design Resources, 755 W. Big Beaver Road, Troy, was 
present to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Donnellon briefly addressed the current 
market for residential, and acknowledged the engineering design items that need 
to be addressed when the project goes forward.  
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-10-085 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that 
the Renewal of the Preliminary Site Condominium Plan (Section 34.70.00 One 
Family Cluster Option), as requested for Adams Road Site Condominium, 
including 5 units, located on the east side of Adams, south of South Boulevard, 
Section 6, within the R-1A zoning district, be granted. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 1 - 

Pastor Bill DesRochers of Calvary Chapel of Oakland County gave the Invocation. The Pledge 
of Allegiance to the Flag was given.  
 
A. CALL TO ORDER: 
A Regular Meeting of the Troy City Council was held Monday, January 4, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. Mayor Schilling called the Meeting to order at 7:30 PM. 

B. ROLL CALL: 
Mayor Louise E. Schilling 
Robin Beltramini 
Mayor Pro Tem Wade Fleming (Absent) 
Martin Howrylak 
Mary Kerwin 
Maureen McGinnis 
Dane Slater 

 
Vote on Resolution to Excuse the Absence of Mayor Pro Tem Fleming 
 
Resolution #2010-01-001 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by  Slater  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby EXCUSES the absence of Mayor Pro Tem Fleming 
at the Regular City Council Meeting and Closed Session of Monday, January 4, 2010 due to 
being absent from the county. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

C. CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:  

C-1 No Presentations 
  
D. CARRYOVER ITEMS: 
D-1 No Carryover Items 
 
E. PUBLIC HEARINGS: 
E-1 No Public Hearings 

F. PUBLIC COMMENT: 
In accordance with the Rules of Procedure of the City Council, Article 16 – 
Members of the Public and Visitors 
 
 

pallottaba
Text Box
I-02



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 2 - 

Dave Henderson Opposes tax increase 
Janice Daniels Opposes tax increase 
Marvin Reinhardt Various topics 
Cathy Fucinari Supports tax increase 
Gerard Staeger Opposes tax increase 
Mary Ann Bernardi Opposes tax increase 
John Witt Questions if Administration has signed agreements from unions 

and questions the timing of ballot proposal informational brochure  
Tony Cruz Opposes using public funds for February election 
Richard Peters Questions who sets city budget; asked for reconsideration of 

marijuana laws 
Charlene Femminineo Opposes tax increase 
Pat Connelly Opposes tax increase 
Sandy Scott Requests waiving water bill payment late fee penalty  

 
The meeting RECESSED at 8:21 PM.  
 
The meeting RECONVENED at 8:28 PM.  

G. POSTPONED ITEMS: 
G-1 No Postponed Items 

H. REGULAR BUSINESS: 
 
Resolution to Refrain From Placing Board and Committee Nominations on City Council 
Agendas 
 
Resolution 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to REFRAIN from 
placing non-statutory or Charter mandated board and committee nominations on City Council 
agendas until City Council has had an opportunity to meet in study session to discuss the 
purpose, function and impact on City staff for all boards and committees. 
 
Vote on Resolution to Revise Procedures for Board and Committee Nominations 
 
Resolution #2010-01-002 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AMENDS the proposed resolution to include, 
“unless the board or committee cannot meet quorum with the current members.” 
 
Yes:  Beltramini, Howrylak, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No:  Kerwin 
Absent: Fleming 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 3 - 

MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Revise Procedures for Board and Committee Nominations as 
Amended 
 
Resolution #2010-01-003 
Moved by Kerwin  
Seconded by Slater 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIRECTS City Administration to REFRAIN from 
placing non-statutory or Charter mandated board and committee nominations on City Council 
agendas until City Council has had an opportunity to meet in study session to discuss the 
purpose, function and impact on City staff for all boards and committees unless the board or 
committee cannot meet quorum with the current members. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Howrylak, McGinnis 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 

H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
(a) Mayoral Appointments: Board of Review 
 
Resolution #2010-01-004 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That the Mayor of the City of Troy hereby APPOINTS the following person to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Board of Review 
Appointed by Mayor (3-Regular) 3-Year Term 
 
James Edward Hatch Term Expires 01/31/2013 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
(b) City Council Appointments: Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities; 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan 
and Trust; Liquor Advisory Committee; and Municipal Building Authority 

 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 4 - 

Resolution 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 3-Year Term: 3-Regular-with disabilities; 3-Regular-general 
populace; 3-Regular-in need of transportation 
(3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
  
Leslie Golden Witt Term Expires 11/01/2012 
 
Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and 
Trust 
Appointed by Council (City Council Appointee) 3-Year Term 
  
Mark Calice-City Council Appointee Term Expires 12/31/2012 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
  
Andrew Kaltsounis Term Expires 01/31/2013 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 3-Year Term 
  
Thomas G. Sawyer, Jr. Term Expires 01/31/2013 
 
Vote on Resolution to Divide the Question for H-1 Appointments to Boards and 
Committees (b) City Council Appointments 
 
Resolution #2010-01-005 
Moved by Schilling 
Seconded by Howrylak 

 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby DIVIDES the vote on the question for H-1 
Appointments to Boards and Committees (b) City Council Appointments. 
 
Yes: All-6 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 5 - 

Vote on Resolution to Amend the Term of Leslie Golden Witt to the Advisory Committee 
for Persons with Disabilities 
 
Resolution #2010-01-006 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council here by AMENDS the term for the appointment of Leslie 
Golden Witt to the Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities from 11/01/2012 to the 
unexpired term of 11/01/2011. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis 
No: Slater, Schilling 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Leslie Golden Witt to Advisory Committee for Persons 
with Disabilities 
 
Resolution #2010-01-007 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Advisory Committee for Persons with Disabilities 
Appointed by Council (9-Regular) 3-Year Term: 3-Regular-with disabilities; 3-Regular-general 
populace; 3-Regular-in need of transportation 
(3-Alternate) 3-Year Term 
  
Leslie Golden Witt Term Expires 11/01/2011 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis 
No: Schilling, Slater 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Mark Calice to Employee Retirement System Board of 
Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust 
 
Resolution #2010-01-008 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 6 - 

Employee Retirement System Board of Trustees/Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and 
Trust 
Appointed by Council (City Council Appointee) 3-Year Term 
  
Mark Calice-City Council Appointee Term Expires 12/31/2012 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Schilling 
No: Slater 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Andrew Kaltsounis to Liquor Advisory Committee 
 
Resolution #2010-01-009 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Liquor Advisory Committee 
Appointed by Council (7-Regular) 3-Year Term 
  
Andrew Kaltsounis Term Expires 01/31/2013 
 
Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: Slater 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Vote on Resolution to Appoint Thomas G. Sawyer, Jr., to Municipal Building Authority 
 
Resolution #2010-01-010 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Howrylak 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPOINTS the following persons to serve on the 
Boards and Committees as indicated: 
 
Municipal Building Authority 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 3-Year Term 
  
Thomas G. Sawyer, Jr. Term Expires 01/31/2013 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 7 - 

Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak 
No: Slater 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 

H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:  
 
(a) Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled 
 
(b) City Council Nominations: Building Code Board of Appeals 
 
Resolution #2010-01-011 
Moved by Howrylak 
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby FORWARDS the following nominated persons to 
serve on the Boards and Committees as indicated to the next Regular City Council Meeting for 
action: 
 
Building Code Board of Appeals 
Appointed by Council (5-Regular) 5-Year Term for 3 Residents: with background, training or 
experience in construction or similar trades; at least one shall be a professional structural or 
civil engineer of architectural engineering experience.*  
2 by Ordinance: City Manager and Oakland County Health Department Representative 
 
Theodore Dziurman *Civil Engineer/Resident Term Expires 01/01/2015 
 
Yes: McGinnis, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin 
No: Slater 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-3 Approval of MDOT Construction Contract for the Reconstruction of Rochester 

Road from Torpey to Barclay and Wattles, East and West of Rochester Road – 
Project No. 99.203.5 and 01.106.5 

 
Resolution #2010-01-012 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by Schilling 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES MDOT Contract No. 09-5747 between 
the City of Troy and the Michigan Department of Transportation for the reconstruction and 
widening of Rochester Road, from Torpey to Barclay and Wattles Road, east and west of 
Rochester Road, at an estimated cost to the City of Troy of $4,216,250.00, and hereby 
AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the documents, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 8 - 

Yes: Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-4 City of Troy v. Susan Sandelman, as Trustee for the Esther Jeffrey Trust 
 
Resolution #2010-01-013 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the proposed Consent Judgment in 
the condemnation case of City of Troy v Susan Sandelman, as Trustee for the Esther Jeffrey 
Trust U/A Dated 12/18/70 (Oakland County Circuit Court Case No. 09-097979-CC), and hereby 
AUTHORIZES payment in the amounts stated therein; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AUTHORIZES the City Attorney’s 
Office to execute the document on behalf of the City of Troy, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-5 Approval of Request from NKG Business, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of Escrowed 

2009 SDD and SDM Licensed Business from Peoples State Bank, Located at 3176 
Rochester – MLCC Request #527498 

 
(a) 
 

Transfer License 

Resolution #2010-01-014 
Moved by Kerwin 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
NKG Business, Inc. to transfer ownership of Escrowed 2009 SDD and SDM Licensed Business 
from Peoples State Bank, located at 3176 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC 
Request #527498} “above all others” CONTINGENT upon passing the Troy Fire Department’s 
Final Inspection; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 9 - 

(b) Agreement 
 
WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with NKG Business, Inc. to transfer ownership of Escrowed 2009 SDD and SDM Licensed 
Business from Peoples State Bank, located at 3176 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland 
County {MLCC Request #527498} CONTINGENT upon passing the Troy Fire Department’s 
Final Inspection, and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City Clerk to execute the document, 
a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting. 
 
Yes: Beltramini, Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
H-6 Approval of Request from Kher Enterprises, Inc. to Transfer Ownership of 2009 

SDD and SDM Licensed Business from Troy Cheese and Wine Market, Located at 
2558-2560 East Maple – MLCC Request #522806 

 
(a) 
 

Transfer License 

Resolution #2010-01-015 
Moved by McGinnis  
Seconded by Beltramini 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby CONSIDERS for APPROVAL the request from 
Kher Enterprises, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2009 SDD and SDM Licensed Business from 
Troy Cheese and Wine Market, located at 2558-2560 East Maple, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland 
County {MLCC Request #522806}. “above all others”; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That it is the consensus of this legislative body that the 
application BE RECOMMENDED “above all others” for issuance. 
 
(b) 
 

Agreement 

WHEREAS, The Troy City Council deems it necessary to enter agreements with applicants for 
liquor licenses for the purpose of providing civil remedies to the City of Troy in the event 
licensees fail to adhere to Troy Codes and Ordinances; 
 
THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES an agreement 
with Kher Enterprises, Inc. to transfer ownership of 2009 SDD and SDM Licensed Business 
from Troy Cheese and Wine Market, located at 2558-2560 East Maple, Troy, MI 48083, 
Oakland County {MLCC Request #522806} and hereby AUTHORIZES the Mayor and City 
Clerk to execute the document, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of 
this meeting. 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 10 - 

Yes: Howrylak, Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini 
No: None 
Absent: Fleming 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

I. CONSENT AGENDA: 
  
I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion 
 
Resolution #2010-01-016 
Moved by Beltramini 
Seconded by McGinnis 
 
RESOLVED, That all items on the Consent Agenda are hereby APPROVED as presented. 
 
Yes: Kerwin, McGinnis, Slater, Schilling, Beltramini, Howrylak  
No: None 
Absent: Fleming  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council  
 
I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes 
 
Resolution #2010-01-016-I2  
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES the Minutes of the 7:30 PM Regular 
City Council Meeting of December 21, 2009 as submitted. 
 
I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations: None Submitted 
 
I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions: None Submitted 

J. MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS: 
J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings: None Submitted 
 
J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at 

some future point in time): None Submitted 

K. COUNCIL REFERRALS:  
Items Advanced to the City Manager by Individual City Council Members for 
Placement on the Agenda 
 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 11 - 

K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced 

COUNCIL COMMENTS 
L-1  
 
Council Member Beltramini responded to some of the Public Comments in reference to 
balancing the budget, progressive communities and tax abatements.  
 
Council Member Beltramini addressed the City facilities funding concerns. 
  
Council Member Beltramini stated that dollar signs are not on tax statements because of the 
computer programming limitations. 
 
Council Member Kerwin responded to Public Comments regarding sustainability. 
 
Council Member Kerwin encouraged residents to pick up this week’s copy of the Troy Somerset 
Gazette as it contains information on the Troy Schools, Police Department, and the Library. 
 
Mayor Schilling addressed the Public Comments in regards to the suggestions and the number 
of budget issues City Council has acted upon, City functions, the future of the City, and the 
proposed millage increase. 
 
Council Member Howrylak commented on City Council responding to Public Comment, and 
addressed City Council Comments made this evening. 
 
Council Member McGinnis responded to City Council Comments made this evening, and 
encouraged the public to continue to offer comments. 
 
Council Member Howrylak responded to Council Member McGinnis. 
 
Council Member Slater thanked the Attorney’s Office and the Police Department for M-5 
Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm and Police Chief Gary Mayer Regarding 
Mark Havas. 
 
Council Member Slater requested that retired Officer Jim Irvin be kept in everyone’s thoughts, 
and to give blood if they are able. 

L. REPORTS  
M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees: 
(a) Brownfield Redevelopment Authority/Final – July 21, 2009 
(b) Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – November 11, 2009 
(c) Youth Council/Final – November 18, 2009  
(d) Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – December 2, 2009  
(e) Library Advisory Board/Draft – December 10, 2009 
(f) Board of Zoning Appeals/Draft – December 15, 2009 
(g) Youth Council/Draft – December 16, 2009 

Noted and Filed 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES-Draft January 4, 2010 
 

- 12 - 

M-2 Department Reports: 
(a) Purchasing Department – Final Reporting – BidNet On-Line Auction Services – 

November 2009  
Noted and Filed 

 
M-3  Letters of Appreciation: None Submitted 
 
M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations: None Submitted 
 
M-5  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm and Police Chief Gary Mayer 

Regarding Mark Havas 
Noted and Filed 

M. STUDY ITEMS 
N-1   No Study Items Submitted 

N. CLOSED SESSION: 
O-1 Closed Session – Consensus of Council that a Closed Session was not needed. 

ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting ADJOURNED at 9:42 PM.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Louise E. Schilling, Mayor 
 
 
 
Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 



PROCLAMATION 
SCHOOL BOARD RECOGNITION MONTH 

JANUARY 2010 
 

WHEREAS, Providing for the education of Michigan’s school-aged children is a fundamental duty of state 
government, as stated in Article VIII, Section 2, of the Michigan Constitution of 1963; and  
 
WHEREAS, The education of our youth is the foundation upon which the economic, social and intellectual 
capital of our state is built; and 
 
WHEREAS, School Board Recognition Month is celebrated in January by 523 local and 57 intermediate 
school districts in Michigan, as 4,200 elected school board members are honored by their schools and 
communities for untiring dedication to school governance; and 
 
WHEREAS, Our locally-elected school boards play an important and vital role in developing policies and 
making tough decisions on complex educational and social issues impacting the entire community; and 
 
WHEREAS, School Board members contribute hundreds of hours each year leading their districts – whether it 
is by deliberating important decisions about curriculum; adopting policies; hiring top-notch personnel and 
administrators; listening to staff, parent, and student concerns; or recognizing outstanding programs – board 
members always keep their eyes on the goal of student achievement; and  
 
WHEREAS, As philosopher John Dewey said, “Education is not preparation for life; education is life itself.” and 
our dedicated Troy School Board members, President Wendy Underwood, Vice President Todd Miletti,  
Secretary Nancy Philippart, and Trustees Ida Edmunds, Paula Fleming, Gary Hauff and Carol 
Pochodylo have invested hundreds of hours on behalf of our children; and 
 
WHEREAS, This year’s theme – School Boards Lead Strong – reflects the efforts of thousands of men and 
women who voluntarily tackle the enormous job of governing school districts and preserving the core of our 
democratic nation; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, that the City Council of the City of Troy does hereby proclaim 
January 2010 to be School Board Recognition Month in the City of Troy and encourages all citizens to 
express sincere appreciation to our dedicated Troy School Board Members for their work on behalf of 
children, youth and families. 
 
Signed this 25th day of January 2010. 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-03a



 

Page 1 of 1 
 

 

 
December 29, 2009 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager   
 

FROM:    John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    Steven A. Pallotta, Building Operations Director 
 

SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 2: Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidders – 
Custodial Supplies  

   
Background 
 On November 23, 2009, formal bids were received to provide one (1) year requirements of custodial supplies 

with an option to renew for one (1) additional year. 
 150 Vendors were notified via the MITN system with twenty-one (21) bid responses received; as well as one 

statement of no bid. 
 Numerous vendor submissions were disqualified by line item due to packaging requirements that did not meet 

size or quantity specifications.  Empire Equipment & Supply could not be considered for individual item awards 
as their bid was based on an all or none award status. 

 Building Operations has limited warehouse space for custodial supplies and orders are placed as needed to 
avoid large upfront costs for stored products.  Just-In-Time delivery allows for inventory reduction with the 
establishment of term contracts with supply chain partners.       

 
Financial Considerations 
 Funds are budgeted in various departmental operating accounts for custodial supplies. 
 
Legal Considerations 
 ITB-COT 09-45, to provide one(1) year requirements of custodial supplies with an option to renew for one (1) 

additional year was competitively bid and publicly opened, in accordance with City Charter and Code.  
 The awards are contingent upon the recommended bidders’ submission of proper contract and bid documents, 

including insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 
 
Recommendation 
 City management and the Building Operations department recommend awarding one (1) year contracts with an 

option to renew for one (1) additional year to the following lowest acceptable bidders: HP Products Corporation 
of Belleville, Nichols of Muskegon, SupplyDen of Rochester Hills, Kellermeyer Company of Bowling Green, Ohio 
and Hercules & Hercules Inc of Detroit, for an estimated total cost of $30,136.55 at unit prices contained on the 
attached bid tabulation to expire November 30, 2010. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04a



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-45

Opening Date -- 11/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 6

Date Reviewed -- 12/22/09 jh/sl CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: HP Products Hercules & SupplyDen Nichols

Corporations Hercules, Inc

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

Alt Bid:      DMS Alt Bid:   $33.70
1. 350 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3.5" Diam. DMS 32.48$           29.98$           31.46$              

Alt Bid:      $18.05
2. 220 Unbleached Roll Towels, 8' x 800' 17.78$                  18.76$           19.94$           18.39$              

Alt Bid:     $14.66
3. 1,000 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 13.39$                  15.25$           14.98$           14.29$              

4. 10 Toilet Seat Covers, 250 Pkg Dim 14 7/8" x 10" DMS 23.00$           31.40$           35.70$              

5. 22 Hand Soap, Pink in Color, 1 Gallon bottles 15.96$                  14.50$           24.60$           24.50$              

6. 34 Mist Air Freshener, Can Dim 5 1/2" w/nozzle 29.77$                  31.25$           40.00$           52.08$              

7. 4 Wax Bags/Sanitary Napkin Disposal 13.13$                  15.00$           14.38$           15.45$              
Alt Bid:     $36.14

8. 25 Wypall Boxed Wipe Towels, 90 per Pkg DMS No bid 47.00$           32.21$              

9. 20 each Roll Towel Dispensers for (8" x 800' rolls) 21.17$                  NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 14,454.70$           549.00$         10,493.00$     805.25$            

DELIVERY: Within 3 to 10 days 1 - 4 Days One Day 2 - 3 Days

Minimum shipment: 200.00$                200.00$         No Minimum 150.00$            
M-F M-F

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8 AM to 5 PM 7:30AM to 5 PM 7:30 AM to 5:30 PM 8 AM to 5 PM

24 Hr Phone # 800-333-7277 313-933-6669 248-755-3324 Blank

Fax# 734-369-5708 313-933-1801 248-299-9410 231-799-3550

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked XX Literature Blank X

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 Net 30 Net 25
WARRANTY: Blank N/A Mfr's Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD - Box     Y or N Not checked Not checked Not checked Not checked
Line 1)-2 ply toilet

EXCEPTIONS: Attached To Bid tissue - only 80 Blank Blank
rolls to case, 550 sheets Item #1 has an
to roll - Alternate: $33.70

Per Case

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes

NO BIDS:
Womens Economic Empowerment Group PROPOSAL:  One (1) Year Requirements of Custodial Suppies with an Option

to Renew for One (1) Additional Year

ATTEST:
Mary Ann Hays HIGHLIGHTED ITEMS DENOTES LOWEST ACCEPTABLE BIDDERS
Diane Fisher

Linda Bockstanz
Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB
Purchasing Director

G:ITB-COT 09-45 Custodial Supplies



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-45
Opening Date -- 11/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 6
Date Reviewed -- 12/22/09 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: Kellermeyer/ Prestige Service Empire Equip Commercial 
Bockstanz/Femco & Supply, Inc & Supply Co Janitorial Supply
K-Express/K-1 Co.

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEMQTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 350 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3.5" Diam. 35.09$             29.99$              DMS DMS

2. 220 Unbleached Roll Towels, 8' x 800' 17.43$             17.74$              19.76$           18.63$             

3. 1,000 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 15.20$             13.78$              15.06$           14.66$             

4. 10 Toilet Seat Covers, 250 Pkg Dim 14 7/8" x 10" 45.38$             DMS 39.21$           44.82$             

5. 22 Hand Soap, Pink in Color, 1 Gallon bottles 17.90$             15.00$              15.50$           15.43$             

6. 34 Mist Air Freshener, Can Dim 5 1/2" w/nozzle 66.60$             33.50$              52.37$           38.30$             

7. 4 Wax Bags/Sanitary Napkin Disposal 18.60$             17.00$              DMS 15.30$             

8. 25 Wypall Boxed Wipe Towels, 90 per Pkg 39.90$             36.00$              37.55$           55.12$             
9. 20 each Roll Towel Dispensers for (8" x 800' rolls) NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: 3,834.60$        N/A N/A N/A

DELIVERY: Within Next Day One Day 2 - 3 Days 2 - 3 Days
Minimum shipment: Blank 100.00$            300.00$         -$                 

M-F M-F
CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8 AM to 5 PM 8:30 AM to 5:30 PM 8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 4:30 PM

24 Hr Phone # 800-445-7415 586-996-6001 248-470-7213 586-778-969024 Hr Phone # 800 445 7415 586 996 6001 248 470 7213 586 778 9690
Fax # 800-722-2752 586-247-1752 313-366-0706 586-759-8506

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Blank * Attach Blank

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Blank 30 Days Net 30 Net 30 
WARRANTY: Blank Yes N/A Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD - Box     Y or N Not checked Not checked Yes Not checked

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes

DMS:
Numerous Items were disqualified due to packaging requirements that did not meet size or quantity specifications.  Empire

Equipment could not be considered for individual awards as their bid was based on an all or none award status.



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-45
Opening Date -- 11/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 6
Date Reviewed -- 12/22/09 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: APAC Paper Supply Pro / Macomb Tryco, Inc.
& Packaging Joshen Paper Wholesale

& Packaging Supply Corp

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 350 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3.5" Diam. 32.79$           30.53$           31.10$              34.05$          

2. 220 Unbleached Roll Towels, 8' x 800' 14.95$           DMS 20.75$              28.10$          

3. 1,000 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 13.45$           15.40$           15.64$              14.40$          

4. 10 Toilet Seat Covers, 250 Pkg Dim 14 7/8" x 10" 62.10$           37.35$           30.35$              28.75$          

5. 22 Hand Soap, Pink in Color, 1 Gallon bottles 20.25$           17.28$           16.56$              17.20$          

6. 34 Mist Air Freshener, Can Dim 5 1/2" w/nozzle 72.50$           64.20$           34.72$              32.70$          

7. 4 Wax Bags/Sanitary Napkin Disposal 20.95$           20.02$           16.87$              29.95$          

8. 25 Wypall Boxed Wipe Towels, 90 per Pkg 43.95$           38.96$           39.97$              37.50$          

9. 20 each Roll Towel Dispensers for (8" x 800' rolls)
*Exception:      
$31.00 each NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE
Item #2 s/b 

$17.77

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A N/A N/A N/A

DELIVERY: Within Next Day 3 Days 3 - 5 Days 2 Days
Minimum shipment: 250.00$         N/A 200.00$            No Minimum

M-F
CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM 8AM to 4:30PM 8 AM to 5 PM

24 Hr Phone # 313-982-6400 810-343-7006 586-255-1791 734-953-6800
Fax # 313-982-9900 810-239-2819 586-415-7404 734-953-6795

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Blank (Bid Spec) INFO Labeled

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days N/30 Net 30 Net 30
WARRANTY: 30 Days Mfr Blank Blank

ALL OR NONE AWARD - Box     Y or N Not checked Not checked Not checked Not checked
Will accept a

EXCEPTIONS: partial award. Towel dispenser Blank Blank
Towel will be provided

Dispenser, at N/C upon

item 9 is $31.00 award of all

ea - Not at N/C paper products.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-45
Opening Date -- 11/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 4 of 6
Date Reviewed --  12/22/09 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: Central Poly Detroit Sun Valley JEM Industries,
Corporation Chemical & Foods Co Inc

Paper Supply Co

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 350 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3.5" Diam. 36.50$          33.63$               43.21$           37.85$             

2. 220 Unbleached Roll Towels, 8' x 800' 22.60$          22.92$               25.00$           21.75$             

3. 1,000 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 17.25$          15.44$               16.07$           15.63$             

4. 10 Toilet Seat Covers, 250 Pkg Dim 14 7/8" x 10" 28.70$          40.00$               No Bid 33.49$             

5. 22 Hand Soap, Pink in Color, 1 Gallon bottles 24.60$          20.72$               No Bid 19.36$             

6. 34 Mist Air Freshener, Can Dim 5 1/2" w/nozzle No Bid 65.91$               No Bid 37.15$             

7. 4 Wax Bags/Sanitary Napkin Disposal 19.99$          17.40$               No Bid 24.63$             

8. 25 Wypall Boxed Wipe Towels, 90 per Pkg No Bid 35.50$               No Bid 37.90$             

9. 20 each Roll Towel Dispensers for (8" x 800' rolls) NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A N/A N/A N/A

5 - 7 Days intial order Initial order 2 wks

DELIVERY: Within 7 - 14 Days 1 - 3 Days thereafter One day 2 - 4 Days
Minimum shipment: 300.00$        150.00$             500.00$         300.00$           

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8 AM to 4 PM 8 AM to 5 PM M-F 7 AM to 3 PM 8 AM to 5 PM
24 Hr Phone # 908-862-7570 586-558-8805 Blank 248-583-1879
Fax # 908-862-9019 586-558-8872 313-865-6364 248-583-1976

No - if needed
DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked will supply See Line Items A Item #DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked will supply See Line Items A Item #

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Net 30 Days Net 30
WARRANTY: Attached To Bid Mfr Terms Blank 15 Days

ALL OR NONE AWARD - Box     Y or N Not checked Not checked Yes Not checked

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-45
Opening Date -- 11/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 5 of 6
Date Reviewed -- 12/22/09 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: Allied Eagle Colman Industrial Applied Industrial
Supply Supply Cleaning Supply Technologies

Company Company Company

EST CASE CASE CASE CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE

1. 350 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3.5" Diam. 36.55$           35.30$          37.95$             55.08$              

2. 220 Unbleached Roll Towels, 8' x 800' 19.09$           18.08$          40.50$             35.43$              

3. 1,000 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 16.88$           18.49$          17.46$             18.40$              

4. 10 Toilet Seat Covers, 250 Pkg Dim 14 7/8" x 10" 36.55$           45.49$          53.20$             50.64$              

5. 22 Hand Soap, Pink in Color, 1 Gallon bottles 22.28$           24.89$          37.80$             21.07$              

6. 34 Mist Air Freshener, Can Dim 5 1/2" w/nozzle 48.53$           39.35$          43.80$             52.10$              

7. 4 Wax Bags/Sanitary Napkin Disposal 17.66$           15.39$          19.00$             18.99$              

8. 25 Wypall Boxed Wipe Towels, 90 per Pkg 45.77$           DMS 61.03$             45.37$              

9. 20 each Roll Towel Dispensers for (8" x 800' rolls) NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE NO CHARGE
ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A N/A N/A N/A

DELIVERY: Within One Day 2 Days 3 Days 3 - 5 Days
Minimum shipment: 100.00$         250.00$        150.00$           One Case

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8 AM to 5 PM 8 AM to 5 PM 8:30 AM to 5 PM 8AM to 5PM M-F
24 Hr Phone # 313-230-0770 313-737-3874 248-674-4104 586-978-7400
Fax # 313-230-0771 586-779-5505 248-674-2254 586-978-7600

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Blank Blank Blank Blank

INSURANCE: Can meet XX XX XX XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Yes Yes Yes Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 1% 10 - Net 30 Net 30
WARRANTY: Per Mfr Blank N/A 1 year

ALL OR NONE AWARD - Box     Y or N Yes Not checked Not checked Not checked

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank Blank Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No Yes Yes Yes Yes



CITY OF TROY            ITB-COT 09-45
Opening Date -- 11/23/09 BID TABULATION Page 6 of 6
Date Reviewed -- 12/22/09 CUSTODIAL SUPPLIES

VENDOR NAME: TVI Supply

EST CASE
ITEM QTY (CS) DESCRIPTION PRICE

1. 350 2 Ply Toilet Tissue, 4.5" W X 3.5" Diam. 95.06$                         

2. 220 Unbleached Roll Towels, 8' x 800' 82.88$                         
3. 1,000 Unbleached Multi-fold Towels, 9.25" x 9.516" 44.05$                         

4. 10 Toilet Seat Covers, 250 Pkg Dim 14 7/8" x 10" 58.31$                         

5. 22 Hand Soap, Pink in Color, 1 Gallon bottles 31.03$                         

6. 34 Mist Air Freshener, Can Dim 5 1/2" w/nozzle 43.10$                         
7. 4 Wax Bags/Sanitary Napkin Disposal 30.07$                         

8. 25 Wypall Boxed Wipe Towels, 90 per Pkg 61.22$                         
9. 20 each Roll Towel Dispensers for (8" x 800' rolls) NO CHARGE

Total incl adjusted # of  
cases for item#2 & item #6 -

see exceptions

ESTIMATED TOTAL AWARDED ITEMS: N/A

DELIVERY: Within 48 Hours
Minimum shipment: 50.00$                         

CONTACT INFO Hrs of Operations 8 AM to 5 PM
24 Hr Phone # 248-212-4658
Fax # 586-283-8188

DESCRIPTIVE LITERATURE: Marked Product Description

INSURANCE: Can meet XX
Cannot meet
Signed   Y or N Yes

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30
WARRANTY: Standard

ALL OR NONE AWARD - Box     Y or N Not checked

EXCEPTIONS: Different case qtys

Item #2: 12 in case - 

Decrsd # of case to 110

Item #6:  9 in case - Add'l

#  of cases reqd - 12

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:   Yes or No Yes



Page 1 of 2 

 

 

 
 
 
January 15, 2010 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
    Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 
    William S. Nelson, Fire Chief 
    Carol K. Anderson, Parks and Recreation Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal 

Services - Fire Stations and Training Center 
 
Background 
 

 On December 21, 2009, bid proposals were opened publicly to provide one season snow removal 
services for Troy’s six (6) Fire Stations and one (1) Police/Fire Training Center, with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional seasons. 

 218 Vendors were notified via MITN, with seven (7) complete bids received, along with two (2) 
bids that did not qualify due the omission of required bid deposit surety, as specified. 

 The low bidder, Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co., 890, N. Rochester Rd., Clawson, MI 
48017 indicates they can complete snow/ice removal at the Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training 
Center for a total of $1410.00 per call out; regardless of whether the request for service is for labor 
intensive parking lot/sidewalk snow plowing or less intense parking lot/sidewalk salting only, 
overtime or regular City business hours. 

 The purpose of contracting this work is to reduce expenses. The following comparisons illustrate 
the costs of the two categories for snow/ice control -  one for treatment of a trace of snow to 2”, 
and the second for snow fall of 2” or greater: 

 

Costs for Treating a Trace to 2” of Snow  
 City Staff -  $1383.10 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 

Contractor -  $1410.00 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 
 

Costs for Treating Above 2” of Snow 
 City Staff -  $3846.41 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 
 Contractor -  $1410.00 per push of all Fire Stations and Training Center 
 

 Use of City staff is more cost effective when there is a light amount of snow needing only salting, 
or minimal plowing. Contractor would be more cost effective when a larger snow removal effort is 
required. 

 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04b



Page 2 of 2 

 

 
January 15, 2010 
 
To:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re:  Bid Award – Snow Removal Services – Fire Stations 
 
Background:  continued 
 Throughout the regular snow season, at least 90% of all call outs for snow/ice control at Fire 

Stations fall within the Trace to 2” category, meaning City staff can, and will continue to treat the 
snow/ice at a lower cost at least 90% of the time. A contractor will only be less expensive on 
approximately 10% of the total call outs when removal of larger amounts of snow is necessary at 
these facilities. It is our intent to use contracted services only when it results in a cost savings to 
the City. 

 

Financial Considerations 
 

 Funds for these snow/ice removal services will be available in the Fire Department and Fire-Police 
Training Center contractual services accounts - #101.336.344.7802.050 and 
#101.264.261.7802.050 respectively. 

 

Legal Considerations 
 

 ITB-COT 09-47, Snow Removal Services for Fire Stations and the Police/Fire Training Center was 
competitively bid as required by City Charter and Code.  

 The award is contingent upon contractor submission of properly executed bid documents including 
insurance certificates and all other specified requirements. 

 

Recommendation 
 

 City management and the Parks and Recreation department recommend awarding a seasonal, as 
needed contract with an option to renew for two (2) additional seasons for snow/ice removal 
services at Troy’s six (6) Fire Stations and one (1) Police/Fire Training Center to the low bidder, 
Advanced Landscape & Builders Supply Co of Clawson at a total per push cost of $1410.00 for all 
sites included in this proposal at unit prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 21, 
2009.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-47
Opening Date -- 12/21/09 BID TABULATION Page 1 of 3
Date Reviewed -- 1/11/2010 SNOW REMOVAL - FIRE STATIONS

jh/sl
VENDOR NAME: Advanced Landscape McClelland MVP 

& Builders Supply Co Landscape, Inc Environmental, LLC
Check # 000124218 9100602986 100983307
Check Amount $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

All inclusive per call-out All inclusive per call-out All inclusive per call-out

ITEM LOCATIONS PER PUSH PER PUSH PER PUSH

1 Fire Station #1 - 1019 East Big Beaver 205.00$                     238.00$                 295.00$                 

2 Fire Station #2 - 5600 Livernois 190.00$                     216.00$                 260.00$                 

3 Fire Station #3 - 2400 West Big Beaver 235.00$                     298.00$                 490.00$                 

4 Fire Station #4 - 2103 East Maple Road 170.00$                     222.00$                 400.00$                 

5 Fire Station #5 - 6399 John R Road 205.00$                     279.00$                 290.00$                 

6 Fire Station #6 - 5901 Coolidge 170.00$                     184.00$                 500.00$                 

7 Police / Fire Training Center - 4850 John R Road 235.00$                     333.00$                 570.00$                 

GRAND TOTALS  (Items 1-7) 1,410.00$                  1,770.00$              2,805.00$              

Daytime Phone Number 248-565-8371 248-563-5035 248-330-1602
Contact: Russ Maloney Denny McClelland Pat Marchionda

24 Hour Phone Number 248-379-6565 248-563-5035 248-330-1602
Contact: Russ Maloney Denny McClelland Pat Marchionda

Pager Number None 248-563-5035 Blank
Contact: Blank Denny McClelland Blank

VISITED THE SITES Y or N Yes Yes Yes
DATE: 12/18/2009 12/8/2009 12/16,12/17,& 12/20

RESPONSE TIME: within 1 Hour 1 Hour 0.25 Hours

FACILITY Location: Clawson/Troy Rochester, MI Troy, MI
Miles from Troy On Troy's border 5 Miles 0 Miles

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

EMPLOYEES: # of Full-Time 8 3 2
# of Part-Time 3 2 4-6

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 30 Net 30 days Net 30

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS: None Blank None

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

DMS: Lantis Construction, Inc  -  No Check
Great Lakes Landscaping - No Check Grand Total Corrected by Purchasing

ATTEST:

Jeff Biegler HIGHLIGHTED AREA DENOTES LOW BIDDER

Kurt Bovensiep

Debra Painter-Deagle

Linda Bockstanz Susan Leirstein CPPO CPPB, Purchasing Director

G:\Snow Removal ITB-COT 09-47

As Specified



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-47
Opening Date -- 12/21/09 BID TABULATION Page 2 of 3
Date Reviewed - 1/11/2010 SNOW REMOVAL - FIRE STATIONS

VENDOR NAME: Titan Top Soil Mike's Tree Mando 
& Associates, Inc Surgeons, Inc Construction Inc

Check # 15898815 0113985 075335
Check Amount $1,000.00 $1,000.00 $1,000.00

All inclusive per call-out All inclusive per call-outAll inclusive per call-out

ITEM LOCATIONS PER PUSH PER PUSH PER PUSH

1 Fire Station #1 - 1019 East Big Beaver 345.00$                 508.00$              420.00$               

2 Fire Station #2 - 5600 Livernois 415.00$                 408.00$              465.00$               

3 Fire Station #3 - 2400 West Big Beaver 465.00$                 428.00$              670.00$               

4 Fire Station #4 - 2103 East Maple Road 280.00$                 368.00$              370.00$               

5 Fire Station #5 - 6399 John R Road 465.00$                 488.00$              530.00$               

6 Fire Station #6 - 5901 Coolidge 310.00$                 388.00$              430.00$               

7 Police / Fire Training Center - 4850 John R Road 580.00$                 493.00$              695.00$               

GRAND TOTALS  (Items 1-7) 2,860.00$             3,081.00$           3,580.00$           

Daytime Phone Number 248-477-6988 248-588-0202 586-531-4740
Contact: Sarah Moultrup Al Sexton Jeff

24 Hour Phone Number 248-388-3023 248-789-3039 586-222-3990
Contact: Chris Merucci Al Sexton Jim/Paul

Pager Number 248-388-3023 N/A 586-531-4741
Contact: Chris Merucci N/A Nick

VISITED THE SITES Y or N Yes Yes Yes
DATE: 12/4/2009 12/10/2009 12/10/2009

RESPONSE TIME: within 2 Hours 2 Hours 3 Hours

FACILITY Location: Farmington Hills, MI Troy, MI Sterling Heights, MI
Miles from Troy 23 Miles 0 Miles 5 Miles

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX XX XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Yes Yes Yes

EMPLOYEES: # of Full-Time 6 35 4
# of Part-Time 13 2 6

PAYMENT TERMS: Net 15 30 Days Net Net 30

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank Blank N/A

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Yes Yes Yes

PROPOSAL-- Seasonal Requirements of Snow Removal Services for the City of Troy
six (6) Fire Stations and Police/Fire Training Center with an Option to Renew for two (2)
Additional Seasons

G:\Snow Removal ITB-COT 09-47

As Specified



CITY OF TROY ITB-COT 09-47
Opening Date -- 12/21/09 BID TABULATION Page 3 of 3
Date Reviewed -- 1/11/2010 SNOW REMOVAL - FIRE STATIONS

VENDOR NAME: ABC Paving
Company

Check # 101023716
Check Amount $1,000.00

All inclusive per call-out

ITEM LOCATIONS PER PUSH
Based on 1"-3" Snow Event

1 Fire Station #1 - 1019 East Big Beaver 510.00$                 

2 Fire Station #2 - 5600 Livernois 520.00$                 

3 Fire Station #3 - 2400 West Big Beaver 700.00$                 

4 Fire Station #4 - 2103 East Maple Road 500.00$                 

5 Fire Station #5 - 6399 John R Road 600.00$                 

6 Fire Station #6 - 5901 Coolidge 490.00$                 

7 Police / Fire Training Center - 4850 John R Road 900.00$                 

GRAND TOTALS  (Items 1-7) 4,220.00$             

Daytime Phone Number 734-341-7424
Contact: Dan Dingman

24 Hour Phone Number 734-231-3486
Contact: Josh Christman

Pager Number Blank
Contact: Blank

VISITED THE SITES Y or N Yes
DATE: 12/17/2009

RESPONSE TIME: within 1 Hour

FACILITY Location: Trenton, MI
Miles from Troy 40 Miles

INSURANCE: Can Meet XX
Cannot Meet

EQUIPMENT LIST: Attached Y or N Yes

EMPLOYEES: # of Full-Time 30
# of Part-Time 150 (winter months)

PAYMENT TERMS: Blank

DELIVERY:

EXCEPTIONS: Blank

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT: Signed Y or N Yes

G:\Snow Removal ITB-COT 09-47

As Specified



Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
January 4, 2010 
 
 
TO:  John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development & Services 
  Susan A. Leirstein, Purchasing Director 

Timothy L. Richnak, Public Works Director 
 
SUBJECT: Standard Purchasing Resolution 3: Exercise Renewal Option – 

MITN Cooperative Gasoline and Diesel Fuel  
 
RECOMMENDATION 
On January 28, 2008, Troy City Council approved two (2) year contracts for Gasoline and Diesel 
Fuel with Mansfield Oil Company and RKA Petroleum Company, which included an option to renew 
for two (2) additional years (Res# 2008-01-023-F4c).  The Fleet Division of Public Works 
recommends accepting the two-year option exercised by the host City, Sterling Heights, for the 
MITN (Michigan Intergovernmental Trade Network) Cooperative of which Troy is a member City.  
The contracts will expire on January 31, 2012, under the same terms and conditions.  The factors 
originally bid will remain the same and are as follows: 
 
Mansfield Oil Company – Truck Transport Delivery (minimum 8,000 gals) 

TYPE FACTOR (per gal) OPTIONAL FACTOR (per gal) 
Unleaded Regular +.0236 Biodiesel B-5 +.0554 
Unleaded Mid-Grade +.0040 Biodiesel B-10 +.0554 
Unleaded Premium (.0090) Biodiesel B-20 +.0554 
ULS Diesel #1 +.0079 E85 Ethanol No Bid 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 +.0396   
ULS Diesel #2 +.0196   
Short Load Charges between 5,000 – 8,000 gallons                     $30.00 
Split Order Charge                                                                          $30.00 

 
RKA Petroleum Companies – Tank Wagon (no minimum) 

TYPE FACTOR (per gal) OPTIONAL FACTOR (per gal) 
Unleaded Regular +.11045 Biodiesel B-5 +.11045 
Unleaded Mid-Grade +.11045 Biodiesel B-10 +.11045 
Unleaded Premium +.11045 Biodiesel B-20 +.11045 
ULS Diesel #1 +.11045 E85 Ethanol +.11045 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 +.11045   
ULS Diesel #2 +.11045   
Short Load Charges              None 
Split Order Charge                None                                                           

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-04c



Page 2 of 2 
 

 
January 4, 2010 
 
To: John Szerlag, City Manager 
Re: Exercise Renewal Option – Cooperative Gasoline Contract 
 
TERMINOLOGY 
OPIS Average  OPIS is a benchmark price used to fix the price of a gallon of gas on the 

day of delivery.  The factor and MUSTFA charge are added to the OPIS 
price to determine the final gallon cost. 

 
Truck Transport  8,000 gallons / drop with short load charges for deliveries 
Delivery Minimum: between 5,000 gallons and 8,000 gallons 
 
MUSTFA  MUSTFA is the Michigan Underground Storage Tank Financial Assurance 

Fund and is a State of Michigan uniform charge per gallon of gas sold that 
is used to assist owners and operators of underground storage tanks 
remove leaking tanks. 

 
Troy’s Annual Usage: Truck Transport – Approximately 210,000 gallons Unleaded gasoline and 

75,000 gallons of ULS (ultra low sulfur) #2 Diesel fuel; Tank Wagon – 
Approximately 4,600 gallons Unleaded gasoline, 5,300 gallons of ULS #2 
Diesel fuel. The City continues to implement measures to reduce fuel 
usage.  In 2009, the City consumed 35,876 less gallons of fuel than 2008. 

SUMMARY 
The City of Sterling Heights has based the award on the lowest factor quoted per type of fuel delivery 
plus the OPIS average and MUSTFA surcharge which, when extended by the total number of 
gallons, yields the estimated total annual cost.  Since gasoline prices cannot be held firm for any 
length of time, this method allows both parties to enter into an adjustable contract for a lengthy period 
of time. 
 
MARKET SURVEY 
A market survey is not deemed necessary for the following reasons:  1) As stated in the 
Agenda Statement letter submitted by Sterling Heights, the MITN Cooperative has requested 
Mansfield Oil Company to provide a contingency letter that declares Mansfield Oil Company 
as a “Critical Vendor” by the refineries which will reinforce uninterrupted deliveries during 
a natural disaster.  2) As of December 22, 2009, Cooperative cities are paying 
approximately $.60 per gallon less than current consumer pump prices.  
3) Both vendors have worked out very well over the last two years. 
 
BUDGET 
Funds for this contract are available in the Fleet Division and Parks and Recreation Operating 
Budgets. 
 
SPL\ S:\Miller’s Review/Agenda 1.25.10 – SR3 – Exercise Renewal Option –MITN Cooperative Gasoline and Diesel Fuel 
 



CITY COUNCIL MINUTES - Final  January 28, 2008 
 

- 7 - 

a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: Oakland County CLEMIS Cooperative 
Purchasing Contract – Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s) Increase in CLEMIS MDC 
Participation Fees     

 
Resolution #2008-01-023-F-4a 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES a contract to purchase Motorola 
MW810 mobile workstations including WLAN antennae from Motorola through the Oakland 
County Cooperative Purchasing Agreement at an estimated cost of $5,300.00 each, with any 
other options and accessories discounted at 20% off list prices; and   
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES annual usage fees 
to Oakland County Court and Law Enforcement Management Information System (CLEMIS) for 
an estimated quantity of fifty (50) Mobile Data Computers (MDC’s) at an estimated cost of 
$63,150.00 per year.  
 
b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1: Award to Low Bidder – Community Center 

Carpet     
 
Resolution #2008-01-023-F-4b 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby AWARDS a contract to complete the Troy 
Community Center carpeting project to the low bidder, Conventional Carpet, Inc. of Sterling 
Heights, MI, for an estimated total cost of $20,811.00, at prices contained in the bid tabulation 
opened January 7, 2008, a copy of which shall be ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this 
meeting; and 
 
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the award is CONTINGENT upon contractor submission of 
properly executed bid and contract documents, including insurance certificates and all other 
specified requirements.  
 
c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 4: MITN Purchasing Cooperative – Gasoline and 

Diesel Fuel     
 
Resolution #2008-01-023-F-4c 
 
RESOLVED, That Troy City Council hereby APPROVES two-year cooperative contracts to 
purchase gasoline and diesel fuel in truck transport and tank wagon deliveries with an option to 
renew for two (2) additional years from the low bidders meeting specifications - Mansfield Oil 
Company of Gainesville, GA and RKA Petroleum Companies of Romulus, MI, through the City 
of Sterling Heights bid process and extended to the MITN Purchasing Cooperative at factors 
and prices contained in the bid tabulation opened December 11, 2007, a copy of which shall be 
ATTACHED to the original Minutes of this meeting with a contract expiration of January 31, 
2010. 



Business of the City 
City Clerk', Use 

Sterling Heights, Michigan 	 ltcmNo: 

Meeting: 12/01109 

AGENDA STATEMENT 
OM13 AS03 Rev, 11/04 

Item Titk: To extend the contracts for the purchase of gasoline, diesel and alternative fuels iCJr a two--year period 
at unit prices competitively bid through the Michig[U1 Intergovernmental Trade Networl<: (Annual estimated cost 
of $670,000). 

Submitted B}!: Office ofPurchasing 
Irt~ 

Contact Person/Telephone: Mmk Carufel, Purchasing I Risk Manager, 446-2741 

Administration (initial as applicable) 	 Attachments 

City Clerk 	 Resolution Minutes 

Finance & Budget Director 	 Ordinance Plan/Map 

City Attorney (as to legal fonn) 	 Contract Other 

City Manager 

o Check box if this agenda item requires billing/revenue collection (fees, etc.) by Treasury Office 

Executive Summary: 

The City of Sterling Heights purchases approximately 225,000 gallons of gasoline and 100,000 gallons diesel fuel 
per year to power the City's fleet of automobiles, trucks, equipment and generators. 

The City is also the host community for a Michigan Intergovemmental Trade Network (MITN) cooperative gasoline 
and diesel fuel bid that includes 20 member communities in the Macomb, Oakland and Wayne County region. 
Tlu-ough this cooperative bid, approximately three million gallons of gasoline ,md one million gallons of diesel are 
purchased every year. 

In J anumy, 2008, City Council split the award of the bid to Mansfield Oil Company for tank wagon (greater than 
5,000 gallons) deJjveties and RKA Petroleum Companies for truck transport (less than 5,000 gallons) delivelies, 

In the Oliginal bid, there was an option to extend the contract for the purchase of gasoline, diesel and alternative 
fuels for a two-year period at the unit prices competitively bid through MITN. To exercise this option, both the City 
and the vendor must agree to the two-year extension. At this time, recommendation is being made to extend the 
contracts through Janumy 31, 2012 for the following reasons: 

• 	 Upon review of the cutTent State of Miehigan MiDeal bid (August 1,2005 to August 1,2010), the MI'TN 
cooperative bid hosted by Sterling Freights is lower in overall price for both gasoline and diesel fuel, and 
will produce a yearly savings for Sterling Heights of approximately $8,599. The consensus of the 
cooperative is to extend the contract 



@ 	 Attached arc signed contract extensions pursuant to which Cllrrent vendors Mansfield Oil Company and 
RKA Petroleum have agreed to honor the tenus and conditions of the MITN cooperative bid llll' em 
additional two-year period, Both vendors have performed very well over the last two years, 

G 	 Mansfield Oil Company continues to declare MITN cooperative members as "Critical Vendors", which 
helps assure uninterrupted deliveries offuels to municipalities during a natural disaster. 

Suggested !\.ctia.u: 

MOVED BY: 	 SECONDED BY: 

RESOLVED, to extend the contracts with Mansfield Oil Company, 1025 Ail1')ort Parkway SW, Gainesville, GA 
30501-0833 for tlUck transpOli deliveries and RKA Petroleum Companies, 28340 Wick Rd., ROlllulus, MI 48174 
for tank wagon deliveries of gasoline, diesel and altemative fuels for a two-year period at the respective bid 
factors bid tlu'ough the Michigan Intergovemmental Trade Network. 



CITY OF STEHLING HEIGHTS 

STAFF REPORT 

December 1, 2009 


Prepared By: Mark Carufel, Purchasing/Risk Manager Ext. No. 2741 


GENEUAL INFORMATION: 

On December 11, 2007, bids were received in response to a MITN cooperative bid solicitation 
for the delivery of gasoline, diesel and alternative fuels. On JanualY 16, 2008, City Council 
awarded the coopcrative bid as follows: 

Mansfield Oil Company, 1025 Airport Parkway S.W., Gainesville, GA 30501, for truck tTansport 
deliveries (greater than 5,000 gallons) at bid prices bid of: 

Unleaded Regular $0.0236/gal OPTIONAL: 
Unleaded Mid-Grade $0.0040/gal Biodiesel B-5 $0.0554/gal 
Unleaded Premi urn -$0.0090/gal Biodiesel B-1 0 $0.0554/gal 
ULS Diesel #1 $0.0079/gal Biodiesel B-20 $0.0554/gal 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 $0.0396/gal E85 Ethanol no bid 
ULS Diesel #2 $0.0196/gal 

RKA Petroleum Companies, Inc., 28340 Wiek Road, Romulus, MI 48174, for tank wagon 
deliveries (less than 5,000 gallons) at bid factors of: 

Unleaded Regular $0.11045/gal OPTIONAL: 
Unleaded Mid-Grade $0.11045/gal Biodiesel B-5 $0.11045/gal 
ULS Premium Diesel #2 $0.11045/gal Biodiesel B-1 0 $0.11 045/gal 
ULS Diesel #2 $0.11 045/gal Biodiesel B-20 $0.11 045/gal 
ULS Dyed Diesel #2 $O.l1045/gal E85 Ethanol $O.l1045/gal 

In the original bid, there was an option to extend the contract for an additional two years, upon 
mutual agreement. 

Funds for the purchase of gasoline and diesel fuels are budgeted in Account #11717553-750000 
(Fleet Maintenance - Fuels and Lubricants). It is estimated that the City of Sterling Heights will 
expend approximately $670,000 annually for truck transport and tank wagon deliveries of 
gasoline, diesel and altenlative fuels. 

STAI{'F ANALYSIS A:"\ID FINDINGS: 

At this time, recommendation is being made to extend the contracts with each current vendor 
through Janumy 31,2012. 



STAFF RECOMMI£NOATION: 

RESOLVED, to extend the contracts with Mansfield Oil Company, 1025 AirpOli Parkway SW, 
Gainesville, GA 30501··0833 f()f truck transport delivelies and RJ<A Petroleum Companies, 
28340 Wick Rd., Romulus, MI 48174 for tank wagon deliveries of gasoline, diesel and 
alternative fuels for a two-year period at the respective bid factors bid thnmgh the Michigan 
Intergovenullcntal Trade Network. 



DEVELOPMENT 

CiTY OF STEHLING HEIGHTS 
as of '11/24/09 

Tank Wagon Truck Transport 
Deliveries of Deliveries of 

5000 Gallons or less 5,000 Gallons or more 

RI<A Mansfield 
November 24, 2009 
OPIS Detroit Rack Avg. Price Per Gallon $1.9919 

Per Gallon Delivery Fee $0.11045 $0.02360 --~"---. 

$2.1024 $2.0155 

Comparison Average Retail price with taxes 2.5897 2.5897 

Difference in City vs Retail $0.4874 $0.5742 

RKA Mansfield 

Breakdown of the per gallon delivery fee 


Delivery fee $0.09950 $0.01265 

Michigan Underground Storage Tank Fee $0.00875 $0.00875 


Federal Leaking Underground Storage Tank Fee $0.00100 $0.00100 

Federal Oil Spill Recovery Fee _______~$;.;.0..;,;.0;.;;0...;.1.;;.20.;;....------.-.;$;.;.0..;,;.O;..;O...;.1.;;.20~ 

Total fee per gallon $0.11045 $0.02360 ~~---' 

OPIS OIL PRICE INFORMATION SERVICE 

COOPERATIVE USES I PAYS THE DAILY RACK AVERAGE FOR THE DETROIT MARKET ON THE DAY OF DELIVERY 

RACK AVERAGE IS DERIVED BY OPIS USING PRICE INFORMATION FROM THE 13 FUEL SUPPLIERS TO THE DETROIT MARKET 



MITN Fuel 
Analysis 

Truck Transport 
Gasoline 
Unleaded 

Mid Grade 
Premium 

Truck Transport 
Diesel 


ULS #1 

ULS#2 


ULS Premium #2 

Tank Wagon 
Gasoline 
Unleaded 

Mid Grade 
Premium 

Tank Wagon 
Diesel 

ULS #1 
ULS#2 

ULS Premium 

Unit 

Price Bid 


MITN 


$0.02360 
$0.00400 

-$0.00900 

$0.00790 
$0.01960 
$0.03960 

$0.11045 
$0.11045 
$0.11045 

$0.11045 
$0.11045 
$0.11045 

Unit 

Price Bid 


MiDeal 


$0.0487 
$0.0487 
$0.0487 

$0.0437 
$0.0437 
$0.0437 

$0.1087 
$0.1587 
$0.1587 

$0.1887 
$0.1887 
$0.1887 

Per Gallon 

Differential 


-$0.02510 
-$0.04470 
-$0.05770 

-$0.03580 
-$0.02410 
-$0.00410 

$0.00175 
-$0.04825 
··$0.04825 

-$0.07825 
-$0.07825 
-$0.07825 

Sterling HIs 
Projected Annual 
Volume for Sf! Hts 

in Gallons MITN vs MiDeal 

225,000 $5,647.50 

90,000 $2,169.00 

10,000 $782.50 

MITN unit price bid per gallon delivered is the OPIS Detroit Rack Average on day of delivery, plus or minus (+ 1-) the 
per unit price bid. 

MiDeal unit price bid per garlon delivered is the OPIS Detroit Rack Average on Monday for the same week of delivery 
(Sunday thru Saturday), plus or minus (+ 1-) the per unit price bid 

MiDeal Tank Wagon contract allows vendor to charge additional delivery fees for deliveries of less tllan 500 gallons. 

http:2,169.00
http:5,647.50


TRUCI< TRANSPOl?'{J)ELIVERfES OF GASOLINE AND DIESEL ~;'UEL 


TWO-YEA,R EXTENSION OF CONTRACT AT UNIT PRICES BID 

ITB·SlIO 7" 040 


The signatures below serve us confirmation that Mansfield Oil Company is in receipt of u letter 
from the City of Sterling Heights (lend agency in the fuel purchasing cooperative· Cooperative 
members Iisled below), dated November 18, 2009 fronl Purchasing Munager Murk Curufel. 
Mansfield 011 Compcwy, 1025 Airport Parkway, S.W, GUlnesville, Georgia 30501-6833, 
acknowledges the City's / Cooperative's request and mutually agrees to extend the contruct for 
the purchase of truck transport deliveries of gasoline and diesel fuel for an additional two-ycnJ' 
period, February 1,2010 through January 31. 2012, at unit prices stated in the bid of December 
6,2007; al! other terms and conditions remain the same, This extension shall be binding upon 
final review cll1d approval by the City of Stel'li11g Heights City Council, and approval by the 
respective cooperative members, when applicable.' 

ACCEPTED BY: 

Mtl.O' ,~mpuny '01~____________
Dt~id Zmfo ,:' . Dated 

CITY OF STERLING HEIGHTS 

Coopemtive Members Include: Birmingham, Eastpointe, Farmington Hills, Livonia, Madison 
Heights. Novi, Oakland County, Rochester Hills, Royal Oak, 51 Clair Shores, SOllthfield, 
Sler1ing Heights, Troy, WHITen, West Bloomfield, Westland, und filly other entity added during 
the cooperative contnict period effective February 1,2008. 



ansfield 

November 23,2009 

Mr. Mark Carufel 
Purchasing/Risk Manager 
City of Sterling Heights 
40555 Utica Road 
PO Box 8009 
Sterling Heights, M148311-8009 

Re: Supply Guarantee to Maintain Fuel Contract 

Dear Mr. Carufel: 

Mansfield Oil Company, a national wholesale supplier of gasoline and distillate products, is a 
major supplier to Federal, State, County and Local government entities throughout the United 
States. Over the past few years Mansfield has implemented and enhanced upon a disaster 
recovery plan tbat not only covers our internal office procedures but covers the necessary steps to 
protect our c,llstomer's needs as well. While much attention has been placed on natural disasters 
in the gulf coast region of our country Mansfield realizes that natural disastc.'l's can oec.ur 
anywhere and at any time. Given this, Mansfield implemented tile following steps to ensure our 
contractual obligations were met during trlese times of crisis: 

Mansfield Oil Company requested from refiners during these periods that we be 
classified under "Critical Vendor" status so that specific loads of product oo,n be 
delivered to First Response and Govenmlent agencies as needed, Refiners 
released loads as needed as long as Manstield supplied to the refiner 
documentation concerning location and use of fuel to meet critical vendor 
requirements. 

The procedure of being classified as a Critical Vendor with our refiner partners is currently part 
of our standard operating policy and allows us to coordinate efforts during difficult times 
surrounding the availability of supply during natural disasters. 

As our current performance as your supplier has reflected, Mansfield Oil will take whatevel' steps 
are necessary to ensure that we meet our contractual obJlgations with our valued customers to the 
extent that external forces or pressure will allow us to do so. Having acc,ess to supply terminals 
in 49 stales, with contractual supply or inventory in many ofthoso, provides us with the necessary 
options to secure product 

Please i~;el fi'ce to call me with any questions at 1-800-255-6699. ext. 2107. 

NOV 2 3 2009 



MANSFIELD 


4C:iO-2000 
FAX 450-2200 

December 7, 2007 

City of Sterling Heights 
Office of the City Clerk 
Attn: Walter Blessed, City Clerk 
40555 Utica Road 
Sterling Heights, MI 48313 

RE: ITB-SH07-040, Truck Transport and Tank Wagon Deliveries of Leaded and Unleaded, and Diesel 
Fuel 

Mansfield Oil Company is pleased to offer a bid for your fuel requirements for the stated period. Our bid 
prices are based off the OPIS DAILY Average for the Detroit Market B. Enclosed is the original bid plus 
11. copies as well as a bid deposit of $5,000.00. Please return the bid deposit after award is made. 

Mansfield Oil Company's payment tenus are NET 30 days. Per bid instructions, all applicable taxes are 
included in the unit price bid, which include MUSTFA of .00875, LUST of .0010 and Oil Spill Recovery 
Fee of .0012 per gallon. However, such taxes will be a separate line item on your invoice and deducted 
from the bid differentiaL 

We are pleased to offer tank inventory monitoring to City of Sterling Heights and the Coop at no 
additional cost if Mansfield should be the low bidder. More information on tank inventory monitoring 
and environmental compliance reporting services is available on our web site at www.mansfieldoiLcom. 

Should you have any questions, feel free to call me at 1-800-255-6699, Ext. 2080. 

Again, thank you for the invitation to bid. We look forward to hearing from you. 

Best Regards, 

~k~S"{'~ 
Michelle Shively 
Government Sales Manager 
mshively@mansfieldoil.com 

mailto:mshively@mansfieldoil.com
www.mansfieldoiLcom
http:5,000.00


BID FORM 


The undersigned hereby declares that he has carefully examined the instructions and 
specifications and will furnish TRUCK TRANSPORT AND TANK WAGON DELIVERIES 
OF LEADED AND UNLEADED GASOLINE, AND DIESEL FUEL for the prices set forth 
in this bid. It is understood and agreed that all bids are F.O.B. DESTINATION and shall 
remain in effect for at least ninety (90) days from the date of the bid opening to allow for 
award of bid. Unit prices and factors prevail and the cooperative will correct extension 
errors. 

Bid prices shall remain firm through the two-year contract beginning on February 1, 2008 
and any extension options that may be carried out. 

Enclose the written policy you have in place for times of disaster or declared 
emergencies. 

1-800-283-3835List 24/7 emergency contact and 

Indicate split order charges, if 

How did you receive notification of this bid? _M_a_i_l_____________ 

How did you obtain the bid ppecjfications? If bid documents were downloaded from a 
website, please list: _w_ww_"_m_l_t_n_.l_n_f_o___________________ 

Mansfield Oil Company 

CITY/STATE/Zl Gaine 

Michelle Shivel , Government Sales Mana er 

PHON 0-2280 

REALISTIC DELIVERY TIME IN 24 hours 

NET 30 

EMAIL ADDRESS/WEBS mshivel @mansfieldoil.c I.com 

December 6, 2007SlGNATURE~~c:~G(~ .._ .._ 

Official bid specifications are available only at JMNJt!L..witnJrrff] or call the Office of Bid Form 

Purchasing at 586-446-2740. Page 1 




f"'~ , . Oil '-u .. 

BID FORM - TRUCK TRANSPORT 

Est. Usage* Average ± Price/gallon Ext. 

Unleaded 1,484,500 +.0236 2.3340 3 r 463,932.30 

Unleaded Mid-Grade 1,356,000 +.0040 2.3575 3,296,700.00 

Unleaded Premium 75,000 $ 2.4563 -.0090 2.4473 $ 183 r 547.50 

ULS Diesel #1 185,000 +. 3.0751 $ 568,893.50 

ULS Premium Diesel #2 401,400 +.0396 2.6880 ,078,963.20 

+.0196 2.5699ULS Diesel #2 451,500 ,160 309.85 

Biodiesel 8-5 (Optional) 10,000 $ 27,079.00 

Biodiesel 8-10 (Optional) 10,000 

2.6300 +.0554 2.6854 26,854.00Biodiesel 8-20 (Optional) 10,000 $ 

E85 Ethanol (Optional) 10,000 Tota!: 

Please base pricing on minimum delivery of 8,000 gallons per drop. indicate any short load charges for quantities between and 
8.000 gallons. 


Short load charge, if any: ____...:.$...::.3...::.0...::..,..:.0,..:.0_____________________________ 


1. Idenlliy~lsou~esclsupp~-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~-----~ 

46,2. Approximate annual volume in gallons, in Southeast Michigan: 

* Estimated yearly product usage ofcooperative in gallons 
# Extended total is calculated by multiplying estimated yearly product usage byprice per gal/on 

bid specifications are available only atWW!!LCl1itnjnio or call the Office of Purchasing at 586;446-2740. Bjd Fonn, 
",,' ?' ... ' " 

2 

http:26,854.00
http:27,079.00
http:078,963.20
http:568,893.50
http:3,296,700.00
http:463,932.30


TMjJ{ \·VAGON f)E~UVER1ES' OF GAS'OLINE' liND f)JJ~~2BLFUEL 


TI+'O~"r'EAR EXTENSION OF CO,"iTf?ACTAT [ltVlT PRICES BID 

fiB-S"[l () 7-04{) 

The si below serve as cont'l1I11ation tli,lt RKA Petroleum Companies, Inc. is in reeclI)[ or 
u I c[(e!' 1'1'0111 the Ci (y of Stc!'l ing Heights (lead agency in the fuel purchasi ng coopernl j lie 
Cooperative members listed beloyv), dated November 17, 2009 from Purchasing Manager Mark 
C~lnlrel. RKA Petroleum Companies, Inc, 28:140 Wick Rd., Romulus. Iv1l 48174 acknowledges 

City's I Cooperative's request ;Jnd mutually agrees to cxtend rhe contract for the purclwsc or 
tllnk wagon dellvcries of gasoline and diesel fuel for an additional two-year period, rclmwry I. 
2010 through January 31, 2011, at LIlli! prices stated in the bid of December 10, 2007: all other 
terms and conditions rcmain the sumc. This extension shall be binding upon final rcview und 
approval by City of Sterling HeighLs City Council, and approval by the rcspective 
cooperative members, when upplicabie. 

ACCEPTED BY; 

Dated 

CITY OF STERLING HEIGl-ITS 

Cooperalive Members fnclude: Billllinghall1, Eastpointe, F:ll'lll Livonia. rVlaLiison 
, Novi, Oakland COUllty, Rochester Hill;;, Ouk. Sl Clair SOlllhl'ield, Stcr]i 

Ilc.ighls, W~lITCn, \Vest 81 IJ, Westland, and ,my other cnli:y added during lhe 
coopcm!iyc CDlllract period clTcClivc February I, lOOS. 



BID FORlVl 

The under"signed hereby declares that he has carefully 1::1xarnined the instructions and 
specifications and will furnish TRUCK TRANSPORT AND TAN~{ WAGON DELIVERIES 
OF LEADED AND UNLEADED GASOLINE, AND DIESEL FUEL for the prices set fOlih 
in this bid, It is understood and agreed that all bids are F.D.S. DESTINATION and shall 
remain in effect for at least ninety (90) days fmrn the date of the bid opening to allow for 
award of bid, Unit prices and factors prevail and the cooperative will correct extension 
errors. 

Bid prices shall remain finn through the two-year contract beginning on February 1, 2008 
and any extension options that rnay be carried out 

Enclose the written policy you have in place for times of disaster or declared 
emergencies. 

" (s~ A\T~~~""""~\ 
List 24/7 emergency contact and nurnber:I?L\ -'605 -=CXY1', \N~~~Al ~~~\) 

~"'7,. q5
Indicate split order charges, if any: ':'\ ' O~~~~N'<$,c~'~\\l;c\L\'§S. QNl:\J, 

~o d~'q.L~1C c>~~lA.Lv~N .~~'"L\~: I 

How did you receive notification of this bid? .......-C'-----"--"---'-~___________ 


How did you obtain the bid If bid documents were downloaded from a 
website, please list: __-'---"'--''-----''.-''---_._____________.._____ 

ADDRESS 

CITY/STATE/ZIP '~_~L\J';:;, 1m \J\\qA\G~ ~b \\~_____ 
REPRESENTATIVE/TITLE \(~\\\\ ~~~ ~C~~'i"\UClS\-~~ 
PHONE/FA)C"T2'::.l--\-~i-\~"-Z\~"'\ 6X~\,. 2.0 \ ~N '- -l'?}-\- ~L1Co'- 4'"1l2

REALISTIC DELIVERY TIME IN HOURS 21.-\ \-\Qt\~~ " 
'\" v.:;:; .0050IG~~~~ 

TERMS 66 'b~<) I ·N~Till~\~>lprC':.'\''T::::' 00\'5 Ib/....~\~_m.~__ 
I 

Official bid specifications are available only at lItJ.11!.I;1LlJJilaJnfD. or call the Office of Bid Form 

Purchasing at 586-446-2740. Page 1 




BID FORM - TANK WAGON 


Please note that these differentials include the MUST of .00875, the LUST of .0010 and the Oil Spill Recovery of .0012, per the "General Conditions" page 1 ofU1e bid 
"Bids shall include all charges for delivery, State and Federal Surcharges, etc.", 

Est. Usage* Average ± Price/gailon 

Unleaded 32,000 ' '3c:f\'O .i-1"ZoZS 

Unleaded Mid-Grade 58,000 $ 2-,"3~5 ;1-\ l?'3:.=;.5 

ULS Premium Diesel #2 92,000 $1. ' (s, L.·va i--\ ~ \ \0"'\5 . 15C065 

ULS Djesel #2 72,600 ,55\\.::1 
r \ \ 01-\5 ' loG::>2.05 

.1=S5G3, ,~t_SULS Dyed Diesel #2 21,000 • \ \6'-\~ 
Biodiesel (Optional) 10,000 ' S \\C\, 

Biodiesel B-10 (Optional) 10,000 2,52-X:::;\ "2,(o3s55 

Biodiesel 8-20 (Optional) 10,000 7.-' S3(.\5 $ '2. I (.;AC'f\5 

Ethanol (Optional) 10,000 's Z' '::,>S7D' . \ \O'-\~ , 2' 1-\ l:JC\ \5 
~ Total; 

The term "tank wagon" is intended to describe delivery in lots of 5,000 or less_ Please specify minimum delivery 

1. Identify sources of supply: \j~)l }/\cfs& . .P,~'S!N \ ::b~Nac:J:J C,,~~ ,\'-\\f'l...,'\?\--\'-i I 5~~(J;cL~ ''\3;~ .1 

\-\(J'S,\;l.~.. ~ ~ , \ ' I' \ r 
1(--'---- - - -- -- --~. ~ -----

2. Approximate annual volume in gai!ons, in Southeast Michigan: ~~~t::::~::'..+...=::.'::£:~-------------~--

product usage of cooperative in gallons 
# Extended total is calculated by multiplying estimated yearly product usage by price per gallon 

Official bid specifications are avaiJable at or calf the Office of Purchasing at 586-446-2740. Bid 3 



Ci OJ 
ORTCITY COUNCIL ACTITroy 

January 9, 2010 

TO: 	 John Szerlag, City Manager 

FROM: 	 Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Develop:mem: Services 
Steven J. Vandette, City Engineer 
Patricia A. Petitto, Rear Estate Consultant, Greenstar & Asoda~es, ILILC Pi\ P 

SUBJECT: 	 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim 
John R Road Improvement Project, Square Lake to Sou~h: Eroufsvctrd: 
Project No. 02.204.5 - Parcel 43 - Sidwell #88-20-02-279:'002 

Background: 

• 	 As part of the proposed John R. Road Improvement Project - Square Lake to; SOtlth Boulevard, City 
Coundl previously authorized the purchase of the property at 6675 John R frl10m J;ames W. Munchiando 
and Elizabeth S. Munchiando. The Munchiandos plan to move to a new l1eme i'm: Oakliaoo Township on 
January 28,2010. They will be filing a separate claim for incidental closing costs,. blJ~ l1leed approval of 
the moving costs at this time in order to proceed with the scheduled move. 

Financial Considerations: 

• 	 They are requesting to be reimbursed $6,938.40 for their move based on ~lhe'I:Qwest of three estimates 
from commercial movers. 

• 	 Eighty percent of these costs will be reimbursed from Federal funds. Funds for the Ci,ty of Troy's share 
are included in the 2009-10 Major Road fund, account number 401479.7989.022045. 

Legal Considerations: 

• 	 In accordance with Michigan Laws and Federal Regulations, they are elig:ib!e to be reimbursed for actual 
moving expenses when a commercial mover performs the move. 

Policy Considerations: 

• 	 Troy has enhanced the health and safety of the community (Goal I) 
• 	 Troy adds value to properties through maintenance or upgrades of infrastructure and quaw.ty of life 

venues (Goal II) 

G:IMEMOS TO MAYOR AND CCIMunchiando Relocation Claim 1·9-10.doc 

http:6,938.40
campbellld
Text Box
I-05



Michigan Department 	 Page 1 of 2 RELOCATION CLAIM 
ofTransportation 


0879 «(}iIOS) 
 RESIDENTIAL 
Information required by Act 31, p.A. 1970 as amendfKf, and Act 277 

toP.A. of 

OISPLACEE'S NAME 
James W. Munchiando and Elizabeth S. Munchiando 
ACQUIRED PROPERTY ADDRESS AND PHONE 
6675 John R 
Troy, MI 48085 
(248) 388-6240 

DATE OF MOVE DATE OF FINAL PAYMENT 	 DATE OF ESTIMATED JUST COMPENSATION 
DEPOSIT 7{31108- d-."Z: - dO 0 10/28/09 

MUST OCCUpy REPLACEMENT PROPERTY BY: 

If Unsecured OWner, 12 months after date ofestimated Just r.on1ne:nsatioo 

MUST FILE CLAIM FOR PAYMENT BY: 

Inenam. 18 monllls after date of move 

If Owner, 18 months after date of move or final payment, whichever Is 

Replacement Renlal SuppjementJPurchase Down Payment 

Moving Expenses 

AMOUNT DUE: 

DMOVE VERIFIED BY MOOT 

I/wE AGREE PAYMENTWlLL BE SENT TO 
::r~ I ELI z..Ai)8Tr\; MA)l)G~ ( JId0(~ 

IIINE CERTIFY THAT: 
1. 	 All information submitted is true and correct 
2. 	 II\Ne have purchased or rented and Q(:cupied"or wtll purchase or rent and occupy, a mplacement dwelling which is decent, safe, 

and sanitary wilhln the standards prescribed by the Michigan Department ofTransportatloo. 
3. 	 INVe have vacated Of will vacate the state acquired property. 
4. 	 LIl;'Ve have oat submitted any other claim. Of received reimbursement from aoy other source, for expenses itemized on this claim. 
5. 	 IM/e agree If the amount of compensation 1$ increased [n an administrative settlement or condemnation action, the Houaing 

Supplement shall be recalculated based UPQO the increased compensation award, and any overpayment in the Housing 
SUpplement shall be deducted by the department from the final payment. 

6. 	 liWe are a legal resident ofthe United States. 

If~ 	 . 1" - n, I DATE(tLA:El;;:;:::L. , I/:r~ -Jo .._'--b~~~"'::"::" ';ltW:~~1 1-9 -(0
X~ certify that l(we have exa:';llinedtlljs claim, and the substantiating dO,cumentati and have folll'l.d it to conform to the applicable State and Focieral 

laws and the o~rati(lQ procet1;ures of the Michigan Depal1ment of 'fransportation. 

R.EC.OM... ,MENDED BY: 	 IDATE.. .-'~TI-AP-P'-R-O~VE-D-BY-:---- IDATE 
'//..' /' "'f~1 L .L . - 'I' _ 

! /:,-;t'J~ ,c'-~~ ,>C . f l'7 A I I tJ 

CONTROL SECTION JOB NO. PARCEL NAME 

EDCF 63544 IFiFi?4Ar. ,43 02-279~002 IJames W. & Elizabeth Munchiando 



, MDOT 0679 (01108) Page 2 of2 

a) listing price of comparable dwelling 

b) Sale price of replacement dwelling __________ 

AMOUNTO~ 
i~c;;--.I-'-D-E-:~T.~'A=~L~c~i.~6~1~$ COST~ .~-'-----

-Adm-/-ni-str-a-!iv-e-f-ee---------r-----'--'----'"..-..:.-'-'-'--.TM~rtgage App!ication fee ----- 

1c) Acquisition price of state acquired dwelling i 

i d) Lower of "a" or "b' minus .~.~ 
I 

----, ,

Appraisal fee IMortgage insurance* 


1 Notary feeAssumption tee , 
( 

Overnight fee 

CloSing aod/or Escrow fee 

Certification fee ) 
l 

Permits 

Credit Report ~; v,-,~ww".lI fee 

Recording feeDiscount Points" 

Survey fee 

Inspections 

Document r I ,,¥QI auvl' fee 

lax Service·fee 

Legal fee TItle Insurance fee" 

,.{- "',Loan '-'''ll'''''''''"' fee~ i """""'"'''''''1:1lfee 

Mobile Home Title Transfer fee" Other 

Mobile Home Sales Tax" OtherI 

.. Limited to balance of existing mortgage ··Iimited to listing price of highest comparable 

AMOUNT DUE: l 
i 

~~---------

Current Mortgage Balance NeVil Mortgage Balance 

Current Interest Rate New Interest Rate 

Current Mortgage Payment New Mortgage Term 

! Mortgage Points 

AMOUNT DUE: 
~--~~~ 

a) Comparable rent ... utilities 

b) Replacement rent + 
utilities 

c) Actual/Economlc rent + utili- i 
ties OR 30% of monthly Income! 

st\ed----
Family Room Attic ------ ------
Bedrooms Basement _ ...-----
Kitchen Porch 

---
Laundry Garage------ -~.~.----

Den or Office ___~.__.__Other 

Equipment cost Houriy labor rate (capped at industry labor rate) 

Supply cost AMOUNT DUE: I 

---c---=-_____~=__,_:-:---___::-:--~..,.".,.....-~-c-r-__,_..,.-"...._-c_A-·IYIOUNT DUE: I $6,938.40 

,.. --'--___----..il:i..-__"------'-'-~~~--"-~S'-'- ......T'_O)U"-.··t':-G:-E_C_O_Se-.T_s.-::i:-,':,_.--r"''-----:.,-~-:.....:'-'..~'---.___ 

of months (limited 12) 

http:6,938.40
http:v,-,~ww".lI


  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council 
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: January 14, 2010 
SUBJECT: William and Elaine Middlekauff  v. City of Troy   

 
    
 

Enclosed please find a copy of a lawsuit that was recently filed against the City of 
Troy by William and Elaine Middlekauff.  This lawsuit stems from the severe storm that 
occurred on June 8, 2008, which knocked down several trees in the City.  There were 
three trees that were knocked down from the City’s right of way, which ended up in the 
Middlekauff yard, at 2449 Oak Ridge Drive in Troy.  The complaint alleges that a City 
employee told them that they should hire a private contractor to clear the debris from their 
property, and that the City would reimburse them for the contractor’s expense.   

 
J. H. Hart was the City’s contractor (the successful bidder).   At the time that the 

Middlekauffs hired their own contractor, J.H. Hart was still removing trees from the 
roadways and other hazardous locations.  After these priorities, the City’s contractor would 
clear the debris from City trees that landed on private property.  This would have included 
the debris from the three trees that were located on the Middlekauff’s property.     

 
The complaint seeks damages in excess of $6,103.00, which is the total bill for 

the private contractor who removed all tree debris from the property.  This bill includes the 
cost of removing both the City’s tree debris, as well as the debris from other trees that was 
the responsibility of the private property owner.  The complaint asserts a breach of 
contract claim, a claim of promissory estoppel and a count of fraud and misrepresentation.   

  
A resolution authorizing our office to defend the City’s interest is proposed for your 

consideration.  If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know. 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
I-06



















GGM/ppb  o:\administration\command staff\mayer\council agenda item\2010 tia membership renewal cc report.doc 
 

 

 
 
January 20, 2010 
 
 
TO:    John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:  Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development & Services 
   John M. Lamerato, Assistant City Manager/Finance and Administration 
   Steve Vandette, City Engineer 
   Gary G. Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT: Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland 

County 
 
 
Background: 
 
The City has been a member of the TIA since 1975.  The TIA is a private non-profit organization that 
is responsive to the problems and needs of local traffic officials.  They are a source for traffic facts, 
including traffic crashes and traffic operations data.  The City of Troy obtains citywide traffic crash 
statistics (including the intersection and road segment crash reports and ranking, county traffic crash 
trends, location specific crash details, and alcohol related statistics and as a TIA member they are 
provided without charge.  The TIA works with the Troy Police Department on several enforcement-
related projects and grants.  They facilitated the Police Department in obtaining over $31,000 last 
year in federal grants for alcohol and seat belt endorsement.  The TIA also works with our adjacent 
communities to improve traffic in the general area that can be a secondary benefit to the City.  
 
Financial Considerations: 
 
The renewal membership fee for 2010 is $24,400.  There is no change from 2009.  The fee will be 
divided equally between the Traffic Engineering and Police departments.  The funds are available in 
Traffic Engineering budget, account number 443 7958 and the Police budget, account number 318 
7802 070. 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
N/A 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
Enhance the livability and safety in the community. 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  AACCTTIIOONN  RREEPPOORRTT  

campbellld
Text Box
I-07



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                               Oct. 1, 2009 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Oct 1, 2009 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair David Ogg called the meeting to order at 1 
P.M. 
 
Present:  James Berar, Member     
 David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member 
 Pauling Noce, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Abesnt: Frank Shier, Member 
 
Betty Coven has resigned from the committee, effective today.  
   
Visitors:  Paula Fleming, Wade Fleming, Nancy Philipport, Carol Anderson, John Szerlag 
 
Approval of Minutes    
 
Resolution # SC-2009-10-001 
Moved by Black 
Seconded by Rhoads 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Sept. 3, 2009 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 6  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
Paula Fleming discussed school district news and upcoming events, reminded committee 
members about the gold card, and introduced fellow school board member Nancy Philipport. 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
Open House:  David Ogg reported that there was a good turnout at the open house.  Twelve 
people stopped at the Advisory Committee table and 11 did not know that the committee 
existed.  He was able to help three residents with problems.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01a



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – FINAL                               Oct. 1, 2009 

2 

NEW BUSINESS 
 
Budget Update – 6-Year Organizational Restructuring  Plan:  City Manager John Szerlag 
discussed his proposed 6-Year Organizational Restructuring Plan and the options available.  
Committee members were given the opportunity to give their input and to ask questions. 
 
Suggestion Box:  There was one suggestion for 2010 trips to Stratford and Niagara-on-the-
Lake.  Our 2008 trip to Stratford was cancelled due to low enrollment, but we will try again in 
2010.  We offered a Niagara-on-the-Lake trip last year. Only three signed up, but they were 
able to go with another city.   
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  JoAnn Thompson reported that John Szerlag also attended the last park board 
meeting to discuss the 6-year organizational restructuring plan. 
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that attendance at senior programs last year was almost 
118,000, a 3% increase over the year before.  We offer 85 programs and services.  Volunteers 
contributed over 16,000 hours last year.  In order to cut costs in the computer lab, the 
volunteers are taking over the technical support of the computers.  Because SeniorNet – the 
organization that we get our instruction manuals and software from - recently increased their 
fees, our volunteers have taken over this area also.  This will save almost $28,000 this year.   
 
Medi-Go:   No report. 
 
 
OLHSA:   Jo Rhoads reported that they had a speaker on home care. 
 
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:   No report. 
 
Member Comments 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:25 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Ogg, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



campbellld
Text Box
M-01b





BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                        DECEMBER 2, 2009 

1 

 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:30 A.M. on Wednesday, December 2, 2009 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    Keith Lenderman 
    Tim Richnak 
    Mark Stimac 
 
ABSENT:   Michael Pylar 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Paul Evans, Housing & Zoning Inspector Supervisor 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF NOVEMBER 4, 2009 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Stimac 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of November 4, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:   4 – Dziurman, Lenderman, Richnak, Stimac 
Absent:  1 – Pylar 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JEFF JOHNSON, HARMON SIGNS, 3946-3978 
ROCHESTER, ROCHESTER SQUARE, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 200 square 
foot ground sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 200 
square foot ground sign with a proposed 5’ setback from the planned street right of way.  
Table 85.02.05 of the Sign Ordinance requires ground signs over 100 square feet in 
size to be setback more than 30’ from the planned street right of way. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of November 4, 2009 and was 
postponed to this meeting to allow the petitioner the opportunity to stake out the current 
proposed location; and, also to allow the petitioner the opportunity to stake out 
alternative locations that could be considered. 
 
Mr. Jeff Johnson was present.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he had gone out and taken a good look at the site and believes 
that the sign will meet the safety concerns expressed at the last meeting.   
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01c



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                        DECEMBER 2, 2009 

2 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the location staked out on the property is the same location depicted 
on the plans submitted. 
 
Mr. Johnson stated that he believes the stakes are correct and said that he measured 
back 1 foot from the easement. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that it appears that the leading edge of the sign would be approximately 
6’ from the sidewalk. 
 
Mr. Evans asked how far the sign would be south of the driveway. 
 
Mr. Johnson said that the driveway is 15’ from the sidewalk and the sidewalk out to 
Rochester Road is approximately 5 ½’ – 6’ from the driveway.  It is possible that 
modifications will be done to the driveway at the time the road is widened.  The de-
acceleration lane gets wider as it gets closer to Wattles Road.  There is also a very 
mature tree to the south of the property line, which may be removed at the time of 
construction. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Lenderman 
 
MOVED, to grant Jeff Johnson, Harmon Signs, 3946-3978 Rochester, Rochester 
Square, relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 200 square foot ground sign with a proposed 5’ 
setback from the planned street right of way. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• Location of sign will not affect view of oncoming traffic. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Lenderman, Richnak, Stimac, Dziurman 
Absent: 1 – Pylar 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #3 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MARK ZOLTOWSKI, ART ONE SIGNS, 5903-
5953 JOHN R, EMERALD LAKES PLAZA, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 10’ tall 32 
square foot ground sign. 
 
The petitioner was not present.  Mr. Evans indicated that he had spoken to Mr. 
Zoltowski on December 1, 2009 and was told that they planned to withdraw this request.  
Mr. Zoltowski was to provide that request in writing but has not done so at this time.  
This item was moved to the end of the Agenda, Item #6, to allow the petitioner the 
opportunity to be present. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                        DECEMBER 2, 2009 

3 

 

ITEM #4 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  INTERCITY NEON, 578 W. 14 MILE, for relief of 
the Ordinance to erect a 107 square foot sign. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to erect a 
107 square foot wall sign.  This property is zoned B-3.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (4) of the 
Sign Ordinance requires that tenant wall signs be located on the face of the area that is 
occupied by the tenant. The sign is proposed to be located on a portion of the exterior 
wall that is not occupied by the tenant. 
 
Mr. Walter Schafer of Intercity Neon was present and stated that similar variances have 
been granted for this site in the past.  A second floor corridor is behind this wall.  The 
landlord has approved this request and would like to see this sign in that area. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if there was any other location for this sign. Mr. Schafer stated that 
if the sign was placed on the lower level it would not be visible due to the location of 
trees in the area. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if there were other tenants located above the “Famous Labels” sign. 
 
Mr. Schafer explained that there are a number of tenants on the second floor, but there 
is a corridor located behind this wall.  This location is exactly the same as the location 
that has received variances in the past.  
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed.   
 
There are no written approvals or objections on file. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Lenderman 
 
MOVED, to grant Intercity Neon, 578 W. 14 Mile, relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 107 
square foot wall sign. 
 

• Sign will be located on a portion of the exterior wall that is not occupied by the 
tenant. 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Richnak, Stimac, Dziurman, Lenderman 
Absent: 1 – Pylar 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                        DECEMBER 2, 2009 

4 

 

ITEM #5 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  JOHN ROGERS, WILLIAM BEAUMONT 
HOSPITAL, for relief of  Chapter 85 to replace four (4) existing directional ground signs 
with four (4) new directional ground signs; replace two ground  signs; and put up an 
additional wall sign where the sign ordinance limits the site to not more than two signs. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to replace four 
(4) existing directional ground signs which are between 10 and 27 square feet in area 
with four (4) new directional ground signs, each measuring 34 square feet in area.  They 
are also asking to replace an existing 164 square foot ground sign with a new 95 square 
foot sign and to replace an existing 99 square foot ground sign with a new 150 square 
foot sign.  Finally, they are proposing to install a new wall sign measuring 48 square feet 
in area.  This property is zoned C-F (Community Facilities).  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (2) of 
the Sign Ordinance only allows two signs on this property one up to 100 square feet and 
a second up to 36 square feet.  Based upon previous action of the Board there are 
currently more than two (2) signs on this property. 
   
A discussion began regarding the existing signage on this site and the different 
purposes of the signs, e.g. directional, identification.   
 
Mr. John Rogers was present and stated that the main entrance to the hospital has 
been modified and they want to update the directional signs.  The new pedestrian 
bridge affects the view of the sign to the main entrance.  The main entrance sign was 
originally installed on canopies, which have been removed.  The original sign is going to 
be relocated on the main building as the main entrance has a new building addition.  
This area is in a state of flux and they want a new sign that states “main entrance”. 
 
Mr. Richnak said that he is sure Beaumont has a long range plan and asked if any of 
the future plans look to change the front face of what people see when traveling on 
Dequindre. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that to the best of his knowledge there will not be any changes along 
Dequindre. 
 
Mr. Lenderman asked where the signs are located on the Sterling Heights side of this 
site. 
 
Mr. Rogers said that there is a sign located diagonally from Sign #21 and another sign 
located near the driveway that is about 120’ north of the bridge that identifies the office 
building.  There is a building sign on the north, south and east sides of the building. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one (1) written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                        DECEMBER 2, 2009 

5 

 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Stimac asked if the directional signs would be visible to the public driving down 
Dequindre.  Mr. Rogers explained that most of the signs are visible only to the people 
that are already in the complex.   
 
Mr. Richnak stated that this Board would not want signs that are a distraction to people 
traveling on Dequindre. 
 
Mr. Rogers explained that the main ground sign, labeled as #33 in the documents 
submitted, is in a landscaped area, which is planted with flowers on a yearly basis.  Mr. 
Richnak asked how long that sign had been in place.  Mr. Rogers said that he did know, 
but felt that it has been there since the hospital was constructed.  Mr. Rogers also 
stated that some of the signs which had been granted variances are being removed. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked what the reason was for making the signs larger. 
 
Mr. Rogers stated that Ford & Earl designed the new signs and felt that the size of the 
letters on the previous signs was too small. 
 
Mr. Richnak stated that he travels along Dequindre a lot and feels that the signs would 
be appropriately sized.   
 
Mr. Lenderman asked what the hardship was to grant this variance.  Mr. Dziurman 
stated that he thought this site was allowed more signage. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that this property is zoned C-F (Community Facilities) and this site 
has multiple uses.  If there was only one sign it would probably create a hardship in 
trying to locate the specific services that are needed.  Furthermore, this is quite a large 
site and it makes the property unique.  There are a number of internal signs that help 
people find the area that they need, as well as directional signs.   
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Stimac 
 
MOVED, to grant John Rogers, William Beaumont Hospital, 44201 Dequindre, relief of 
Chapter 85 to replace four (4) existing directional ground signs with four (4) new 
directional ground signs 34 square foot each; replace two ground signs =, one 8=95 
square foot and the other 150 square foot; and put up an additional 48 square foot wall 
sign where the sign ordinance limits the site to not more than two signs. 
 

• Variance is not contrary to public interest. 
• Variance will not have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 
• The site is very large and provides numerous different services at different 

locations on the site. 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                        DECEMBER 2, 2009 

6 

 

ITEM #5 – con’t. 
 

• Variance will aid in identification of different areas on this site. 
• Variance will aid citizens in locating what they need. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Lenderman, Richnak, Stimac, Dziurman 
Absent: 1 – Pylar 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
ITEM #6 (ITEM #3) - VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MARK ZOLTOWSKI, ART ONE 
SIGNS, 5903-5953 JOHN R, EMERALD LAKES PLAZA, for relief of Chapter 85 to 
erect a 10’ tall 32 square foot ground sign. 
 
Petitioner is requesting relief of the Ordinance to erect a 10’ tall 32 square foot ground 
sign.  This property is zoned B-2.  Chapter 85.02.05 (C) (4) of the Sign Code allows two 
ground signs.  Currently there are two ground signs on the property; the first measures 
420 square feet in area; the second measures 23 square feet in area.  This request 
exceeds the number of ground signs allowed. 
 
This item first appeared before this Board at the meeting of November 4, 2009 and was 
postponed to allow the petitioner and the property owner to determine if there are other 
considerations available to them that would eliminate the need for a variance; and, also 
to allow the Board members the opportunity to review the other signage on the site. 
 
Motion by Richnak 
Supported by Lenderman 
 
MOVED, to deny the request of Mark Zoltowski, Art One Signs, 5903-5953 John R., 
Emerald Lakes Plaza, for relief of Chapter 85 to erect a 10’ tall 32 square foot ground 
sign. 
 

• Petitioner did not demonstrate a hardship. 
• There is ample identification on property. 
• Variance would have an adverse effect to surrounding property. 

 
Yeas:  4 – Stimac, Dziurman, Lenderman, Richnak 
Absent: 1 – Pylar 
 
MOTION TO DENY REQUEST CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the membership rules for this Board have been changed and 
this would be the last meeting for Mr. Richnak and Mr. Lenderman and/or Mr. Nelson.  
Mr. John Szerlag, the City Manager and three qualified citizens would take their places 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – FINAL                        DECEMBER 2, 2009 

7 

 

starting in January 2010.  Mr. Stimac also stated that although he would no longer be a 
voting member of the Board; he would still act as a liaison. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:15 A.M. 
 
 
 
       
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
  
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on December 8, 2009, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:34 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Adrienne Milner, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-096 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:34 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES – December 1, 2009 Special/Study Meeting 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-097 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 1, 2009 Special/Study 
meeting as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:34 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01d



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 955) – Proposed Axle Tech, 

1400 Rochester Road, East side of Rochester and South of Maple, Section 34, 
Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed Axle Tech project.  He reported on the following site plan deficiencies: 
 
 Clarify proposed tenants and uses. 
 Correct notes on sheet SP 101 that refers to another community. 
 Proposed front setback, lot coverage and landscape area do not meet Zoning 

Ordinance requirements and will require variances or site plan revisions. 
 Provide revised parking calculations based on City requirements. 
 Reduce the site access from Rochester Road to two drives. 
 Provide an 8-foot wide sidewalk along Rochester Road. 
 Provide additional greenbelt. 

 
Mr. Branigan acknowledged support for redevelopment of the site and noted the 
minor comments and clarifications could be addressed prior to Final Site Plan 
approval.  He noted, however, that the site plan exceeds the maximum ground floor 
coverage for all buildings, increases an existing encroachment into the front yard 
setback, and might not meet the minimum landscaping provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Therefore, it is recommended that the Planning Commission postpone 
the request to permit the applicant to seek a variance or variances, and/or to revise 
the proposed site plan to meet minimum Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Kevin Biddison of Biddison Architecture and Design, 4327 Delemere Court, Royal 
Oak, was present.   
 
The petitioner, Dennis Bostick of 1819 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was also present.  
 
Mr. Biddison apologized for the site plan notations relating to another community.  
He said they would seek variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for the 
required setbacks and lot coverage requirements.  Mr. Biddison talked about the 
modification and enhancement of the building façade.  He said they would provide 
the 8-foot sidewalk as requested.  Further, he stated they would study the 
suggestions relating to the site access from Rochester Road and the additional 
greenbelt.  Mr. Biddison noted it would be their preference to keep the southern 
drive because it allows for a passenger drop-off area.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Bostick addressed the tenants.  He explained there currently is a temporary 
tenant on site.  The new tenant, a wholly owned division of General Dynamics, is 
relocating their Axle Tech headquarters to Troy.  Mr. Bostick noted the development 
would be a five-star building, inside and out, and site improvements would be more 
than $3 million. 
 
Mr. Strat expressed support of the proposed development and encouraged the BZA 
to grant any necessary variances.  He encouraged the petitioner to consider 
strongly the suggestions on the site access.   
 
Mr. Ullmann questioned the detention on site. 
 
A discussion followed relating to the existing underground detention. 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the Engineering Department would address and determine the 
detention prior to Final Site Plan approval. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-098 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Axle Tech Addition, located 
on the east side of Rochester, south of Maple, in Section 34, within the M-1 zoning 
district, be postponed, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Come before us with the recommendations for setback requirements, following 

Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) action. 
2. Clarify items raised in the Site Plan Review report. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 956) – Proposed “Our” 
Credit Union, Northwest corner of Rochester and Lovell, Section 3, Currently Zoned 
O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed credit union.  He reported on the following site plan deficiencies: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

4 
 

 Provide dumpster location; reconsider treatment of trash removal. 
 Review site arrangement to ensure optimal efficiency. 
 Consider a reduction of the proposed parking to no more than the required 

number of spaces required by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 Eliminate the divided commercial entrance off Rochester Road. 
 Provide details for ADA ramps. 
 Finalize landscape details for Final Site Plan approval and remove proposed 

prohibited species. 
 Obtain variance for the required screen walls on the north and west sides of 

property. 
 Consider masonry materials in lieu of proposed E.I.F.S. components. 

 
Mr. Branigan acknowledged the proposed project is favorable.  He stated the 
outstanding issues must be addressed prior to Preliminary Site Plan approval and a 
variance must be sought for the required screen walls.  It is recommended that the 
Planning Commission postpone action on the preliminary site plan to allow the 
petitioner to seek the required variance from the BZA and make the noted site plan 
revisions. 
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 560 Whims Lane, Shelby Township, was present 
to represent the petitioner.   
 
Jason Covalle of George Covalle Architect and Associates, 2266 Springport Road, 
Jackson, was also present.   
 
Mr. Mosher addressed trash removal and parking.  He indicated the petitioner does 
not want a dumpster on site, and would like the additional parking to accommodate 
employees and overflow at peak hours.  Mr. Mosher indicated the petitioner would 
go forward with a BZA request for a variance on the required screen walls. 
 
Mr. Covalle clarified the curbside trash pickup would be handled through a private 
company.  He brought in samples of material and colors proposed for the building.  
Mr. Covalle addressed the building orientation in relation to visibility of the ATM.  He 
further addressed the parking and divided driveway entrance off of Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Strat requested the petitioner to provide sealed drawings with their next 
submission and correction of directional notations on the site plan. 
 
Discussion continued on the treatment of trash removal and a designated dumpster 
location. 
 
Mr. Covalle indicated the petitioner has security and maintenance concerns with the 
use of a dumpster.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

5 
 

Mr. Branigan asked that the site plan show a designation for a dumpster, with a 
notation that the petitioner would be contracting with a private company for trash 
removal. 
 
Mr. Hutson commended the petitioner on the building orientation.  
 
Mr. Covalle replied that the building orientation provides a nice opportunity for 
enhanced landscaping and he believes the project will present itself well to the 
public. 
 
Chair Schultz addressed the landscaping and asked if a 36”-42” hedgerow could be 
provided along Rochester Road to act as a shield for the fronts of vehicles. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Discussion continued on the proposed divided driveway entrance off of Rochester 
Road.  Messrs. Branigan and Savidant informed the petitioner that the City‟s Traffic 
Engineer comments are that the divided driveway is not favorable, does not meet 
traffic engineering standards and is potentially unsafe. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-099 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed credit union, located on the northwest corner of Rochester and Lovell, in 
Section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be postponed, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide the applicant the opportunity to seek required wall waiver from the 

Board of Zoning Appeals. 
2. Eliminate the divided entrance on Rochester Road because it does not meet 

traffic engineering standards. 
3. Clarify items raised in the Site Plan Review report. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

6 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (File Number SU 374) – Proposed 

Stone Family Social Services Multi Use Facility, 1401 E. Fourteen Mile Road, North 
side of Fourteen Mile between Indusco Court and Dequindre, Section 36, Currently 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed Stone Family Social Services facility.  He reported on the following site 
plan deficiencies: 
 
 Remove retail shop notation; retail shops not permitted in M-1. 
 Provide information on persons served to calculate parking requirements prior to 

Final Site Plan approval.  Noted parking lot is in need of repair or resurfacing 
and restriping. 

 Provide dumpster location and screening. 
 Provide required street trees; need additional three trees along 14 Mile. 

 
Mr. Branigan acknowledged support of the special use request if there is no resale 
shop.  It is recommended that the Planning Commission grant the special use 
approval, conditioned upon administrative resolution of the noted items. 
 
Pastor Peter Carlson of Berkley Community Church, 895 Wiltshire, Berkley, and 
Director of South Oakland Citizens for the Homeless, 2200 E. 12 Mile Road, Royal 
Oak, was present.  Also present were Roy Watson, 1900 Nakota, Clawson, current 
Executive Director of Welcome Inn, and David McCatty of McCatty Incorporated, 
2355 Grayson Road, Ferndale. 
 
Pastor Carlson gave a brief comparison of services offered by the South Oakland 
County Shelter, the Warming Center and the South Oakland Citizens for the 
Homeless, of which the Welcome Inn is a branch-off.  Pastor Carlson stated the 
South Oakland Citizens for the Homeless has been in existence for 17 years and is 
open only during winter months.  It accommodates 70 to 100 people per night.  The 
intent is to relocate the Welcome Inn currently in Royal Oak to the Troy site. 
 
Mr. Watson said guest hours would be from at 6:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., and staff 
would be gone by 7:30 p.m.  A bus would transport guests to the Royal Oak 
Warming Center at 7:00 p.m.; there are no overnight stays.  A security guard and 
case manager are always present on site.  Mr. Watson shared the routine daily 
operation of the facility.  He indicated the capacity averages 60 to 65 guests; a 
maximum of 85 to 100 guests.  Mr. Watson stated that the guests mostly stay 
indoors, with the exception for the accommodation of smokers.  He said they have 
never experienced any criminal activity on the part of the guests.  Mr. Watson 
addressed the policy on contraband and the success rate of the facility.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

7 
 

Mr. Maxwell introduced correspondence received from George Perich, Human 
Resource Manager of Valiant International.  The correspondence addresses several 
concerns with the proposed use. 
 
Mr. McCatty said he talked with representatives of Valiant International to assure 
them their concerns were not valid.  Mr. McCatty said there are numerous indoor 
activities for the guests and a full-time security guard on staff.  He indicated that the 
resale shop is for guests only at no charge for the clothing.  He addressed various 
services offered by the multi use facility.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
George Perich of Valiant International, Inc., 1511 E. Fourteen Mile Road, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Perich would like assurance that the proposed facility has adequate 
security, to mitigate the concern their company has for their employees and 
customers.  He said their building is highly trafficked from the early hours of 6:30 
a.m. until midnight.   
 
There was discussion among the members and representatives of the petitioner 
with respect to the number of security guards on staff and the ratio of staff and 
volunteers to the number of guests. 
 
Mr. McCatty addressed the current economic conditions with respect to the guests 
in need of a facility of this type.  He indicated they would do whatever necessary to 
satisfy any concerns for security. 
 
Edmond Spillers of 774 Coachman Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Spillers, a 
business owner in the area, spoke favorably of the proposed facility. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hutson shared his personal positive experiences with the South Oakland 
County Shelter. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-100 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval, pursuant to Section 28.30.13 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Social Service Facility, located on 
the north side of Fourteen Mile, between Indusco Court and Dequindre, in Section 
36, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

8 
 

1. Verify that the application meets off-street parking requirements prior to Final 
Site Plan approval. 

2. Provide the required number of greenbelt trees along Maple and Indusco, as 
required by Section 39.70.02. 

3. No public resale shop shall be operated in the facility. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 
8. SITE CONDOMINIUM PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Hidden 

Parc Site Condominium, 30 units/lots proposed, West side of John R between 
Wattles and Long Lake, Section 14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed Hidden Parc Site Condominium.  He reported on the following site plan 
deficiencies.   
 
 Expand the width of unit 22 to meet minimum requirements.   
 Rename the proposed Luisa Drive. 
 Add a “T” turnaround or west “eyebrow” on the west side of the existing Luisa 

Drive “stub” street. 
 Clarify trees to be removed and replace proposed trees to an appropriate 

species as noted by the City‟s Landscape Analyst.   
 Address specific site plan notations, as addressed under Submittal 

Requirements in the Planning Consultant report dated December 3, 2009.     
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the significant revisions from the previously approved site 
plan; i.e., number of units, emergency vehicle access and connections to John R. 
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 560 Whims Lane, Shelby Township, was present 
to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher gave a brief history of the property.  He 
addressed the cul de sacs, phasing of the project as relates to infrastructure, 
stormwater management, lighting and landscaping.   
 
It was brought to the attention of the Planning Consultant that the plans in front of 
the Planning Commission members were different than the plan being addressed by 
the Planning Consultant.   
 
Mr. Mosher indicated the minor revisions made to the plans distributed to the 
members relate to street names and the phase line. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

9 
 

Messrs. Branigan and Savidant addressed recent departmental changes in the site 
plan review process.  Mr. Savidant apologized for the confusion. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Stormwater management. 
 Development design standards. 
 Pre-application meetings with applicants. 

 
Mr. Mosher said the intent of the petitioner is to move quickly on the project, to build 
two-story homes in the range of 3,000 square feet and to leave as many trees as 
possible for a natural buffer.  He indicated every effort would be made to preserve 
trees. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Paul Fitzgerald of 4698 Whitesell Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Fitzgerald said he was 
glad to hear comments this evening with respect to saving trees.  He addressed 
preservation of the natural landscape, stormwater management, access drives, the 
depressed housing market and development phases of the project. 
 
Neal Harris of 4762 Whitesell Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Harris expressed 
appreciation for the cooperation and responses he received from Mr. Savidant through 
email and at the department counter.  Mr. Harris addressed preservation of the natural 
landscape and the depressed housing market. 
 
David Evans of 4782 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Evans said he would welcome 
any improvement to the property because it has been abandoned and an eyesore for 
years.  Mr. Evans addressed the infrastructure and development phases of the project 
and asked the distance from the first street south of the party store in relation to his 
home. 
 
Mr. Branigan replied approximately 125 feet from property line to the drive. 
 
Chair Schultz encouraged Mr. Evans to contact the Planning Department during 
regular business hours for further information. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
There was discussion on stormwater management and development design 
standards. 
 
Christopher Cousino of 12955 - 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, was present.  Mr. 
Cousino, the property owner, said he would consider alternatives on stormwater 
management.  He stated it is not his intent to clear cut the property.  Mr. Cousino 
said he would like to work cohesively with the Planning Commission and 
Engineering Department.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

10 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-12-101 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Hidden Parc Site Condominium, including 30 units, 
located north of Welling on the west side of John R, Section 14, within the R-1C 
zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Clarification of items raised in the Site Condominium Report prior to 

consideration by City Council. 
 
FURTHERMORE, That the following design recommendations are provided to 
City Management: 
 
1. Require discussions with the petitioner, the Planning Department and the 

Engineering Department to explore innovative stormwater techniques and 
materials to preserve a greater number of trees, especially in the rear yard lots. 

2. Clarification of items in the Site Condominium Report, inclusive of clarifying 
phasing of the project and treatment of the turnaround of Phase 1. 

3. Potential for an eyebrow to assist in the turnaround on Welling and Luisa south 
of the property on the west side. 

 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 009) – Proposed First Amendment to the 

Development Agreement, The Pavilions of Troy Planned Unit Development, 
Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief review and status of the proposed development.  He 
noted the proposed draft Amendment to the Development Agreement on tonight‟s 
agenda is for informational purposes only.  There is no action required by the 
Planning Commission.  Mr. Savidant indicated that City Council could act upon the 
proposed Amendment to the Development Agreement without input from the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Chair Schultz stated the Planning Commission received the proposed draft 
Amendment late in the day and acknowledged there has been very limited time for 
review by the members.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

11 
 

Mr. Forsyth reviewed three concerns with a previous draft of the Amendment to the 
Development Agreement. 
 Potential for vacation of Cunningham Drive; partial, full, or modification. 
 Omission of arbitration paragraph, at request of applicant. 
 Revisions to Paragraph 30 that relates to construction of residential. 

 
Mr. Forsyth summarized Paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of the most recent proposed draft 
Amendment.   
 Construction of 138 residential units in second phase of construction. 
 Completion of underground utilities for residential phase no later than three 

years after Certificate of Occupancy received for first phase of retail 
construction. 

 Owner may request one time extension up to three years. 
 Owner agrees to convey free and clear title of seven acre +/- parcel should 

Owner not develop residential phase according to and within time specified in 
Amendment. 

 
Mr. Forsyth indicated some details of the Amendment need to be ironed out before 
presenting the draft Amendment to City Council at their December 21, 2009 Regular 
meeting.  
 
There was discussion on the following: 
 Proposed retail improvements. 
 Original Concept Development Plan (CDP) and approval process of PUD. 
 Negotiations/discussions between City Management and applicant. 
 Location, type and style of residential development. 
 Compromise on mixed use concept of PUD development. 
 Opposition to development as proposed. 
 Lack of trust in applicant. 
 Communication with City Council on status of project. 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-102 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission strongly opposes any amendments to 
the PUD 009 Development Agreement as it may allow the property to be developed 
in a way that is inconsistent with the original Concept Development Plan (CDP). 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson asked that both the previous Resolution [Resolution #PC-2009-10-086, 
October 13, 2009 Planning Commission Meeting] and this Resolution be forwarded 
to City Council.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – DRAFT DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

12 
 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items on Current Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Branigan complimented the members on the professional and efficient manner 
in which tonight‟s agenda was handled. 
 
There were comments from around the table on the following:   
 Pre-application meetings – mandatory and/or strongly encouraged. 
 „Paperless‟ Planning Commission meetings. 
 Application review process. 
 Format of presentations in Council Chamber. 

 
Mr. Maxwell addressed the status of non-smoking legislation.  Attached to the 
minutes is a communication to the Troy Chamber of Commerce–Hospitality 
Committee, dated November 18, 2009. 
 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:46 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
Kathy L. Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\12-08-09 Regular Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



TROY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE - HOSPITALlTY COMMllTEE -November 18, 2009 

Many Troy citizens have been asking about smoke.-free resIllumnts in the city and how to find them. I asked 
the Chamber to compile a list of smoke-free venues in the city and provide the information to the public. 1 
am here to encowage voluntary smoke.-frce compliance in our city's restaurants. A growing UlJlI)ber ofus 
want to dine in smoke.-free environments. 

STATUS OF NON-SMOKlNG LEGISLATION 

37 states have passed some type of smoking ban. 

The Michigan House passed a measure that banned smoking in resIllumnts and bars that excluded casinos 
and cigar bars. It has been in the Senate for six months but deliberations will begin anytime. Most experts 
agree that a smoking ban will pass in Michigan in 20 IO. 

A 200 I Michigan Court ofAppeals ruling prevents local mllllicipalities from enacting their own smoking 
bans. 

WHY ARE THERE SMOKlNG BANS? 

An extensive body of research exists that demonstrates the harmful effects ofsecond-hand smoke. Studies 
have shown that second-hand smoke can be equivalent to 1 cigarette per halfhour to the non-smoker. A 
non-smoker working in a smoking environment can inhale the equivalent ofone.-halfpack of cigarettes per 
shift, according to another study. 

Smoking is the leading cause of preventable death in the United States. 

Smoking decreases a person's life expectancy by an average of 14 years. 

MICHIGAN'S DEMOGRAPHICS ARE CHANGlNG 

The % of smokers has dropped below 20"10 of the population for the first time. All states except Oldahoma 
are experiencing declines in the numbers ofsmokers. Michigan is a few % points higher than the national 
average, but is among the leaders in attempts to quit. 

The only segment ofMichigan's population that is gmwing is the 65 and over group, the one that has the 
fewest smokers. 

PROMOTE VOLUNTARY NON-SMOKlNG PROGRAMS 

I would encowage businesses to be proactive in instituting some form ofvoluntary compliance, as chances 
are excellent a state.-wide ban will pass next year. Restaurants could run promotions involving New Year's 
resolutions to quit smoking, hold non-smoking wine tasting or chocolate tasting events, etc. to advertise 
their non-smoking status. Partial compliance would be great, too, if there were non-smoking days or non
smoking happy hoW"S available. There are customers who would greatly appreciate these accommodations. 

Respectfully suhmItted by: 

Mark Maxwell 
Troy Planning Commissioner 
\vw"1N .maxwe!Jness.Qrg 
www.1ivelonglivewell.org 

http:www.1ivelonglivewell.org


PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

1 
 

The Regular Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 7:30 p.m. on December 8, 2009, in the Council Chamber of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: 
Donald Edmunds 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica 
Robert Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
Mark J. Vleck (arrived 7:34 p.m.) 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Christopher Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
Zachary Branigan, Carlisle/Wortman Associates, Inc. 
Adrienne Milner, Student Representative 
Kathy Czarnecki, Recording Secretary 
 
 

2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-096 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Sanzica 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:34 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
3. MINUTES – December 1, 2009 Special/Study Meeting 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-097 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the minutes of the December 1, 2009 Special/Study 
meeting as prepared. 
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck (arrived 7:34 p.m.) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01e



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

2 
 

4. PUBLIC COMMENTS – Items not on the Agenda 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 

 
PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEWS 

 
5. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 955) – Proposed Axle Tech, 

1400 Rochester Road, East side of Rochester and South of Maple, Section 34, 
Currently Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed Axle Tech project.  He reported on the following site plan deficiencies: 
 
 Clarify proposed tenants and uses. 
 Correct notes on sheet SP 101 that refers to another community. 
 Proposed front setback, lot coverage and landscape area do not meet Zoning 

Ordinance requirements and will require variances or site plan revisions. 
 Provide revised parking calculations based on City requirements. 
 Reduce the site access from Rochester Road to two drives. 
 Provide an 8-foot wide sidewalk along Rochester Road. 
 Provide additional greenbelt. 

 
Mr. Branigan acknowledged support for redevelopment of the site and noted the 
minor comments and clarifications could be addressed prior to Final Site Plan 
approval.  He noted, however, that the site plan exceeds the maximum ground floor 
coverage for all buildings, increases an existing encroachment into the front yard 
setback, and might not meet the minimum landscaping provisions of the Zoning 
Ordinance.  Therefore, it is recommended that the Planning Commission postpone 
the request to permit the applicant to seek a variance or variances, and/or to revise 
the proposed site plan to meet minimum Zoning Ordinance requirements. 
 
Kevin Biddison of Biddison Architecture and Design, 4327 Delemere Court, Royal 
Oak, was present.   
 
The petitioner, Dennis Bostick of 1819 E. Big Beaver, Troy, was also present.  
 
Mr. Biddison apologized for the site plan notations relating to another community.  
He said they would seek variances from the Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) for the 
required setbacks and lot coverage requirements.  Mr. Biddison talked about the 
modification and enhancement of the building façade.  He said they would provide 
the 8-foot sidewalk as requested.  Further, he stated they would study the 
suggestions relating to the site access from Rochester Road and the additional 
greenbelt.  Mr. Biddison noted it would be their preference to keep the southern 
drive because it allows for a passenger drop-off area.  



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

3 
 

Mr. Bostick addressed the tenants.  He explained there currently is a temporary 
tenant on site.  The new tenant, a wholly owned division of General Dynamics, is 
relocating their Axle Tech headquarters to Troy.  Mr. Bostick noted the development 
would be a five-star building, inside and out, and site improvements would be more 
than $3 million. 
 
Mr. Strat expressed support of the proposed development and encouraged the BZA 
to grant any necessary variances.  He encouraged the petitioner to consider 
strongly the suggestions on the site access.   
 
Mr. Ullmann questioned the detention on site.  There was no detention shown. 
 
A discussion followed relating to the existing underground detention. 
 
Mr. Savidant stated the Engineering Department would address and determine the 
detention prior to Final Site Plan approval. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-098 
Moved by: Strat 
Seconded by: Maxwell 
 
RESOLVED, That Preliminary Site Plan Approval, pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of 
the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Axle Tech Addition, located 
on the east side of Rochester, south of Maple, in Section 34, within the M-1 zoning 
district, be postponed, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Come before us with the recommendations for setback requirements, following 

Board of Zoning Appeals (BZA) action. 
2. Clarify items raised in the Site Plan Review report. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

6. PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW (File Number SP 956) – Proposed “Our” 
Credit Union, Northwest corner of Rochester and Lovell, Section 3, Currently Zoned 
O-1 (Office Building) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed credit union.  He reported on the following site plan deficiencies: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

4 
 

 Provide dumpster location; reconsider treatment of trash removal. 
 Review site arrangement to ensure optimal efficiency. 
 Consider a reduction of the proposed parking to no more than the required 

number of spaces required by the Zoning Ordinance. 
 Eliminate the divided commercial entrance off Rochester Road. 
 Provide details for ADA ramps. 
 Finalize landscape details for Final Site Plan approval and remove proposed 

prohibited species. 
 Obtain variance for the required screen walls on the north and west sides of 

property. 
 Consider masonry materials in lieu of proposed E.I.F.S. components. 

 
Mr. Branigan acknowledged the proposed project is favorable.  He stated the 
outstanding issues must be addressed prior to Preliminary Site Plan approval and a 
variance must be sought for the required screen walls.  It is recommended that the 
Planning Commission postpone action on the preliminary site plan to allow the 
petitioner to seek the required variance from the BZA and make the noted site plan 
revisions. 
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 560 Whims Lane, Shelby Township, was present 
to represent the petitioner.   
 
Jason Covalle of George Covalle Architect and Associates, 2266 Springport Road, 
Jackson, was also present.   
 
Mr. Mosher addressed trash removal and parking.  He indicated the petitioner does 
not want a dumpster on site, and would like the additional parking to accommodate 
employees and overflow at peak hours.  Mr. Mosher indicated the petitioner would 
go forward with a BZA request for a variance on the required screen walls. 
 
Mr. Covalle clarified the curbside trash pickup would be handled through a private 
company.  He brought in samples of material and colors proposed for the building.  
Mr. Covalle addressed the building orientation in relation to visibility of the ATM.  He 
further addressed the parking and divided driveway entrance off of Rochester Road. 
 
Mr. Strat requested the petitioner to provide sealed drawings with their next 
submission and correction of directional notations on the site plan. 
 
Discussion continued on the treatment of trash removal and a designated dumpster 
location. 
 
Mr. Covalle indicated the petitioner has security and maintenance concerns with the 
use of a dumpster.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

5 
 

Mr. Branigan asked that the site plan show a designation for a dumpster, with a 
notation that the petitioner would be contracting with a private company for trash 
removal. 
 
Mr. Hutson commended the petitioner on the building orientation.  
 
Mr. Covalle replied that the building orientation provides a nice opportunity for 
enhanced landscaping and he believes the project will present itself well to the 
public. 
 
Chair Schultz addressed the landscaping and asked if a 36”-42” hedgerow could be 
provided along Rochester Road to act as a shield for the fronts of vehicles. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
Discussion continued on the proposed divided driveway entrance off of Rochester 
Road.  Messrs. Branigan and Savidant informed the petitioner that the City‟s Traffic 
Engineer comments are that the divided driveway is not favorable, does not meet 
traffic engineering standards and is potentially unsafe. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-099 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Edmunds 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval and Preliminary Site Plan Approval, 
pursuant to Section 03.40.03 of the Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the 
proposed credit union, located on the northwest corner of Rochester and Lovell, in 
Section 3, within the O-1 zoning district, be postponed, subject to the following 
conditions: 
 
1. Provide the applicant the opportunity to seek required wall waiver from the 

Board of Zoning Appeals. 
2. Eliminate the divided entrance on Rochester Road because it does not meet 

traffic engineering standards. 
3. Clarify items raised in the Site Plan Review report. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

6 
 

SPECIAL USE REQUEST 
 
7. PUBLIC HEARING – SPECIAL USE REQUEST (File Number SU 374) – Proposed 

Stone Family Social Services Multi Use Facility, 1401 E. Fourteen Mile Road, North 
side of Fourteen Mile between Indusco Court and Dequindre, Section 36, Currently 
Zoned M-1 (Light Industrial) District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed Stone Family Social Services facility.  He reported on the following site 
plan deficiencies: 
 
 Remove retail shop notation; retail shops not permitted in M-1. 
 Provide information on persons served to calculate parking requirements prior to 

Final Site Plan approval.  Noted parking lot is in need of repair or resurfacing 
and restriping. 

 Provide dumpster location and screening. 
 Provide required street trees; need additional three trees along 14 Mile. 

 
Mr. Branigan acknowledged support of the special use request if there is no resale 
shop.  It is recommended that the Planning Commission grant the special use 
approval, conditioned upon administrative resolution of the noted items. 
 
Pastor Peter Carlson of Berkley Community Church, 895 Wiltshire, Berkley, and 
Director of South Oakland Citizens for the Homeless, 2200 E. 12 Mile Road, Royal 
Oak, was present.  Also present were Roy Watson, 1900 Nakota, Clawson, current 
Executive Director of Welcome Inn, and David McCatty of McCatty Incorporated, 
2355 Grayson Road, Ferndale. 
 
Pastor Carlson gave a brief comparison of services offered by the South Oakland 
County Shelter, the Warming Center and the South Oakland Citizens for the 
Homeless, of which the Welcome Inn is a branch-off.  Pastor Carlson stated the 
South Oakland Citizens for the Homeless has been in existence for 17 years and is 
open only during winter months.  It accommodates 70 to 100 people per night.  The 
intent is to relocate the Welcome Inn currently in Royal Oak to the Troy site. 
 
Mr. Watson said guest hours would be from at 6:30 a.m. to 7:00 p.m., and staff 
would be gone by 7:30 p.m.  A bus would transport guests to the Royal Oak 
Warming Center at 7:00 p.m.; there are no overnight stays.  A security guard and 
case manager are always present on site.  Mr. Watson shared the routine daily 
operation of the facility.  He indicated the capacity averages 60 to 65 guests; a 
maximum of 85 to 100 guests.  Mr. Watson stated that the guests mostly stay 
indoors, with the exception for the accommodation of smokers.  He said they have 
never experienced any criminal activity on the part of the guests.  Mr. Watson 
addressed the policy on contraband and the success rate of the facility.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

7 
 

Mr. Maxwell introduced correspondence received from George Perich, Human 
Resource Manager of Valiant International.  The correspondence addresses several 
concerns with the proposed use. 
 
Mr. McCatty said he talked with representatives of Valiant International to assure 
them their concerns were not valid.  Mr. McCatty said there are numerous indoor 
activities for the guests and a full-time security guard on staff.  He indicated that the 
resale shop is for guests only at no charge for the clothing.  He addressed various 
services offered by the multi use facility.  
 
PUBLIC HEARING OPENED 
 
George Perich of Valiant International, Inc., 1511 E. Fourteen Mile Road, Troy, was 
present.  Mr. Perich would like assurance that the proposed facility has adequate 
security, to mitigate the concern their company has for their employees and 
customers.  He said their building is highly trafficked from the early hours of 6:30 
a.m. until midnight.   
 
There was discussion among the members and representatives of the petitioner 
with respect to the number of security guards on staff and the ratio of staff and 
volunteers to the number of guests. 
 
Mr. McCatty addressed the current economic conditions with respect to the guests 
in need of a facility of this type.  He indicated they would do whatever necessary to 
satisfy any concerns for security. 
 
Edmond Spillers of 774 Coachman Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Spillers, a 
business owner in the area, spoke favorably of the proposed facility. 
 
PUBLIC HEARING CLOSED 
 
Mr. Hutson shared his personal positive experiences with the South Oakland 
County Shelter. 
 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-100 
Moved by: Sanzica 
Seconded by: Ullmann 
 
RESOLVED, That Special Use Approval, pursuant to Section 28.30.13 of the 
Zoning Ordinance, as requested for the proposed Social Service Facility, located on 
the north side of Fourteen Mile, between Indusco Court and Dequindre, in Section 
36, within the M-1 zoning district, be granted, subject to the following conditions: 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

8 
 

1. Verify that the application meets off-street parking requirements prior to Final 
Site Plan approval. 

2. Provide the required number of greenbelt trees along Maple and Indusco, as 
required by Section 39.70.02. 

3. No public resale shop shall be operated in the facility. 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

SITE CONDOMINIUM SITE PLAN 
 
8. SITE CONDOMINIUM PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN REVIEW – Proposed Hidden 

Parc Site Condominium, 30 units/lots proposed, West side of John R between 
Wattles and Long Lake, Section 14, Currently Zoned R-1C (One Family Residential) 
District 
 
Mr. Branigan presented a summary of the preliminary site plan review on the 
proposed Hidden Parc Site Condominium.  He reported on the following site plan 
deficiencies.   
 
 Expand the width of unit 22 to meet minimum requirements.   
 Rename the proposed Luisa Drive. 
 Add a “T” turnaround or west “eyebrow” on the west side of the existing Luisa 

Drive “stub” street. 
 Clarify trees to be removed and replace proposed trees to an appropriate 

species as noted by the City‟s Landscape Analyst.   
 Address specific site plan notations, as addressed under Submittal 

Requirements in the Planning Consultant report dated December 3, 2009.     
 
Mr. Savidant reviewed the significant revisions from the previously approved site 
plan; i.e., number of units, emergency vehicle access and connections to John R. 
 
Bill Mosher of Apex Engineering, 560 Whims Lane, Shelby Township, was present 
to represent the petitioner.  Mr. Mosher gave a brief history of the property.  He 
addressed the cul de sacs, phasing of the project as relates to infrastructure, 
stormwater management, lighting and landscaping.   
 
It was brought to the attention of the Planning Consultant that the plans in front of 
the Planning Commission members were different than the plan being addressed by 
the Planning Consultant.   
 
Mr. Mosher indicated the minor revisions made to the plans distributed to the 
members relate to street names and the phase line. 



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

9 
 

Messrs. Branigan and Savidant addressed recent departmental changes in the site 
plan review process.  Mr. Savidant apologized for the confusion. 
 
Discussion followed on: 
 Stormwater management. 
 Development design standards. 
 Pre-application meetings with applicants. 

 
Mr. Mosher said the intent of the petitioner is to move quickly on the project, to build 
two-story homes in the range of 3,000 square feet and to leave as many trees as 
possible for a natural buffer.  He indicated every effort would be made to preserve 
trees. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the floor for public comment. 
 
Paul Fitzgerald of 4698 Whitesell Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Fitzgerald said he was 
glad to hear comments this evening with respect to saving trees.  He addressed 
preservation of the natural landscape, stormwater management, access drives, the 
depressed housing market and development phases of the project. 
 
Neal Harris of 4762 Whitesell Drive, Troy, was present.  Mr. Harris expressed 
appreciation for the cooperation and responses he received from Mr. Savidant through 
email and at the department counter.  Mr. Harris addressed preservation of the natural 
landscape and the depressed housing market. 
 
David Evans of 4782 John R, Troy, was present.  Mr. Evans said he would welcome 
any improvement to the property because it has been abandoned and an eyesore for 
years.  Mr. Evans addressed the infrastructure and development phases of the project 
and asked the distance from the first street south of the party store in relation to his 
home. 
 
Mr. Branigan replied approximately 125 feet from property line to the drive. 
 
Chair Schultz encouraged Mr. Evans to contact the Planning Department during 
regular business hours for further information. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the floor for public comment. 
 
There was discussion on stormwater management and development design 
standards. 
 
Christopher Cousino of 12955 - 23 Mile Road, Shelby Township, was present.  Mr. 
Cousino, the property owner, said he would consider alternatives on stormwater 
management.  He stated it is not his intent to clear cut the property.  Mr. Cousino 
said he would like to work cohesively with the Planning Commission and 
Engineering Department.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

10 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-12-101 
Moved by: Tagle 
Seconded by: Hutson 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission recommends to City Council that the 
Preliminary Site Plan (Section 34.30.00 Unplatted One-Family Residential 
Development), as requested for Hidden Parc Site Condominium, including 30 units, 
located north of Welling on the west side of John R, Section 14, within the R-1C 
zoning district be granted, subject to the following conditions: 
 
1. Clarification of items raised in the Site Condominium Report prior to 

consideration by City Council. 
 
FURTHERMORE, That the following design recommendations are provided to 
City Management: 
 
1. Require discussions with the petitioner, the Planning Department and the 

Engineering Department to explore innovative stormwater techniques and 
materials to preserve a greater number of trees, especially in the rear yard lots. 

2. Clarification of items in the Site Condominium Report, inclusive of clarifying 
phasing of the project and treatment of the turnaround of Phase 1. 

3. Potential for an eyebrow to assist in the turnaround on Welling and Luisa south 
of the property on the west side. 

 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
 

OTHER BUSINESS 
 
9. PLANNED UNIT DEVELOPMENT (PUD 009) – Proposed First Amendment to the 

Development Agreement, The Pavilions of Troy Planned Unit Development, 
Northwest corner of Big Beaver and Coolidge, Section 19, Currently Zoned PUD 9 
 
Mr. Savidant gave a brief review and status of the proposed development.  He 
noted the proposed draft Amendment to the Development Agreement on tonight‟s 
agenda is for informational purposes only.  There is no action required by the 
Planning Commission.  Mr. Savidant indicated that City Council could act upon the 
proposed Amendment to the Development Agreement without input from the 
Planning Commission. 
 
Chair Schultz stated the Planning Commission received the proposed draft 
Amendment late in the day and acknowledged there has been very limited time for 
review by the members.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING – FINAL DECEMBER 8, 2009 
  
 
 

11 
 

Mr. Forsyth reviewed three concerns with a previous draft of the Amendment to the 
Development Agreement. 
 Potential for vacation of Cunningham Drive; partial, full, or modification. 
 Omission of arbitration paragraph, at request of applicant. 
 Revisions to Paragraph 30 that relates to construction of residential. 

 
Mr. Forsyth summarized Paragraphs 3, 4 and 5 of the most recent proposed draft 
Amendment.   
 Construction of 138 residential units in second phase of construction. 
 Completion of underground utilities for residential phase no later than three 

years after Certificate of Occupancy received for first phase of retail 
construction. 

 Owner may request one time extension up to three years. 
 Owner agrees to convey free and clear title of seven acre +/- parcel should 

Owner not develop residential phase according to and within time specified in 
Amendment. 

 
Mr. Forsyth indicated some details of the Amendment need to be ironed out before 
presenting the draft Amendment to City Council at their December 21, 2009 Regular 
meeting.  
 
There was discussion on the following: 
 Proposed retail improvements. 
 Original Concept Development Plan (CDP) and approval process of PUD. 
 Negotiations/discussions between City Management and applicant. 
 Location, type and style of residential development. 
 Compromise on mixed use concept of PUD development. 
 Opposition to development as proposed. 
 Lack of trust in applicant. 
 Communication with City Council on status of project. 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-102 
Moved by: Vleck 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission strongly opposes any amendments to 
the PUD 009 Development Agreement as it may allow the property to be developed 
in a way that is inconsistent with the original Concept Development Plan (CDP). 
 
Yes: All present (9) 
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Mr. Hutson asked that both the previous Resolution [Resolution #PC-2009-10-086, 
October 13, 2009 Planning Commission Meeting] and this Resolution be forwarded 
to City Council.   



PLANNING COMMISSION REGULAR MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER B, 2009 

10. PUBLIC COMMENTS - Items on Current Agenda 

There was no one present who wished to speak. 

11. PLANNING COMMISSION COMMENTS 

Mr. Branigan complimented the members on the professional and efficient manner 
in which tonight's agenda was handled. 

There were comments from around the table on the following: 
• Pre-application meetings - mandatory and/or strongly encouraged. 
• 'Paperless' Planning Commission meetings. 
• Application review process. 
• Format of presentations in Council Chamber. 

Mr. Maxwell addressed the status of non-smoking legislation. Attached to the 
minutes is a communication to the Troy Chamber of Commerce-Hospitality 
Committee, dated November 18,2009. 

The Regular Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 10:46 p.m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

Kathy L. Ciarnecki, RCOrding Secretary 

G:\Plannlng Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\FinaJ\12-08-09 Regular Meetfng_FinaLdoc 

12 




TROY CHAMBER OF COMMERCE - HOSPITALlTY COMMllTEE -November 18, 2009 

Many Troy citizens have been asking about smoke.-free resIllumnts in the city and how to find them. I asked 
the Chamber to compile a list of smoke-free venues in the city and provide the information to the public. 1 
am here to encowage voluntary smoke.-frce compliance in our city's restaurants. A growing UlJlI)ber ofus 
want to dine in smoke.-free environments. 

STATUS OF NON-SMOKlNG LEGISLATION 

37 states have passed some type of smoking ban. 

The Michigan House passed a measure that banned smoking in resIllumnts and bars that excluded casinos 
and cigar bars. It has been in the Senate for six months but deliberations will begin anytime. Most experts 
agree that a smoking ban will pass in Michigan in 20 IO. 

A 200 I Michigan Court ofAppeals ruling prevents local mllllicipalities from enacting their own smoking 
bans. 

WHY ARE THERE SMOKlNG BANS? 

An extensive body of research exists that demonstrates the harmful effects ofsecond-hand smoke. Studies 
have shown that second-hand smoke can be equivalent to 1 cigarette per halfhour to the non-smoker. A 
non-smoker working in a smoking environment can inhale the equivalent ofone.-halfpack of cigarettes per 
shift, according to another study. 

Smoking is the leading cause of preventable death in the United States. 

Smoking decreases a person's life expectancy by an average of 14 years. 

MICHIGAN'S DEMOGRAPHICS ARE CHANGlNG 

The % of smokers has dropped below 20"10 of the population for the first time. All states except Oldahoma 
are experiencing declines in the numbers ofsmokers. Michigan is a few % points higher than the national 
average, but is among the leaders in attempts to quit. 

The only segment ofMichigan's population that is gmwing is the 65 and over group, the one that has the 
fewest smokers. 

PROMOTE VOLUNTARY NON-SMOKlNG PROGRAMS 

I would encowage businesses to be proactive in instituting some form ofvoluntary compliance, as chances 
are excellent a state.-wide ban will pass next year. Restaurants could run promotions involving New Year's 
resolutions to quit smoking, hold non-smoking wine tasting or chocolate tasting events, etc. to advertise 
their non-smoking status. Partial compliance would be great, too, if there were non-smoking days or non
smoking happy hoW"S available. There are customers who would greatly appreciate these accommodations. 

Respectfully suhmItted by: 

Mark Maxwell 
Troy Planning Commissioner 
\vw"1N .maxwe!Jness.Qrg 
www.1ivelonglivewell.org 

http:www.1ivelonglivewell.org


campbellld
Text Box
M-01f







PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 15, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 6:30 p.m. on December 15, 2009 in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica (arrived at 6:35 p.m.) 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-103 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica (arrived at 6:35 p.m.), Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 241) 

– Establishment of Zoning Administrator 
 
Mr. Savidant presented the item.  There was general discussion on the item. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the Public Hearing. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01g



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - DRAFT DECEMBER 15, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 2 - 
 

Resolution # PC-2009-12-104 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Strat 
 
RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles 22, 23, 28, 41, 42 and 43 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City 
of Troy which establishes the position of Zoning Administrator and assigns the 
responsibilities of the Zoning Administrator, be amended as printed on the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment.  
 
Yes: All present (8) 
Absent: Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
5. PUBLIC COMMENT – For Items Not on the Agenda 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
 

ADJOURN 
 
 
The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 6:37 p.m. 
 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
 
       
Robert M. Schultz, Chair 
 
 
 
 
       
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
G:\Planning Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Draft\12-15-09 Special Meeting_Draft.doc 
 



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAL/STUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 15, 2009 
  
 
 

 - 1 - 
 

The Special Meeting of the Troy City Planning Commission was called to order by Chair 
Schultz at 6:30 p.m. on December 15, 2009 in the Council Chambers of the Troy City Hall. 
 
1. ROLL CALL 

 
Present: Absent: 
Donald Edmunds Mark J. Vleck 
Michael W. Hutson 
Mark Maxwell 
Philip Sanzica (arrived at 6:35 p.m.) 
Robert M. Schultz 
Thomas Strat 
John J. Tagle 
Lon M. Ullmann 
 
Also Present: 
R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
Allan Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 

 
 
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 

 
Resolution # PC-2009-12-103 
Moved by: Edmunds 
Seconded by: Tagle 
 
RESOLVED, To approve the Agenda as published. 
 
Yes:  All present (7) 
Absent: Sanzica (arrived at 6:35 p.m.), Vleck 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

 
 
3. PUBLIC COMMENTS 

 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 

 
 
4. PUBLIC HEARING - ZONING ORDINANCE TEXT AMENDMENT (File Number ZOTA 241) 

– Establishment of Zoning Administrator 
 
Mr. Savidant presented the item.  There was general discussion on the item. 
 
Chair Schultz opened the Public Hearing. 
 
There was no one present who wished to speak. 
 
Chair Schultz closed the Public Hearing. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01h



PLANNING COMMISSION SPECIAUSTUDY MEETING - FINAL DECEMBER 15, 2009 

Resolution # PC-2009·12·104 
Moved by: Maxwell 
Seconded by: Strat 

RESOLVED, That the Planning Commission hereby recommends to the City 
Council that Articles 22, 23, 28, 41, 42 and 43 of Chapter 39 of the Code of the City 
of Troy which establishes the position of Zoning Administrator and assigns the 
responsibilities of the Zoning Administrator, be amended as printed on the proposed 
Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment. 

Yes: All present (8) 

Absent: Vleck 


MOTION CARRIED 

5, PUBLIC COMMENT - For Items Not on the Agenda 

There was no one present who wished to speak, 

ADJOURN 

The Special/Study Meeting of the Planning Commission adjourned at 6:37 p,m. 

Respectfully submitted, 

~. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 

G:\Plannlng Commission Minutes\2009 PC Minutes\Final\12-15-09 Special Meetlng_FinaLdoc 

-2



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES – Final December 17, 2009 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held December 17, 2009, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:10 
AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:  Timothy Dewan, 

Minutes: Regular Meeting of September 25, 2009  
 
Resolution #EC-2009-12-012 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of September 25, 2009, are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Consolidation of Precincts 
 
Resolution #EC-2009-12-013 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Bartholomew 

 
RESOLVED, That the Election Commission of the City of Troy hereby AUTHORIZES 
that applicable precincts servicing qualified electors in the City of Troy be 
CONSOLIDATED for the February 23, 2010 Special Election in accordance with MCL 
168.659. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
Absent: Dewan 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:11 AM. 
 
 
 Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 

City Clerk 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01i



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 6, 2010 

1 

 

The Chairman, Ted Dziurman, called the meeting of the Building Code Board of 
Appeals to order at 8:35 A.M. on Wednesday, January 6, 2010 in the Lower Level 
Conference Room of the Troy City Hall. 
 
PRESENT:   Ted Dziurman 
    John Szerlag, City Manager 
    Michael Pylar 
 
ALSO PRESENT:  Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning 
    Paul Evans, Assistant Zoning Administrator 
    Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary 
 
ITEM #1 – APPROVAL OF MINUTES – MEETING OF DECEMBER 2, 2009 
 
Motion by Pylar 
Supported by Szerlag 
 
MOVED, to approve the minutes of the meeting of December 2, 2009 as written. 
 
Yeas:   All – 3 
 
MOTION TO APPROVE MINUTES CARRIED 
 
ITEM #2 – VARIANCE REQUESTED.  MIKE TWYDELL, 735 JOHN R, for relief of 
Chapter 85 to install six (6) wall signs each measuring 100 square feet in area resulting 
in a total of 1,031 square feet of wall signs where 442 square feet of wall signage is 
permitted. 
 
Mr. Stimac explained that the petitioner is requesting relief of Chapter 85 to install six 
(6) wall signs each measuring 100 square feet in area.  This property is located in the B-
3 (General Business) Zoning District.  Chapter 85.02.05 (c) (4) of the Sign Ordinance 
allows any number of wall signs not to exceed 10% of the front area of the structure.  
Based on the size of this building, 442 square feet of wall signage is allowed.  Sign 
permits have already been issued for seven (7) wall signs totaling 431 square feet.  The 
petitioner is proposing to install an additional 600 square feet of wall signs resulting in a 
total of 1,031 square feet of wall signage. 
 
Michael Twydell of Twydell Signs and Katie Darr of Henry Ford OptimEyes were 
present.  Mr. Twydell stated that they are proposing to put up photographs on the 
building and would agree to any stipulation that would not allow verbiage or logos on 
these photographs.  This building has the appearance of an industrial building and they 
are looking to inform the public that this is a retail store.  People have had trouble 
identifying this site due to the lack of signage.  These proposed signs would be more 
aesthetically pleasing and lead to a more retail looking site.  Furthermore, there are a 
number of trees around this building that also reduce visibility. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01j



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 6, 2010 

2 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Ms. Darr stated that one side of this building is the professional side, which houses a 
number of doctors, including retina specialists and pediatric ophthalmologists and their 
customers range from infancy through seniors.  The other side of the building is the 
retail area and they sell glasses, as well as contacts.   
 
Mr. Szerlag stated that he has lived in Troy on and off for seventeen years and had a 
hard time finding this building. 
 
The Chairman opened the Public Hearing.  No one wished to be heard and the Public 
Hearing was closed. 
 
There is one written approval on file.  There are no written objections on file. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that they would be perfectly happy with the stipulation that these 
signs would not change into electronic signs in the future. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
 
MOVED, to grant Mike Twydell, 735 John R. relief of Chapter 85 to install six (6) wall 
signs each measuring 100 square feet in area resulting in a total of 1,031 square feet of 
wall signs where 442 square feet of wall signage is permitted. 
 
Motion failed for lack of a Second. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that in the past this Board had heard a very similar request from a 
car wash and that request was denied.  Mr. Dziurman went on to say that this previous 
petitioner had put in windows and put his signage inside the windows.  Mr. Dziurman 
stated that in his opinion this is a very large variance request. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that these photographs would improve the look of this building and at 
this point it would be very difficult to add windows. 
 
Ms. Darr indicated that they could not add windows because the location of the exam 
rooms adjacent to these walls and the need to be able to control the lighting in the exam 
rooms. 
 
Mr. Dziurman stated that he would not be surprised to see ABC Warehouse come to 
this Board with a similar request of this variance was granted. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that the site for ABC Warehouse is different in that it is visible to 
traffic on all four sides. 
 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 6, 2010 

3 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Mr. Pylar stated that he had a hard time finding this building as the trees were blocking 
his view.  Mr. Pylar asked the petitioner how additional signage would alleviate that 
problem.  The trees will still grow larger and he does not see how the signage will help.   
Mr. Pylar also asked the petitioner if they could reduce the number of signs they are 
asking for as this request is for a very large variance. 
 
Ms. Darr stated that they are using these murals to help identify the building and she 
believes the different colors will help people notice this building. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if the trees were in the right of way or on the property. 
 
Mr. Stimac said that he was not sure, but that it was possible that the trees were 
required by the Zoning Ordinance in order for this site to meet the landscape 
requirements. 
 
Mr. Twydell said that he thought the trees were located on their property. 
 
A discussion began about the possibility of using other specimens of trees and/or 
landscaping to meet the landscape requirement. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if the petitioner would agree to maintain the existing foliage and Mr. 
Twydell stated that they would. 
 
Mr. Pylar stated that he has a problem with the amount of square footage the petitioner 
is asking for as it is more than double than what is allowed by the Ordinance. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that the photographs have to be that size in order to make an impact 
as they are spread over the building.  Mr. Twydell said that he did not believe they 
should be considered signage. 
 
Mr. Dziurman asked if any of the signs could be eliminated in order to reduce the size of 
this request. 
 
Ms. Darr said that this is a huge building and their idea was for these photographs to 
have the greatest impact to people driving by.  Ms. Darr said that they feel this is the 
appropriate amount of signage. 
 
Mr. Twydell stated that they could put three signs across on the Chicago side of the 
building and put one sign on the south elevation. 
 
Mr. Szerlag asked if Mr. Dziurman would rather see four signs than six signs and Mr. 
Dziurman confirmed that he would. 
 



BUILDING CODE BOARD OF APPEALS – DRAFT                            JANUARY 6, 2010 

4 

 

ITEM #2 – con’t. 
 
Motion by Szerlag 
Supported by Pylar 
 
MOVED, to grant Mike Twydell, 735 John R. relief of Chapter 85 to install four (4) wall 
signs each measuring 100 square feet in area resulting in a total of 831 square feet of 
wall signs where 442 square feet of wall signage is permitted. 
 

 Additional signage not to exceed 400 square feet. 
 No verbiage or logos would be put on these murals. 
 Existing trees would be maintained. 

 
Yeas:  All – 3 
 
MOTION TO GRANT VARIANCE CARRIED 
 
Mr. Stimac informed the Board members that there are still two vacancies on this Board 
and City Council is in the process of reviewing applications.  The perspective applicants 
need to have some knowledge of building and construction.  Anyone interested in 
serving on this Board should contact either the City Clerk’s office for an application or 
Mr. Stimac.  The Board is required to have five members; therefore, in order to have a 
quorum at least three members must be present. 
 
The Building Code Board of Appeals meeting adjourned at 9:00 A.M. 
 
 
 
 
              
       Ted Dziurman, Chairman 
 
 
 
              
       Pam Pasternak, Recording Secretary   
 



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                               Jan. 7, 2010 

1 

Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens 
 

A regular meeting of the Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens was held on Thursday,  
Jan. 7, 2010 at the Troy Community Center.  Chair David Ogg called the meeting to order at 1 
P.M. 
 
Present: James Berar, Member     
 David Ogg, Member  
 Bud Black, Member  
 JoAnn Thompson, Member 
 Jo Rhoads, Member  
 Carla Vaughan, Staff 
 
Abesnt: Dorothy Pietron, Pauline Noce - excused 
 
Visitors:  None  
 
Approval of Minutes   
 
Resolution # SC-2010-01-001 
Moved by Rhoads 
Seconded by Black 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of Oct. 1, 2009 be approved as submitted.   
 
Yes: 5  
No:  0  
 
MOTION CARRIED 
 
Visitor Comments 
 
None 
 
OLD BUSINESS 
 
None 
 
NEW BUSINESS 
 
School District Finance Report:  Jim Berar led a discussion about the Troy School District’s 
recent finance report.   
 
Suggestion Box:  Carla reported that here was a complaint about the Mental Health bingo on 
November 10 which Carla passed on in a letter to the executive director of the Oakland 
County Community Mental Health Authority, the agency that sponsored the program.  There 
was also a complaint about not having an escort on the Battle Creek Casino trip.  This trip was 
offered through a travel agent and we would have had to buy a trip for the escort, raising the 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01k



ADVISORY COMMITTEE FOR SENIOR CITIZENS – DRAFT                               Jan. 7, 2010 

2 

fee for the seniors.  The bus driver was also the escort for the trip but if this was not sufficient, 
we will have an escort in the future.    
 
 
REPORTS 
 
Park Board:  No report.  
 
Senior Program:  Carla reported that over 1900 flu shots were given at the Community 
Center on October 15 – a record number.  196 people participated in document shredding on 
Oct. 21.    66 people received free leaf raking which is offered in partnership with Troy People 
Concerned.  There was a good turn-out for the diabetes prevention workshop in October with 
48 people attending.  Focus Hope food recipients received a gift at the December distribution 
courtesy of Home Instead, a senior homecare company.  We have a new grief support group 
called “Life After Loss.”   The Hearing Loss Support group’s silent auction was a success 
raising over $700 to provide funds for real-time captioning at those meetings.  The pickleball 
program continues to grow, with two tournaments offered over the holidays, and the next 
session of the Sunday evening league expanding by 50%.  The senior newsletter will be 
renamed “Fifty Forward.”    
 
Medi-Go:  Jo Rhoads reported that they have considered charging a nominal fee. 
 
OLHSA:  No report.  
 
Oakland County Senior Advisory Board:  No report. 
 
 
Member Comments 
 
The meeting was adjourned at 2:10 p.m. 
 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
 
David Ogg, Chair      Carla Vaughan, Secretary 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 11, 2010  

 Page 1 of 5 

A regular meeting of the Liquor Advisory Committee was held on Monday, January 
11, 2010 in the Council Board Room of Troy City Hall, 500 West Big Beaver Road.  
Committee member Patrick C. Hall called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 
 
 
Roll Call 
 
 PRESENT:  W. Stan Godlewski 
    Patrick C. Hall 
    Andrew Kaltsounis 
    David S. Ogg 
    Timothy P. Payne 
    Bohdan L. Ukrainec 
     
 ABSENT:  Max K. Ehlert, Chairman 
 
 ALSO PRESENT: Officer James Feld  

Susan Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney 
Laurent Harden, student representative 
Dane Lepola, student representative 

    Pat Gladysz 
 
 
Resolution to Excuse Committee Member Ehlert 
 
Resolution #LC2010-01-001 
Moved by Payne 
Seconded by Kaltsounis 
 
RESOLVED, That the absence of Committee member Ehlert at the Liquor 
Advisory Committee meeting of January 11, 2010 be EXCUSED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Resolution to Approve Minutes of December 14, 2009 Meeting 
 
Resolution #LC2010-01-002 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Ogg 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of the December 14, 2009 meeting of the Liquor 
Advisory Committee be APPROVED. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01l



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 11, 2010  

 Page 2 of 5 

Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 
Agenda Items 
 
1. The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit requests a New Club License to 

be located at 2360 Rochester (former site of the Mountain Jack’s 
Restaurant @ the northwest corner of Rochester and Stephenson Highway, 
next to the Red Roof Inn), Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County {MLCC Req. 
#520848}. The Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit would like approval of the 
New Club License pending final inspections.  Once approved, they will 
begin reconstruction of the existing building to suit their needs.  License will 
not be issued until the building passing the final inspections. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee was John Thomson, a member 
of the Board of Trustees of the Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit. 
 
Mr. Thomson explained to the Committee that the Saint Andrew’s Society is a 
501.3c organization, is the oldest ethnic organization in the state of Michigan, and 
is the oldest continuously operating charitable organization in the state of 
Michigan.  All members are of Scottish decent.  Their membership totals just under 
500, with approximately 70%-80% of those members being active.   
 
The Society sold their building on Congress in Detroit approximately 20 years ago.  
Since that time, they have rented office space in Southfield and have held their 
meetings at the Commonwealth Club in Warren.  The Society recently purchased 
the building at 2360 Rochester Road and $300,000 in renovations is underway, 
with March completion expected.  The establishment will be available for use and 
rental by its members, but not to the general public.  The club license will permit 
the Society to serve or sell beer, wine, and spirits to its members and their guests.   
 
Resolution #LC2010-01-003 
Moved by Ukrainec 
Seconded by Godlewski 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
the Saint Andrew’s Society of Detroit for a new Club License to be located at 2360 
Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083 be APPROVED, pending all final inspections. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 11, 2010  

 Page 3 of 5 

2. Ramchin, Inc. requests to transfer ownership of Escrowed 2009 Class C & 
SDM Licensed Business with Official Permit (Food), located at 6123 
Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, Waterford Township, Oakland County, from 
McQuistion’s Airport Inn; Transfer location Governmental Unit issued under 
MCL 436.1531(1) to 2940 Rochester, Troy, MI 48083, Oakland County 
{MLCC Req. #533231}.  This is currently Ram’s Horn Restaurant at Big 
Beaver and Rochester Road.  Suk Nies will hire his son (Jason Nies) and 
son-in-law (Jon Robinson) to manage the restaurant which will be called 
The Hills City Grill.   Jason Nies and Jon Robinson are currently partners at 
the Hills Grille in Rochester Hills.  Mr. Suk Nies would like approval of the 
Class C and SDM License pending final inspections.  Once approved, he 
will begin reconstruction of the existing building to suit the new restaurant 
needs.  License will not be issued until the building passing final 
inspections. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were attorney Kelly Allen, Suk 
Nies, and Jon Robinson.   
 
Mr. Nies has been in the restaurant business since 1972 and has leased the 
Rochester Road location since 1980.  Their location in Rochester Hills has done 
very well and has received no violations.  They will continue many of their current 
menu items and will operate as a 24-hour full-service restaurant.  The owner and 
managers are prepared to train their staff in alcohol management.  The interior 
renovations will be confined to the dining area.  The exterior renovations will be 
aesthetic in nature.  They have a common parking area with the Hooters 
restaurant.   
 
Resolution #LC2010-01-004 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Ukrainec 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Ramchin, Inc. to transfer ownership of escrowed 2009 Class C and SDM licensed 
business with official permit (food) located at 6123 Highland, Waterford, MI 48327, 
Oakland County, from McQuistion’s Airport Inn to 2940 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 
48083 be APPROVED, pending all final inspections. 
 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 11, 2010  

 Page 4 of 5 

3. Mermiles Inc. requests transfer ownership of 2009 Class C Licensed 
Business with outdoor service (1 Area) located at 3946 Rochester Road, 
Troy, MI 48083 (Mr. B’s – Southeast Corner of Rochester and Wattles – 
also requests new Dance – Entertainment Permit & new SDM Permit 
{MLCC Req. #519373}. 

 
Present to answer questions from the Committee were Marie Tokar and John 
Zawadzki.   
 
Ms. Tokar explained to the Committee that she is the new owner of Mr. B’s.  She 
previously owned 88th Avenue Lounge in Hamtramck for 9 years and Checkers 
Lounge in Sterling Heights for 11 years.  Mr. Tokar plans to continue with the 
current menu, but will add some specialties.  She would like to utilize the current 
stage for an occasional live band, disc jockey, karaoke, and dancing.   The current 
parquet floor will be utilized for dancing when tables are re-arranged.   
 
The Committee questioned the parking lot capacity.  Ms. Tokar explained that the 
entire parking lot is available for their use, as well as the adjoining lot to the south.   
 
The Committee questioned the size of the dance floor.  Ms. Tokar and Mr. 
Zawadzki explained that the dance floor size will be dictated by the Michigan 
Liquor Control Commission and they will adhere specifically to their guidelines. 
 
Resolution #LC2010-01-005 
Moved by Godlewski 
Seconded by Payne 
 
RESOLVED, That the Liquor Advisory Committee recommends that the request of 
Mermiles, Inc.  to transfer ownership of 2009 Class C Licensed Business with 
outdoor service (one area) located at 3946 Rochester Road, Troy, MI 48083 with 
new Dance-Entertainment Permit and new SDM Permit be APPROVED. 
 
Yes:  6 
No:  0 
Absent: Ehlert 
 
 



LIQUOR ADVISORY COMMITTEE MINUTES – DRAFT             JANUARY 11, 2010  

 Page 5 of 5 

Informational Items 
 
Officer Feld updated the Committee on the following informational item: 
 
Manzo-Helton, LLC 
This item will most likely appear on the February agenda. 
 
 
Additional Items 
 
The Agenda lists the 2010 proposed meeting dates.  A meeting will be cancelled if 
there are no items for action. 
 
Office Feld informed the Committee that the Directed Patrol Unit of the Troy Police 
Department conducted the fourth and final inspection for 2009 of all licensed 
establishments in Troy.  Kruse & Muer at 911 Wilshire Drive was the only violation. 
Violation hearings before Troy City Council will occur in February or March. 
 
Officer Feld answered questions from the Committee regarding the December 31, 
2009 party at the Embassy Suites hotel. 
 
 
 
Committee members complimented Officer Feld for including specific location 
details for Agenda Items.  They appreciate his extra effort. 
 
 
 
The meeting adjourned at 7:45 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
      
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patrick C. Hall, Committee Member 
 
 
 
 
     ____________________________________ 
            Patricia A. Gladysz, Secretary II 



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES –Draft January 14, 2010 
 
A meeting of the Troy Election Commission was held January 14, 2010, at City Hall, 
500 W. Big Beaver Road. City Clerk Bartholomew called the Meeting to order at 8:01 
AM. 

ROLL CALL:  
PRESENT:  David Anderson, Timothy Dewan, City Clerk Tonni Bartholomew 
ABSENT:   

Minutes: Regular Meeting of December 17, 2009  
 
Resolution #EC-2010-01-001 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the Minutes of December 17, 2009, are APPROVED as submitted. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Approval of Election Inspector Assignments – Tuesday, February 23, 2010 
Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2010-01-002 
Moved by Dewan 
Seconded by Anderson 

 
RESOLVED, That Election Inspectors be APPOINTED for the Tuesday, February 23, 2010 
General Election, as presented by the City Clerk. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Confirmation of Ballot Language – Tuesday, February 23, 2010 Special Election 
 
Resolution #EC-2010-01-003 
Moved by Anderson 
Seconded by Dewan 
 
RESOLVED, That the ballot language for the Tuesday, February 23, 2010 Special 
Election, as presented, is hereby CONFIRMED. 
 
Yes:  Anderson, Dewan, Bartholomew 

campbellld
Text Box
M-01m



ELECTION COMMISSION MINUTES –Draft January 14, 2010 
 
No:  None 
 
MOTION CARRIED 

Adjournment:  
 
The meeting was adjourned at 8:05 AM. 
 
 

Tonni L. Bartholomew, MMC 
City Clerk 

 
 



DATE:        January 4, 2010

TO:            John Szerlag, City Manager

FROM:        Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager Economic Development Services
                    Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued December 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Add/Alter 1 $502,000.00 $5,135.00

Sub Total 1 $502,000.00 $5,135.00

COMMERCIAL
Add/Alter 13 $665,800.00 $8,055.00

Sub Total 13 $665,800.00 $8,055.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 9 $1,542,304.00 $16,515.00
Add/Alter 6 $61,375.00 $1,190.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 4 $28,652.00 $530.00
Repair 4 $46,060.00 $910.00
Wreck 4 $0.00 $250.00

Sub Total 27 $1,678,391.00 $19,395.00

RELIGIOUS
New 1 $500,000.00 $5,115.00

Sub Total 1 $500,000.00 $5,115.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Signs 34 $0.00 $3,912.00
Fences 4 $0.00 $60.00

Sub Total 38 $0.00 $3,972.00

TOTAL 80 $3,346,191.00 $41,672.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
M-02a



PERMITS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 165 $3,300.00
Cert. of Occupancy 22 $1,646.25
Plan Review 44 $3,305.00
Microfilm 13 $115.00
Building Permits 80 $41,672.00
Electrical Permits 114 $4,690.00
Heating Permits 79 $4,730.00
Air Cond. Permits 25 $1,660.00
Refrigeration Permits 2 $80.00
Plumbing Permits 53 $2,394.00
Storm Sewer Permits 8 $150.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 12 $380.00
Sewer Taps 11 $2,000.00

TOTAL 628 $66,122.25

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 30 $150.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 17 $255.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 16 $80.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 5 $50.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 2 $30.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 12 $120.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 1 $15.00

TOTAL 83 $700.00

Page 2



BUILDING PERMITS ISSUED

BUILDING PERMIT BUILDING PERMIT
PERMITS VALUATION PERMITS VALUATION

2008 2008 2009 2009

JANUARY 71 $4,678,432.00 66 $5,215,813.00

FEBRUARY 81 $5,464,681.00 39 $2,463,134.00

MARCH 107 $3,480,525.00 76 $3,344,007.00

APRIL 141 $10,518,298.00 95 $3,005,226.00

MAY 161 $4,357,036.00 122 $1,679,112.00

JUNE 161 $8,178,329.00 148 $2,708,849.00

JULY 160 $10,497,107.00 106 $4,158,316.00

AUGUST 122 $15,981,779.00 117 $3,212,653.00

SEPTEMBER 134 $13,136,548.00 113 $3,557,220.00

OCTOBER 114 $3,760,152.00 110 $6,598,673.00

NOVEMBER 109 $35,574,774.00 88 $6,096,477.00

DECEMBER 66 $1,762,444.00 80 $3,346,191.00

TOTAL 1427 $117,390,105.00 1160 $45,385,671.00



SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through June 2010

2004 2004

3 3 1 2 1 1
4 4 2

9

0

10

20

30

40

50

60
SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

03 3 1 2 1 1
4 4 2

9

0

10

20

30

40

50

60
Ja

nu
ar

y

Fe
br

ua
ry

M
ar

ch

A
pr

il

M
ay

Ju
ne

Ju
ly

A
ug

us
t

Se
pt

em
be

r

O
ct

ob
er

N
ov

em
be

r

D
ec

em
be

r

SINGLE FAMILY DWELLING PERMITS 2009

0



Jan 4, 2010 BRIEF BREAKDOWN OF NON-RESIDENTIAL BUILDING PERMITSPrinted:
ISSUED DURING THE MONTH OF DECEMBER 2009Page:  1

Type of Construction Address of Job ValuationBuilder or Company

Commercial, Add/Alter GRANDVIEW CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 130 TOWN CENTER 203  190,000
Commercial, Add/Alter GRANDVIEW CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 130 TOWN CENTER 200  120,000

Commercial, Add/AlterTotal  310,000

Industrial, Add/Alter JONNA CONSTRUCTION 2300 BELLINGHAM  502,000

Industrial, Add/AlterTotal  502,000

Religious, New Construction REWOLD, FRANK & SON 3955 W SOUTH BOULEVARD  500,000

Religious, New ConstructionTotal  500,000

Total Valuation:  1,312,000Records  5



DATE:         January 4, 2010

TO:              John Szerlag, City Manager

FROM:        Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager Economic Development Services
                    Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:  Permits issued July 2009 through December 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Tenant Completion 5 $34,454.00 $815.00
Add/Alter 23 $1,596,793.00 $18,265.00
Wreck 2 $0.00 $150.00
Parking Lot 1 $60,000.00 $715.00

Sub Total 31 $1,691,247.00 $19,945.00

COMMERCIAL
New 2 $1,298,764.00 $13,220.00
Tenant Completion 2 $460,000.00 $4,830.00
Add/Alter 89 $10,536,967.00 $112,715.00
Parking Lot 1 $50,000.00 $615.00
Repair 1 $7,000.00 $155.00
Kiosk 5 $42,145.00 $655.00

Sub Total 100 $12,394,876.00 $132,190.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 21 $3,603,071.00 $38,555.00
Add/Alter 126 $1,623,282.00 $26,015.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 36 $241,937.00 $4,820.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 6 $56,000.00 $950.00
Repair 29 $342,008.00 $6,105.00
Fire Repair 5 $646,047.00 $7,015.00
Wreck 13 $0.00 $610.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 1 $2,500.00 $75.00

Sub Total 237 $6,514,845.00 $84,145.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
M-02b



TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 5 $16,250.00 $435.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $1,200.00 $165.00

Sub Total 6 $17,450.00 $600.00

MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $7,800.00 $175.00
Repair 6 $47,790.00 $1,050.00

Sub Total 7 $55,590.00 $1,225.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 2 $3,743,822.00 $30,773.00

Sub Total 2 $3,743,822.00 $30,773.00

RELIGIOUS
New 1 $500,000.00 $5,115.00
Add/Alter 4 $2,051,000.00 $17,900.00

Sub Total 5 $2,551,000.00 $23,015.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 1 $700.00 $35.00
Signs 174 $0.00 $18,032.00
Fences 51 $0.00 $815.00

Sub Total 226 $700.00 $18,882.00

TOTAL 614 $26,969,530.00 $310,775.00

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 700 $13,600.00
Cert. of Occupancy 122 $11,372.65
Plan Review 357 $28,658.00
Microfilm 109 $1,175.00
Building Permits 614 $310,775.00
Electrical Permits 882 $51,042.00
Heating Permits 587 $27,370.00
Air Cond. Permits 258 $10,830.00
Refrigeration Permits 7 $555.00
Plumbing Permits 398 $23,877.00
Storm Sewer Permits 63 $2,474.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 57 $1,983.00
Sewer Taps 41 $13,946.00

TOTAL 4195 $497,657.65

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED JULY THROUGH DECEMBER 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 236 $1,180.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 134 $2,010.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 110 $550.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 24 $240.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 10 $154.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 15 $150.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 113 $1,125.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 12 $180.00

TOTAL 654 $5,589.00

Page 3



DATE:         January 4, 2010

TO:              John Szerlag, City Manager

FROM:         Mark Miller, Acting Assistant City Manger/Economic Development Services
                     Mark Stimac, Director of Building & Zoning
SUBJECT:   Permits issued January 2009 through December 2009

NO. VALUATION PERMIT FEE
INDUSTRIAL
Tenant Completion 5 $34,454.00 $815.00
Accessory Structure 1 $159,539.00 $1,715.00
Add/Alter 44 $2,802,929.00 $32,710.00
Wreck 3 $0.00 $260.00
Parking Lot 2 $135,000.00 $1,580.00
Repair 1 $12,000.00 $235.00

Sub Total 56 $3,143,922.00 $37,315.00

COMMERCIAL
New 3 $2,218,764.00 $22,535.00
New Less Tenant 1 $527,100.00 $5,395.00
Completion (New) 1 $765,000.00 $7,765.00
Tenant Completion 5 $736,000.00 $7,935.00
Add/Alter 167 $19,709,278.00 $211,510.00
Wreck 1 $0.00 $100.00
Parking Lot 1 $50,000.00 $615.00
Repair 1 $7,000.00 $155.00
Kiosk 7 $42,645.00 $725.00

Sub Total 187 $24,055,787.00 $256,735.00

RESIDENTIAL
New 30 $5,140,231.00 $54,980.00
Add/Alter 219 $3,197,431.00 $49,360.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 65 $309,354.00 $6,835.00
Pool/Spa/Hot Tub 14 $198,095.00 $3,040.00
Ent. Wall/Masonry Fence 1 $1,250.00 $55.00
Repair 52 $975,980.00 $14,480.00
Fire Repair 12 $1,457,202.00 $15,920.00
Wreck 17 $3,500.00 $820.00
Fnd./Slab/Footing 1 $2,500.00 $75.00

Sub Total 411 $11,285,543.00 $145,565.00

Page 1

campbellld
Text Box
M-02c



TOWN HOUSE/CONDO
Add/Alter 11 $61,250.00 $2,300.00
Garage/Acc. Structure 1 $1,200.00 $165.00
Repair 7 $64,507.00 $1,255.00

Sub Total 19 $126,957.00 $3,720.00

MULTIPLE
Garage/Acc. Structure 4 $50,800.00 $910.00
Repair 7 $54,640.00 $1,205.00

Sub Total 11 $105,440.00 $2,115.00

INSTITUTIONAL/HOSPITAL
Add/Alter 3 $3,943,822.00 $32,888.00

Sub Total 3 $3,943,822.00 $32,888.00

RELIGIOUS
New 1 $500,000.00 $5,115.00
Add/Alter 7 $2,178,500.00 $19,405.00

Sub Total 8 $2,678,500.00 $24,520.00

MISCELLANEOUS
Satellite/Antennas 10 $45,700.00 $1,070.00
Signs 323 $0.00 $34,671.50
Fences 132 $0.00 $2,130.00

Sub Total 465 $45,700.00 $37,871.50

TOTAL 1160 $45,385,671.00 $540,729.50

Page 2



PERMITS ISSUED DURING 2009
NO. PERMIT FEE

Mul. Dwel. Insp. 1915 $25,750.00
Cert. of Occupancy 223 $19,043.40
Plan Review 646 $42,012.25
Microfilm 212 $2,214.00
Building Permits 1160 $540,729.50
Electrical Permits 1539 $84,279.00
Heating Permits 1036 $48,805.00
Air Cond. Permits 432 $18,820.00
Refrigeration Permits 15 $995.00
Plumbing Permits 806 $47,293.00
Storm Sewer Permits 115 $4,399.00
Sanitary Sewer Permits 81 $2,745.00
Sewer Taps 63 $17,166.00

TOTAL 8243 $854,251.15

LICENSES & REGISTRATIONS ISSUED DURING 2009
NO. LICENSE FEE

Mech. Contr.-Reg. 367 $1,835.00
Elec. Contr.-Reg. 315 $4,725.00
Master Plmb.-Reg. 207 $1,035.00
Sign Inst. - Reg. 48 $480.00
E. Sign Contr-Reg. 28 $424.00
Fence Inst.-Reg. 33 $330.00
Bldg. Contr.-Reg. 184 $1,835.00
F.Alarm Contr.-Reg. 30 $450.00

TOTAL 1212 $11,114.00

Page 3



 

 
December 29, 2009 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police  
 
SUBJECT:   Liquor License Compliance Checks 
 
 
Background: 
 
 Each quarter the police department conducts compliance inspections of all establishments 

holding a liquor license that allows for the sale of alcoholic beverages to the public. 
 The Directed Patrol Unit of the Police Department recently completed two separate compliance 

tests of the 113 liquor license holders in the City of Troy.  
 The tests were conducted pursuant to Police Department policy utilizing two (2) Student 

Enforcement Aides. 
 Homewood Suites,1495 Equity W; McCormick and Schmick, 2850 Coolidge Highway; and Parrott 

Cove Yacht Club, 33475 Dequindre were the only businesses found to be in violation on October 
28, 2009 and were cited for the sale of an alcoholic beverage to a minor.    

 Kruse & Muer Troy, 911 Wilshire was the only business found to be in violation on December 17, 
2009 and was cited for the sale of an alcoholic beverage to a minor.    

 
Financial Considerations: 
 
 N/A 
 
Legal Considerations: 
 
 The cited businesses were issued the applicable LCC and City Ordinance violations. 
 The cited businesses will be scheduled to appear at the next City Council Liquor Violation Review 

meeting. 
 Businesses passing the inspection will receive a certificate indicating such. 
 
Policy Considerations: 
 
 City Goal #1 - “Enhance the livability and safety of the community” 

 
JF/Compliance Checks 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02d



campbellld
Text Box
M-02e



































T  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council 
 

FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
Robert F. Davisson, Assistant City Attorney  
Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney   
Susan M. Lancaster, Assistant City Attorney  
Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
 

DATE: January 18, 2010 
SUBJECT: 2009 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report 

 
 

The following is the quarterly report of pending litigation and other matters of 
interest.  Developments during the FOURTH quarter of 2009 are in bold. 

 
 

A. ANATOMY OF THE CASE 
 

Once a lawsuit has been filed against the City or City employees, the City Attorney’s 
office prepares a memo regarding the allegations in the complaint.  At that time, our office 
requests authority from Council to represent the City and/or the employees.  Our office then 
engages in the discovery process, which generally lasts for several months, and involves 
interrogatories, requests for documents, and depositions.  After discovery, almost all cases 
are required to go through case evaluation (also called mediation).  In this process, three 
attorneys evaluate the potential damages, and render an award.  This award can be 
accepted by both parties, and will conclude the case.  However, if either party rejects a case 
evaluation award, there are potential sanctions if the trial result is not as favorable as the 
mediation award.  In many cases, a motion for summary disposition will be filed at the 
conclusion of discovery.  In all motions for summary disposition, the Plaintiff’s version of the 
facts are accepted as true, and if the Plaintiff still has failed to set forth a viable claim against 
the City, then dismissal will be granted.  It generally takes at least a year before a case will 
be presented to a jury.  It also takes approximately two years before a case will be finalized 
in the Michigan Court of Appeals and/or the Michigan Supreme Court.   

 
B. ZONING CASES 

 
These are cases where the property owner has sued for a use other than that for which 
the land is currently zoned and/or the City is suing a property owner to require 
compliance with the existing zoning provisions.  
 

1. Troy v. Papadelis and Papadelis v. Troy - This is a case filed by the City against 
Telly’s Nursery, seeking to enjoin the business from using the northern parcel for 
commercial purposes.  After a lengthy appellate history, an order was entered in 
the Oakland County Circuit Court, requiring compliance on or before April 29, 
2002.  The Papadelis family failed to comply with the court’s order, and therefore 
a Contempt Motion was filed.  Oakland County Circuit Court Judge Colleen 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02f



 2 

O’Brien determined that the defendants were in contempt of court, and required 
them to pay $1,000 to the City of Troy.  However, the court also determined that 
the defendants were in compliance with the City of Troy zoning ordinances as of 
the date of the court decision.  The Troy City Council authorized an appeal of this 
decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  It was filed on September 27, 2002. 
The neighbors filed an application for leave to appeal, which was denied by the 
Michigan Court of Appeals on 2/10/03.   After receiving criminal citations from the 
City for expansion of the business, Papadelis filed a federal lawsuit against the 
City of Troy, alleging civil rights violations and seeking an injunction against the 
prosecution and/or further expansion.  The neighboring property owners filed a 
Motion to Intervene, which was granted by Federal US District Court Judge 
Arthur Tarnow.  Troy filed a counterclaim in the Federal Court case but it was 
dismissed by Judge Tarnow, who refused to exercise jurisdiction over the 
counter-complaint, since it would require him to interpret the opinion of the 
Oakland County Circuit Court Judge.  Troy has subsequently filed two separate 
motions to dismiss the Papadelis complaint. One of the motions asserted the 
same jurisdictional claim that was raised against the counter-complaint.  The 
Court granted Troy’s motion based on jurisdictional issues and dismissed the 
case without prejudice.  The court did not rule on the other motion, but instead, 
directed the Papadelises to re-file their case in state court.  The Papadelis family 
then re-filed its lawsuit in Oakland County Circuit Court.  Troy filed an answer 
and a counterclaim.  Troy also immediately filed a motion for summary 
disposition seeking dismissal of the complaint and a judgment in favor of Troy. 
The counterclaim seeks an order requiring the Papadelis family to remove two 
greenhouses and other structures that have been built upon the property without 
approvals that are required under the zoning ordinance.  The Court scheduled an 
early intervention conference (settlement conference) for October 18, 2005.  The 
Court has set the hearing date for the Motion for Summary Disposition for 
January 4, 2006.  Subsequent to the filing of Troy’s Motion for Summary 
Disposition, Plaintiffs’ filed a Cross Motion for Summary Disposition, and the 
hearing was rescheduled for January 18, 2006.  On February 17, 2006, the Court 
entered its written Opinion and Order, dismissing the Papadelis claim for money 
damages and their claim for injunctive relief.  However, the Court also granted 
Summary Disposition in favor of the Plaintiffs on their claim for declaratory relief, 
and held that “retail” activity was not occurring on the northern parcel, and that 
the “agricultural” activities on the northern parcel were protected under the Right 
to Farm Act.  Additionally the Court ruled the Plaintiffs’ were exempt from City 
permitting requirements under the agricultural building permit exemption of the 
State Construction Code Act.  The Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  
Troy has filed an appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  Plaintiffs’ have filed 
a cross appeal challenging the dismissal of their claims for money damages and 
injunctive relief.  All the required briefs have been filed with the Court of Appeals, 
which will either schedule an oral argument or will inform the parties that the case 
will be decided without oral argument.  Since this case was assigned to the 
expedited track for summary disposition appeals, a final decision on appeal is 
expected before the end of September of this year. On June 16, 2006, the 



 3 

Building Department discovered that the Papadelis family was erecting a new, 
large pole barn structure on the property at 3301 John R. Road.  This structure 
was likely in violation of local and/or state law.  The Building Department followed 
the procedure for issuing a Stop Work Order.  In addition, our office filed an 
emergency motion with the Court of Appeals, seeking to enjoin construction of 
the building pending final outcome of the appeal.  On June 21, 2006, the Court of 
Appeals granted the motion for immediate consideration, but denied the motion 
to enjoin construction of the building.  The denial of the motion has no bearing on 
the final outcome of this appeal, and if Troy ultimately prevails on appeal, the 
new building will have to be removed.  Despite the issuance of the Stop Work 
Order, the construction continued on the new building.  The Papadelis Family 
then filed a Motion to hold the City Attorney and the Director of Building and 
Zoning in contempt of court.  In this Motion, the Papadelis family argued that the 
Circuit Court ruling (Judge Colleen O’Brien) allows the construction of the new 
building without a permit and without having to comply with the zoning ordinance 
provisions regulating the size and location of buildings.  Judge O’Brien denied 
this Motion on June 28, 2006, and ruled that her earlier ruling (the ruling on 
appeal) was limited to the buildings on the property at the time of the ruling, and 
did not extend to allow for new construction on the site.  On September 19, 2006, 
the Court of Appeals affirmed the decisions of the Circuit Court.  Thus, the Court 
affirmed the declaratory judgment in favor of the plaintiffs, but it also affirmed the 
dismissal of plaintiff’s civil rights claims against the City, Mark Stimac, and 
Marlene Struckman.  Troy has filed an Application for Leave to Appeal with the 
Michigan Supreme Court.  The Michigan Municipal League is also filing an 
amicus brief in support of the City’s Application for Leave to Appeal.  The 
Papadelis family filed a Cross Application for Leave to Appeal.  If the Supreme 
Court denies both the Application for Leave to Appeal and the Cross Application 
for Leave to Appeal, the Court of Appeals decision becomes the final decision in 
this case.  The Supreme Court may grant both the Application and Cross 
Application for Leave to Appeal, or it may grant one and deny the other, or it may 
grant either Application in part and limit the issues that it will review.  The 
Michigan Municipal League (MML) has prepared an Amicus Brief in support of 
the municipal position, and the Papadelis family has opposed the MML’s Motion 
for Leave To File the Amicus Brief.  The parties are now waiting for the Michigan 
Supreme Court to take action.  On June 29, 2007, in lieu of granting leave to 
appeal, the Michigan Supreme Court ruled in favor of the City, and reversed the 
decisions of the Oakland County Circuit Court and the Court of Appeals.  The 
case will now be remanded back to the Oakland County Circuit Court for an order 
requiring the Papadelis family to comply with Troy’s zoning ordinances.  The 
Michigan Supreme Court declared that the greenhouses and pole barn are not 
“incidental to the use for agricultural purposes of the land on which they are 
located.”  Plaintiff’s cross appeal against the City was denied.   Troy filed a 
motion in Circuit Court to enforce the Supreme Court’s ruling, which requires all 
of the buildings constructed on the Papadelis property to be in compliance with 
Troy’s zoning ordinance.  In the alternative, the structures need to be removed. 
The Court scheduled an evidentiary hearing on our Motion for October 17, 2007.  



 4 

A hearing/bench trial began on October 17th and continued on October 23rd.  The 
City presented evidence in support of its request for an Order requiring the 
Papadelis family to remove two large greenhouses, eight smaller greenhouse 
type structures (cold frames) and a pole barn from the subject property.  The 
Papadelis Family has started to present evidence in support of their defense and 
opposition to the City’s requested relief.  They contend the zoning ordinance is 
not applicable to the buildings.  The Court has set the next hearing/ bench trial 
continuation date for January 30, 2008.  The hearing/bench trial continued on 
January 30, 2008 and closing arguments were scheduled for March 5, 2008.  
After closing arguments were made, Judge O’Brien indicated she would prepare 
a written opinion.  On May 22, 2008, Judge O’Brien issued an Opinion and Order 
dismissing the City’s counterclaim.  On June 4, 2008, the City filed a Motion for 
Reconsideration, which was denied on June 10, 2008.  On June 23, 2008, the 
City filed a Claim of Appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  The City’s Brief 
on Appeal is due November 25, 2008.   The City’s brief was timely filed.  The 
Plaintiffs filed their appellate brief and the City filed a Reply Brief.  On February 
11, 2009, the Michigan Farm Bureau filed a Motion to File an Amicus Curiae Brief 
in support of Plaintiffs claims.  The City filed a response to that motion requesting 
that it be denied.  On March 4, 2009, the Court of Appeals entered its Order 
granting the request of the Michigan Farm Bureau, but allowing the City to file a 
Reply to the Amicus Curiae Brief.  On March 23, 2009, the Michigan Farm 
Bureau filed its Amicus Curiae Brief.  On April 3, 2009, Troy filed a Reply to the 
Amicus Curiae Brief of the Michigan Farm Bureau.   We are waiting for the Court 
to schedule the case for oral argument.  Oral argument has been set for 
November 9, 2009.  At the Plaintiffs’ request, oral argument was 
rescheduled for December 1, 2009.  On December 15, 2009, the Court 
issued its order affirming the Circuit Court’s decision.    
 

2. Behr America v. City of Troy, et. al.-  This case is a plat revision action filed by Behr 
America against the City of Troy, the Road Commission for Oakland County, the 
Oakland County Drain Commission, the Michigan Department of Transportation, the 
Michigan Department of Environmental Quality, The Michigan Department of Natural 
Resources, the Treasurer of State of Michigan, the Detroit Edison Company and 
owners within 300 feet of the Behr America property located at 2700 Daley Drive.  
Behr America is requesting a revision of Supervisor’s Plat  No. 11, in order to remove 
the plat’s roadway designation of a portion of Daley Street, which has already been 
vacated by resolution of the Troy City Council.  The City of Troy has filed an Answer 
to the Complaint, and the parties are now conducting discovery. Witness and Exhibit 
Lists have been filed by the parties in the discovery phase.  The State of Michigan 
has required clarification of the easement that was granted to the City of Troy 
reserving a vehicular turn around.  A public hearing will be scheduled as soon as 
possible on a new proposed vacation.  The parties continue to negotiate an 
acceptable Consent Judgment, which could be entered immediately after Council 
action on the proposed vacation.  Case evaluation was waived by Court order.  A 
draft of a Consent Judgment is being reviewed by the Defendants, and will be 
submitted to City Council for its review and approval.  Plaintiffs have been delayed in 



 5 

finalizing this matter, but expect to move forward soon. The Court has set another 
pre-trial date for January 26, 2010, and the parties expect a Consent Judgment 
to be entered on or before that date.   

   
C.  EMINENT DOMAIN CASES 

 
These are cases in which the City wishes to acquire property for a public 

improvement and the property owner wishes to contest either the necessity or the 
compensation offered. In cases where only the compensation is challenged, the City 
obtains possession of the property almost immediately, which allows for major projects 
to be completed.    

 
JOHN R. ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 

 
1. City of Troy v. Munchiando - The City filed this condemnation lawsuit in 

connection with the John R. Road widening project.  The City’s complaint was 
filed on August 4, 2008.  The Court entered the Order of Possession on 
September 22, 2008, giving the City legal title to the property.  Through this 
Order, the Munchiandos can temporarily remain in the house, as long as they 
pay rent to the City.  This means that only the amount of just compensation 
remains at issue in this case.  The parties are now exchanging discovery.  
Discovery continues. On September 2, 2009, case evaluation was held.  The 
parties have until September 30, 2009 to either accept or reject case evaluation.  
If both parties accept the case evaluation award, then the case is settled for that 
amount.  If either party rejects the case evaluation award, then the case 
proceeds to trial.  Case evaluation was accepted by all parties and a consent 
judgment was entered closing the case. 
 

ROCHESTER ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

2. City of Troy v RCU Independence Inc and Sentry Inc. The City filed this 
condemnation action to acquire property located at 3688 Rochester Road in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement Project.  The case was 
assigned to Judge Bowman of the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Defendants 
filed a Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction.  In this Motion, 
they argued that the City did not engage in sufficient negotiations after making 
the written good faith offer for the property.  The City argued that it was in 
compliance with all the statutory requirements.  After oral argument, the Court 
dismissed the case, relying on the alleged lack of jurisdiction.  The City filed an 
Appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals, which is pending.  In the meantime, 
the City filed a second condemnation complaint after additional discussions with 
the attorney representing the property owner.  On July 29, 2009, the Court 
entered an Order for Payment of Estimated Compensation and Surrender of 
Possession.  This occurred only after the City agreed to assume the expenses 
for moving the car wash on the property.  The case is now in the discovery phase 
of the litigation on the issue of just compensation. The City is still pursuing the 



 6 

appeal of the dismissal of the initial case to resolve the different statutory 
interpretations of the parties, since this issue is likely to arise in future 
condemnation matters.  Discovery Continues.  Case Evaluation has been 
scheduled for February 3, 2010. 

 
3. City of Troy v Sentry Inc. and RCU Independence.  The City filed this 

condemnation action to acquire property located at 3785 Rochester Road in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement Project.  The case was 
assigned to Judge Grant of the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Defendants filed a 
Motion to Dismiss for Lack of Subject Matter Jurisdiction on the basis of alleged 
insufficient negotiations after the written good faith offer was made. The City 
argued was in compliance with all statutory requirements.  After oral argument, 
the Court dismissed the case, relying on the alleged lack of jurisdiction.  The City 
filed a Motion for Reconsideration, which is still pending with the Court.  In the 
meantime, the City filed a second condemnation complaint after additional 
discussions with the attorney representing the property owner.  The parties 
stipulated to an Order for Payment of Estimated Compensation and Surrender of 
Possession that was entered on July 29, 2009, after the City agreed to assume 
expenses for moving the car wash on the property.  The only issue remaining is 
the final amount of just compensation.  Discovery continues as it relates to 
that issue.   
 

4. City of Troy v Midwest Master Investment. The City filed this condemnation 
action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This 
property is at 3525-3529 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to 
the property that was required for the road construction project.  The case will 
continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired 
by the City.  The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.   
 

5. City of Troy v MNAD Property LLC. The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.   This property is at 
3424 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Case evaluation is scheduled for January 
6, 2010.  
 

6. City of Troy v Troywood Shops.  The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3718-3736 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property 
that was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to 
allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City.  
The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing. 
 

7. City of Troy v Lukich Realty.  The City of Troy filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 



 7 

3900 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City.  The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing. 
 

8. City of Troy v Century Plaza, LLC.  The City of Troy filed this condemnation 
action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This 
property is at 3614-3675 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to 
the property that was required for the road construction project.  The case will 
continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired 
by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  
Case evaluation is scheduled for November 4, 2009.  Case evaluation was held 
and all parties accepted the case evaluation award.  A consent judgment 
was entered closing the case. 

 
9. City of Troy v Picano Land Limited Partnership (Case No 09-097975).  The City 

filed this condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road 
Improvement project.  This property is at 3775 Rochester Road, and the City has 
now acquired title to the property that was required for the road construction 
project.  The case will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the 
property that was acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  
Discovery is continuing.  Case evaluation is scheduled for January 6, 2010. 
 

10. City of Troy v Picano Land Limited Partnership (Case No 09-097982).  The City 
filed this condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road 
Improvement project.  This property is also with the address of 3775 Rochester 
Road (one Picano’s parcel is vacant without its own address).  The City has now 
acquired title to the property that was required for the road construction project.  
The case will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that 
was acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is 
continuing.  Case evaluation is scheduled for January 6, 2010. 
 

11. City of Troy v JMT Properties.  The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3381 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  A consent judgment has been approved, 
but it has not been entered.   
 

12. City of Troy v P/G Equities.  The City filed this condemnation action in connection 
with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 3921 
Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that was 
required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a jury 
to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The case is 
now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing.  



 8 

 
13. City of Troy v 3385 Rochester Associates, LLC.  The City filed this condemnation 

action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This 
property is at 3385 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the 
property that was required for the road construction project.  The case will 
continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired 
by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  The City has filed a motion 
for entry of a final judgment to conclude this case, since the property owners 
have not taken an active role in this litigation. The motion, seeking to declare the 
amounts already paid as the just compensation, is set for hearing on September 
30, 2009.  The motion seeking to declare the amounts already paid as just 
compensation was granted.  A final judgment has been entered and the 
case is closed. 

 
14. City of Troy v William H. Price (Price Funeral Home).  The City filed this 

condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement 
project.  This property is at 3725 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired 
title to the property that was required for the road construction project.  The case 
will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was 
acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is 
continuing. 
 

15. City of Troy v William H. Price (Property Adjoining Funeral Home).  The City filed 
this condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement 
project.  This property is addressed at 3725 Rochester Road, and the City has 
now acquired title to the property that was required for the road construction 
project.  The case will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the 
property that was acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase. 
Discovery is continuing.  

 
16. City of Troy v. Atto Construction.  The City filed this condemnation action in 

connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3921 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Case evaluation is scheduled for April 
10, 2010. 

 
17. City of Troy v. Space Station of Troy, Inc.. The City filed this condemnation action 

in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3410 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  The City has discussed the case with the 
property owner, and will submit a proposed final judgment where the just 
compensation is the amount that has already paid to the property owner. A 



 9 

Consent Judgment was entered with the Court on October 5, 2009, and the 
case is now closed.   

 
18. City of Troy v. Rochester Square Associates, et. al..  The City filed this 

condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement 
project.  This property is at 3946 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired 
title to the property that was required for the road construction project.  The case 
will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the property that was 
acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  Case evaluation 
will occur on January 6, 2010. Jury trial is scheduled for April 1, 2010.      

 
19. City of Troy v. Susan Sandleman as Trustee for the Ester Jeffrey Trust.   The 

City filed this condemnation action in connection with the Rochester Road 
Improvement project.  This property is at 3914 Rochester Road, and the City has 
now acquired title to the property that was required for the road construction 
project.  The case will continue to allow a jury to determine the value of the 
property that was acquired by the City. The case is now in the discovery phase.  
Case evaluation is currently scheduled for October 2009.  

 
20. City of Troy v. Old Troy, LLC..  The City filed this condemnation action in 

connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3278 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Case evaluation is set for March 2010. 
The jury trial is scheduled for May 20, 2010.    

 
21. City of Troy v. UEOS Troy, LLC.   The City filed this condemnation action in 

connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3801 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  The parties have continued to negotiate a 
settlement of this case, and it is anticipated that a proposed Consent Judgment 
will be presented to City Council for its consideration in October. A Consent 
Judgment was entered with the Court on October 6, 2009, and the case is 
now closed.     

 
22. City of Troy v. Ida Rudack Trust, et. al..  The City filed this condemnation action 

in connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3615 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase. Case evaluation is March 3, 2010.  The 
jury trial is scheduled for May 17, 2010.  

 



 10 

23. City of Troy v. Diajeff, LLC..   The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Rochester Road Improvement project.  This property is at 
3754 Rochester Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that 
was required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a 
jury to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The 
case is now in the discovery phase.  Case evaluation is March 3, 2010. The 
jury trial is scheduled for June 21, 2010.  
 

WATTLES ROAD IMPROVEMENT PROJECT 
 

16. City of Troy v Firas and Reeta Ibrahim.  The City filed this condemnation action in 
connection with the Wattles Road Improvement project.  This property is at 1131 
E. Wattles Road, and the City has now acquired title to the property that was 
required for the road construction project.  The case will continue to allow a jury 
to determine the value of the property that was acquired by the City. The case is 
now in the discovery phase.  Discovery is continuing. 

 
 
D. CIVIL RIGHTS CASES 

 
 These are cases that are generally filed in the federal courts, under 42 U.S.C. 
Section 1983.  In these cases, the Plaintiffs argue that the City and/or police officers of the 
City of Troy somehow violated their civil rights.   

 
1. Gerald Molnar v. Janice Pokley, the City of Troy et al.-  Plaintiff filed this lawsuit 

against the City and Troy Detective Janice Pokley, after a jury found him not 
guilty of the charge of Criminal Sexual Conduct in the Second Degree. Plaintiff 
alleges that the City and Detective Pokley violated his constitutional rights to be 
from an unreasonable seizure, due process, and equal protection.  These 
constitutional violations allegedly occurred during the criminal sexual conduct 
investigation of Plaintiff.   Plaintiff also claims that the Troy defendants conspired 
with other named defendants to violate his constitutional rights, and intentionally 
inflicted emotional distress on Plaintiff.  Plaintiff is requesting an unspecified 
amount of compensatory, exemplar, and punitive damages. On February 27, 
2007, Troy filed a motion to dismiss, or in the alternative summary judgment.  
Plaintiff filed his response to our motion to dismiss on May 21, 2007.  On August 
28, 2008, the Court listened to the oral arguments on our motion to dismiss. On 
September 4, 2008, the Court issued an opinion and order granting our motion to 
dismiss Detective Pokely and the City.  On September 10, 2008, Plaintiff filed a 
notice of appeal, and is seeking a reversal of this dismissal with the United 
States Court of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit (includes Michigan, Tennessee, 
Kentucky, and Ohio).  After hosting a telephonic pre-trial conference, the Court 
will provide the briefing schedule for the parties. Plaintiff filed his appellate brief 
on June 18, 2009. Troy’s response brief is due July 17th.  The City’s brief was 
timely filed.  Oral argument was held December 3, 2009. On December 29, 



 11 

2009 the Court of Appeals issued an unpublished opinion affirming the 
District Court’s dismissal of Plaintiff’s complaint.   

 
E. PERSONAL INJURY AND DAMAGE CASES 

 
These are cases in which the Plaintiff claims that the City or City employees were 

negligent in some manner that caused injuries and/or property damage.  The City 
enjoys governmental immunity from ordinary negligence, unless the case falls within 
one of four exceptions to governmental immunity:  a) defective highway exception, 
which includes sidewalks and road way claims; b) public building exception, which 
imposes liability only when injuries are caused by a defect in a public building; c) motor 
vehicle exception, which imposes liability when an employee is negligent when 
operating their vehicle; d) proprietary exception, where liability is imposed when an 
activity is conducted primarily to create a profit, and the activity somehow causes injury 
or damage to another; e)  trespass nuisance exception, which imposes liability for the 
flooding cases.     

 
1. Mary Ann Hennig v. City of Troy- Plaintiff has filed this lawsuit, claiming that the 

City is liable for injuries she sustained after her vehicle was struck by a Troy 
Police Officer as he was pursuing a suspected drug dealer.  Her complaint 
alleges serious impairment of a bodily function, in that she has neurological 
damages.  The City has filed an answer to the complaint, and the parties are now 
conducting discovery.  The parties have exchanged witness list, expert witness 
lists and exhibit lists. The parties are continuing to do discovery including 
updating medical records and deposing witnesses.  The Plaintiff has been 
examined by an orthopedic physician chosen by the City and is scheduled to be 
examined during the week of October 22, 2008 by a clinical neuropsychologist 
chosen by the City.  Discovery is continuing.  On December 12, 2007, the Court 
ordered facilitation of the case, which is scheduled for March 4, 2008.  If the 
parties are unable to settle the case with facilitation, then a jury trial is scheduled 
to start on April 22, 2008.  The Court ordered facilitation was conducted on 
March 28, 2008.  In the interim, the City filed a Motion for Summary Disposition, 
alleging that Plaintiff cannot establish negligence, or that Ms. Hennig’s injuries 
satisfy the no-fault minimum threshold standard, which is that the injuries 
constitute a “serious impairment of a bodily function.”  Troy’s Motion will be heard 
on April 23, 2008. The jury trial date has been adjourned to July 29, 2008.   Judge 
Mester denied our motion for summary disposition, finding an issue of fact that 
would need to be resolved at trial.   The City filed a motion for reconsideration of 
this decision, which was denied by Judge Mester in a written opinion.  As allowed 
under the governmental immunity state statute, the circuit court case has now 
been stayed so that the City can pursue an appeal with the Michigan Court of 
Appeals prior to the conclusion of a trial.  The City timely filed its appeal on June 
3, 2008. The City’s Brief is due on or before October 8, 2008. The City timely 
filed its appellate brief, as well as a reply to Plaintiff/ Appellee’s brief.  Oral 
argument in the Court of Appeals is scheduled for July 7, 2009.  The Court of 



 12 

Appeals has remanded the case for trial.  The Circuit Court has re-opened 
discovery, and has set a jury trial date of June 1, 2010. 
 

2. Nancy Huntley, Legal Guardian of Carolyn Huntley, a Protected Person v. City of 
Troy- This lawsuit was filed in the Oakland County Circuit Court.  Plaintiff alleges 
that on June 29, 2007, Carolyn Huntley was walking on the sidewalk located in 
front of 511 Cardinal, Troy, Michigan when she tripped and fell on an elevated 
concrete slab. Plaintiff alleges that Troy was negligent in failing to maintain the 
sidewalk; to provide adequate inspections; to give notice of a dangerous 
condition; and to use reasonable care in the design of the sidewalk.  The City 
filed an Answer and Affirmative Defenses and also filed a Motion for Summary 
Disposition, arguing that Plaintiff failed to provide notice, as required by MCL 
691.1404.  Plaintiff’s response to this motion is due on October 7, 2009, and 
Judge Rudy Nichols has scheduled oral argument for October 28, 2009.  The 
parties are waiting on the Court’s decision on the motion.     
 

3. Stephanie Cobb v. City of Troy and Northridge Office Center-  This lawsuit 
was filed by Plaintiff Stephanie Cobb, who suffered injuries after falling in a 
parking lot  located in front of an office complex located at 100 Kirts Blvd. 
(the Northridge Office Center).  Since the complaint alleged that the injuries 
occurred in a parking lot, instead of a sidewalk or other right of way, we 
immediately reviewed the title history, and confirmed that the City of Troy 
was not, and had never been the owner of the property where the injury 
allegedly occurred.  We then informed Plaintiff’s attorney that a Motion for 
Summary Disposition would be filed, and costs and attorney fees sought, 
unless Plaintiff voluntarily dismissed the City from the lawsuit.  The case 
was dismissed on September 21, 2009 by Oakland County Circuit Court 
Judge Lisa Gorcyca.    
 

4. Raquel Chidiac v Edwin Julian and City of Troy – This lawsuit was filed by 
Plaintiff Raquel Chidiac, who suffered injuries after colliding with a Troy 
Police Officer at Big Beaver and John R roads. Plaintiff alleges that on 
October 3, 2009 at around 7:00 p.m. she was traveling eastbound on Big 
Beaver Road when her vehicle was struck by a Troy Police vehicle. She is 
alleging the City is liable pursuant to the motor vehicle exception to 
governmental immunity, and also under the Michigan Owner Liability Act, 
MCL 257.401. She is alleging that she suffered serious and permanent 
injuries, and is seeking damages in excess of $25,000.  We filed an answer 
on December 8, 2009.  

 
F. MISCELLANEOUS CASES 

 

1. Kocenda v City of Troy- David Kocenda has filed a complaint against the City of Troy, 
Chief Craft, Captain Murphy, Captain Mott, Lieutenant Hay, Lieutenant Pappas, and 
Lieutenant Rossman, alleging Defamation and Intentional Infliction of Emotional 
Distress.  Plaintiff, a Troy police officer, claims he was offered a job as a police officer 



 13 

with the City of Palm Beach Gardens, Florida, but the offer was retracted because of 
false information provided by Troy and its officers.  He contends remarks made by 
Troy employees constitute both Defamation and Intentional Infliction of Emotional 
Distress.  He is seeking damages in excess of $25,000.   The lawsuit was filed in 
Oakland County Circuit Court and assigned to Judge Fred Mester.  Troy’s responsive 
pleading is due December 18, 2007.  The City has filed a Motion for Summary 
Disposition, seeking a dismissal of the lawsuit against the City and its officers.  The 
Court will set the date for the hearing on our motion.  The Court granted the Motion 
for Summary Disposition and dismissed the case.  Several months after the 
dismissal of his lawsuit, Kocenda filed an untimely Motion for Reconsideration.  The 
Motion for Reconsideration was denied.  Kocenda has now filed a Claim of Appeal 
with the Michigan Court of Appeals, seeking a reversal of the dismissal and/or the 
denial of the Motion for Reconsideration.  The City filed a Motion to Dismiss the 
Claim of Appeal for lack of jurisdiction on the basis it was untimely. The Court of 
Appeals granted the motion and dismissed the appeal on August 27, 2008.  We then 
filed a motion seeking costs from Kocenda and/or his attorney.  This motion was 
pending as of the end of the quarter.  The Court granted our motion for costs, and 
$100.00 was paid to the City.   Kocenda subsequently filed a Motion for Relief from 
Order in Oakland County Circuit.  In that motion, he alleged there was newly 
discovered evidence and that the original Order Granting Summary Disposition 
should be set aside.  The motion was denied. Kocenda filed a delayed application for 
leave to appeal with the Michigan Court of Appeals.  On May 21, 2009, the Court of 
Appeals granted the delayed application for leave to appeal but limited Kocenda’s 
appeal to whether or not Judge Mester abused his discretion in denying Kocenda’s 
motion to amend his complaint to allege a claim for tortious interference with a 
business relationship.  Plaintiff’s appellate brief covered issues that went beyond the 
Court’s earlier limitations.  The City filed a motion to strike the matters that exceeded 
the Court’s narrow ruling.  This motion was denied by the Court, but the City was 
expressly authorized to address these additional issues in its responsive brief, which 
was timely filed.  The parties are now waiting for the Court to schedule oral 
argument.   

2. Frank Lawrence v City of Troy – Mr. Lawrence is the brother of Thomas Lawrence 
who was issued two civil infraction traffic citations on October 4, 2008 for “no proof of 
insurance” and “failure to change address on driver’s license”.  Frank Lawrence filed 
a FOIA request with Troy Police Department asking for a number of items, including 
but not limited to: all video recordings, radio transmissions, records and the officer’s 
disciplinary file (if any), and the police policy on  issuing “quota’ tickets.  Under 
Michigan Court Rule 2.303 (A)(3) discovery is not permitted in civil infraction actions.  
Additionally, FOIA does not require the release of information which would constitute 
an unwarranted invasion of personal privacy or law enforcement information such a, 
but not limited to, disciplinary files of police officers, personal telephone numbers, and 
operational manuals.  Mr. Lawrence’s FOIA was denied for these reasons.  Instead 
of filing an appeal of the FOIA denial to the City Manager, Mr. Lawrence appealed 
the denial to the Oakland County Circuit Court. Mr. Lawrence filed a Motion for 
Summary Disposition and the City responded. Without requiring oral arguments, 
Judge Steven Andrews denied Mr. Lawrence’s Motion for Summary Disposition in an 



 14 

Opinion and Order dated December 1, 2008. Judge Andrews also granted Summary 
Disposition in the City’s favor.  Mr. Lawrence filed a Claim of Appeal with the 
Michigan Court of Appeals on December 22, 2008.  The Court of Appeals in an 
unpublished opinion partially reversed the trial court, and remanded the matter for 
further proceedings including a determination by the trial court of whether or not 
specific documents are exempt from disclosure.  The parties are waiting for the 
Court to schedule a court date. 

3. Andrew Zurowski v City of Troy.  In this claim and delivery action, the Plaintiff 
is seeking a court order for the return of two rifles that were confiscated when 
the Troy police were dispatched to his home.  Since there was a great concern 
that Mr. Zurowski was a danger to himself and others, the two rifles were 
confiscated. The case was filed in the 52-4 District Court and assigned to 
Judge Drury.  The case was filed on December 7, 2009.  The City has answered 
the complaint and is awaiting a court date for a pretrial or trial. 

4. Sean Steven Seyler v. City of Troy and Troy Police Department.  Mr. Seyler 
filed this Freedom of Information Act case against the City, seeking the police 
report and his lab test results, which were also simultaneously requested as 
criminal discovery within 48 hours of Mr. Seyler’s drunk driving arrest.  The 
City has filed a Motion for Summary Disposition, arguing that the documents 
requested were either already provided as criminal discovery or are otherwise 
exempt from disclosure.  The Court will issue a scheduling order setting the 
date for oral argument.         

G.  CRIMINAL APPEALS  
 

These are cases involving an appeal from a decision of the 52-4 District 
Court in an ordinance prosecution case. 

 
 

1. City of Troy v Hohenstern.  The Defendant in this case is charged with Operating 
While Intoxicated.  He filed a “Motion to Suppress Breath Test Results, Field 
Sobriety Test Results, and Motion to Dismiss Charges and/or Case” in the District 
Court.  After a hearing on June 2, 2009, District Court Judge Bolle denied the 
motion.  The Defendant has filed an application for leave to appeal the decision to 
the Oakland County Circuit Court.  The appeal was assigned to Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Denise Langford Morris.  The City has filed a Motion to 
Dismiss or Deny Application for Leave to Appeal.  A hearing on the motion is 
scheduled for September 30, 2009.  Judge Langford Morris granted the City’s 
Motion and Dismissed the Appeal. 

 
2. City of Troy v Erik Ziegler.  The Defendant in this case is charged with Operating 

While Intoxicated.  He filed a filed a Motion to Suppress and Dismiss, alleging the 
stop of his motor vehicle was improper and was in violation of the Fourth 
Amendment.  An evidentiary hearing was held on August 27, 2009.  At the 
conclusion of the hearing, 52-4 District Court Judge Martone denied Defendant’s 



 15 

motion.  The Defendant has filed an application for leave to appeal the decision to 
the Oakland County Circuit Court.  The appeal was assigned to Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Nanci J. Grant.  A hearing on the application for leave to 
appeal is scheduled for October 14, 2009.  The Defendant’s application for 
leave to appeal was granted and the parties were directed to file briefs.  Oral 
argument on the appeal was held on December 9, 2009.  We are awaiting a 
decision from the Court. 
 

ADMINISTRATIVE PROCEEDINGS 
  

1. In the matter of the Petitions on National Pollution Discharge Elimination 
Systems (NPDES Phase II General Permits).  The City has joined several other 
municipalities in challenging several of the mandates in the NPDES Phase II 
General Permit, which was recently issued by the MDEQ.  The new NPDES 
permit requires some storm water management techniques that exceed the 
federal mandates, and/or are not justified, based on the high cost of the 
mandate, in relation to the nominal environmental benefits. A status conference 
for the parties is set for October 1, 2008.  The municipalities are currently 
exploring the coordination of efforts with other parties.  Community 
representatives are meeting with representatives from the MDEQ to discuss 
possible resolutions of this matter without the necessity of a full blown 
administrative hearing.   The parties are continuing to negotiate with the MDEQ.  
The City of Riverview filed a class action complaint in the Ingham County Circuit 
Court, challenging the permit requirements as unfunded mandates.  The 
petitioners to the NPDES permit administrative proceeding are named as 
participants in the proposed class action lawsuit.  As a result, the class action 
determination may have an impact on the administrative proceeding. The motion 
for class certification is scheduled for October 15, 2009.  Class certification was 
granted.  Hearings regarding the procedure for the new class action are set 
for January 2010.    

 
If you have any questions concerning these cases, please let us know.   



 

 
January 13, 2010 
 
 
TO:     John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM:   Gary Mayer, Chief of Police 
 
SUBJECT:   1st Quarterly Review of Performance and Compliance of 

Towing Contract - A & M Towing 
 
 
A & M Towing was awarded a 3-year contract to tow vehicles for the Troy Police Department and the 
City of Troy Department of Public Works on September 14, 2009.  City Council requested a review 
each quarter of A & M’s performance and contract compliance. 
 
It is in the City’s best interest to protect its citizens and the motoring public when there is a need for 
towing service within the City of Troy due to traffic crashes, breakdowns, or arrests, and to ensure 
that the City’s contractor is complying with the requirements specified in the towing contract.   
 
PSA Weipert of the Operations Division command of Captain Mott has been charged with monitoring 
this contract.  They report that A & M’s staff has been very cooperative and eager to work together 
with the Police Department.  We have had no complaints regarding their services from Police 
Department personnel.  
 
We have received two complaints from vehicle owners.  The first complaint involved a vehicle towed 
from a crash scene, which was not drivable due to the front bumper damage inhibiting drivability.  The 
owner complained that it should not have been towed.  She was advised that her vehicle could not be 
driven safely so it was proper to impound it.  A&M and the PD handled this matter appropriately. 
 
The second complaint involved an A & M driver who was driving aggressively.  Prior to Troy PD’s 
involvement, the complainant contacted A&M and spoke with Mario, one of the owners.  By the time 
PSA Weipert spoke with A & M, the responsible employee had already been reprimanded and 
suspended without pay for two days for his infraction.  A&M handled this matter appropriately. 
 
A & M has fully complied with the contract pricing, and in some cases has charged less than contract 
price - up to $30 less.  There has only been one overcharge of $1.00 on a mileage discrepancy; the 
Police Department calculation and the wrecker’s odometer differed by ½ mile. 
 
The maintenance and oversight of this contract for towing services enhances the livability and safety 
of our community by providing safe, reliable, trustworthy towing services to the citizens of the City of 
Troy and those who travel in and through the City. 
 
 
GGM/ppb  o:\administration\command staff\mayer\council agenda item\2010 1st qtr review am towing cc report.doc 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-02g



campbellld
Text Box
M-03a



campbellld
Text Box
M-03b



campbellld
Text Box
M-03c



campbellld
Text Box
M-03d



campbellld
Text Box
M-03e



\ 

h J 
~ 

lhe (,cG\<~
Us. \)~~i 

to-II , 

campbellld
Text Box
M-03f



~\ \ 




campbellld
Text Box
M-04a



campbellld
Text Box
M-04b



 

 

 
DATE: January 21, 2010 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Mark F. Miller, Acting Assistant City Manager/Economic Development Services 
 R. Brent Savidant, Acting Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  Troy/Birmingham Transit Center Project Update 
 
The Transit Center site is comprised of a 2.7-acre parcel on the east side of the tracks in Troy, and a 
2.5-acre parcel on the west side of the tracks in Birmingham.  The site in Troy is controlled by a 
consent judgment that permits a Transit Center on the site provided it is funded by June, 2010.    
 
The cities of Troy ($1.3 million) and Birmingham ($300,000) have allocated funding for the Transit 
Center.  The project recently received $1.3 million under the Fiscal Year 2010 U.S. House of 
Representatives Transportation, Housing and Urban Development Appropriations Bill.  The cities of 
Troy and Birmingham continue to pursue available grants to assist in funding the project.  The cities 
applied jointly for a $7 million federal TIGER Discretionary Grant to assist in funding the Transit Center.  
Projects selected for TIGER Grant funding will be announced no later than February 17, 2010.  The City 
of Troy applied for $250,000 in federal EECBG funding for LED lighting on the site.  MDOT applied for 
a federal high-speed rail system that included the Troy/Birmingham Transit Center.  The cities 
continue to investigate and pursue grant opportunities.   
 
The Architectural firm of Wendel Duchscherer prepared design plans for the project to 30% 
completion as per contract.  The firm of Hubbell, Roth & Clark took over project design and prepared 
a site plan for the Transit Center project.  The Joint Troy Planning Commission and Birmingham 
Planning Board met a number of times to provide input into site design.  The Transit Center project 
includes a transit center building and SMART bus drop-off area, a barrier-free tunnel and ramp system, 
and AMTRAK platform and canopy, and roadway, sidewalk and parking improvements.  The scope of 
the project assumes the Cities of Troy and Birmingham will be successful in securing the TIGER grant.  
However, the project may need to be phased based on available funding.   
 
There is a meeting scheduled for the Joint Troy Planning Commission and Birmingham Planning Board 
on Wednesday, January 27, 2010 at 6:00 pm.  The meeting will be held at the Birmingham DPS 
Building, 851 S. Eton, Birmingham, MI.  The intent of the meeting is to provide an update on the status of 
the Troy/Birmingham Transit Center, including presentation of an updated site plan. 
 
Prepared by RBS/MFM 
 
G:\Transit Center\CC Memo Transit Center Update 01 25 10.docx 

CCIITTYY  CCOOUUNNCCIILL  RREEPPOORRTT  
 

campbellld
Text Box
M-05



  
  

TO: Mayor and Members of Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 
DATE: January 18, 2010 
SUBJECT: The Michigan Medical Marihuana Act:  A Municipal Lawyer’s 

Perspective Article  
 

 
 

 
 
 Enclosed please find a feature article titled The Michigan Medical Marihuana Act:  A 
Municipal Lawyer’s Perspective, which was authored by Assistant City Attorney Christopher 
J. Forsyth for the January issue of Laches, the Oakland County Bar Association’s monthly 
publication.  In addition to this article, Chris is a featured presenter on this topic for the State 
Bar of Michigan Public Corporation Law Section winter seminar, which is scheduled for 
February 5, 2010.  The Michigan Medical Marijuana Act was passed by the Michigan voters 
on November 4, 2008.   
 
 As always, if you have any questions concerning the above, please let me know.   
   
 
 
 
  

campbellld
Text Box
M-06













  
  

TO: Members of the Troy City Council  
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Christopher J. Forsyth, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: December 30, 2009 
SUBJECT: Molnar v. Troy et. al.  

 
 
The Sixth Circuit Court of Appeals entered an opinion in the City’s favor in the Molnar v. 

City of Troy et. al case on December 29, 2009.   The decision affirms the District Court’s 
dismissal of the case Gerald Molnar v City of Troy et al.  Plaintiff Gerald Molnar filed a lawsuit 
against the City of Troy, Troy Police Officer Janice Pokley, Care House, Care House forensic 
interviewer Amy Allen and Plaintiff’s former spouse Renee Molnar.  The lawsuit was filed in 
Federal District Court – Eastern District of Michigan, and assigned to Judge Gerald Rosen.  
Plaintiff filed this lawsuit based on an investigation of Plaintiff for inappropriately touching an 
eight year old in the City of Troy.  As a result of the investigation, the Oakland County 
Prosecutor charged Plaintiff with Criminal Sexual Conduct in the Second Degree.  Judge Drury 
of the 52-4 District Court conducted the preliminary examination in the matter, and determined 
that there was probable cause for the criminal charges against the Defendant, who was then 
bound over for trial.  The jury for the criminal trial ultimately found Plaintiff not guilty.  He then 
filed this lawsuit against the Defendants.  In his complaint, filed under 42 U.S.C. Section 1983, 
Plaintiff alleged that the various Defendants conspired to violate his constitutionally protected 
parenting rights, right against unlawful seizure, due process rights, and the right to equal 
protection under the law. Plaintiff also alleged a state law intentional infliction of emotional 
distress claim.        
 We initiated an aggressive joint defense of the City and Officer Pokley, and filed a Motion for 
Summary Judgment as our first responsive pleading. We argued that Plaintiff’s claims were barred 
because the claims were previously litigated in his state court criminal proceeding.  We alternatively 
argued that his claims should be dismissed, since he failed to plead a viable claim against the City, 
and that Officer Pokley was entitled to qualified immunity because her investigation of Plaintiff was 
fair, reasonable and supported by probable cause. On August 28, 2008, Judge Rosen stated from 
the bench that he was granting our Motion for Summary Judgment, and dismissing Plaintiff’s 
complaint from the bench.   

Shortly thereafter, Plaintiff appealed Judge Rosen’s decision, asking the United States Court 
of Appeals for the Sixth Circuit to reverse the dismissal of his case.  A three judge panel of the Court 
of Appeals affirmed Judge Rosen’s dismissal holding that his claims were barred because they were 
litigated in the state court criminal proceedings.  Since the minor is identified in the Court of Appeals 
opinion, we have not included it in the agenda packet.   

On January 12, 2009, we received notice that Plaintiff has petitioned the Court to rehear the 
matter en banc. En banc review is an extraordinary request to ask all active Judges for the Sixth 
Circuit to reopen and rehear the appeal, which is rarely granted.  The Court will inform us within the 
next 30 to 60 days whether or not Plaintiff will be granted the right of an en banc review, and we will 
continue to advise Council on the status of the case.  

Please let us know if you have any questions. 

campbellld
Text Box
M-07



  
  

TO: Members of Troy City Council   
FROM: Lori Grigg Bluhm, City Attorney 

Allan T. Motzny, Assistant City Attorney 
DATE: January 14, 2010 
SUBJECT: Papadelis v. City of Troy (Telly’s Nursery)  

 
Enclosed please find the December 15, 2009 opinion issued by the Michigan Court of 

Appeals in the Papadelis v. Troy lawsuit.  This decision affirms the ruling made by Oakland County 
Circuit Court Judge Colleen A. O’Brien after remand of the case.  The opinion is unpublished.    

The initial litigation between the City of Troy and the Papadelis family was commenced in 
May 1991, in an effort to stop the tremendous expansion of Telly’s Nursery in a residentially zoned 
district.  The litigation between the parties has continued since that time because Telly’s Nursery 
continued to expand.  The litigation has involved several courts, including the 52/4 District Court in 
Troy, the Oakland County Circuit Court, the United States District Court for the Eastern District of 
Michigan, the Michigan Court of Appeals, and the Michigan Supreme Court.   

The most recent litigation was initiated by the Papadelis family (hereafter “Plaintiffs”) when 
they sued the City in 2005.  The Plaintiffs sought money damages, alleging the City’s continued 
enforcement action violated their constitutional rights.  They also sought an injunction to prohibit the 
City from pursuing any further enforcement action against them.  Additionally, the Plaintiffs sought a 
declaratory ruling that the buildings constructed on their property were exempt from City ordinances 
under the Michigan Right to Farm Act (RTFA) and the Agricultural Exemption of the State 
Construction Code Act (SCCA). The City filed a counterclaim seeking a court order requiring the 
Plaintiffs to remove the buildings they constructed without permits in violation of the zoning 
ordinance.  Both the Plaintiffs and the City filed motions for summary disposition.  After a hearing, 
Judge O’Brien granted the City’s motion in part and dismissed the Plaintiffs claim for money 
damages and injunctive relief.  However, the Court also granted the Plaintiffs motion in part and 
issued a declaratory ruling that the buildings were exempt from City ordinances under the RTFA and 
the SCCA.  Based on this ruling, the Court also dismissed the City’s counterclaim.  The City and the 
Plaintiffs both appealed that decision to the Michigan Court of Appeals.  The Michigan Court of 
Appeals affirmed Judge O’Brien’s decision in its entirety.  The City then appealed to the Michigan 
Supreme Court, and in June 2007, the Michigan Supreme Court issued its favorable opinion for the 
City, reversing Judge O’Brien’s decision and the Michigan Court of Appeals.  The Michigan 
Supreme Court ruled that the structures on the Papadelis property were not exempt from City 
ordinances and must comply with the applicable ordinances, even if the property is being used as a 
“farm.”  This published Michigan Supreme Court decision is viewed as a success for local control, 
since it affirmed that municipalities can enforce the construction codes and zoning regulations.         

Unfortunately, the Supreme Court decision did not end the litigation between the City and the 
Papadelis family, since the Supreme Court remanded the case to the Oakland County Circuit Court.  
After this remand, Judge Colleen O’Brien held an evidentiary hearing/bench trial.  The only issue in 
this hearing was whether Plaintiffs should be required to remove buildings that they constructed 
without permits and in violation of the zoning ordinance.   The other issue, the alleged violation of 
Plaintiff’s constitutional rights by the City’s enforcement of its ordinances, was completely dismissed.   
The hearing occurred over several days in the late fall/ early winter of 2007/2008.  Judge O’Brien 
ultimately ruled in favor of the Plaintiffs, finding that since there are no explicit regulations for 

campbellld
Text Box
M-08



structures that are used for “agricultural” purposes in Troy’s zoning ordinance, there were no 
“applicable ordinances” governing Plaintiffs’ property.  In so ruling, she determined that the 
residential regulations that apply to all other residential properties in the City were not applicable to 
Plaintiffs’ property.  She also ruled that Plaintiffs did not need to pursue site plan approval, even 
though it is required for almost all other buildings in the City of Troy (there are some explicit 
exemptions under the ordinance which were not applicable).  Judge O’Brien’s rationale was that 
since the Plaintiffs’ buildings violated the provisions of Troy’s ordinances, then they would not 
receive site plan approval.  It was her opinion that Plaintiffs were excused from seeking site plan 
approval, since it would have been an exercise in futility.       

The City unsuccessfully appealed Judge O’Brien’s decision.   First, the Court of Appeals did 
not find an error in Judge O’Brien’s reliance on the testimony of Plaintiffs’ expert witnesses, even 
though these experts were admittedly not familiar with either the use of the property in 2003, when 
Plaintiffs first initiated construction of the buildings in question, or the City’s zoning ordinance that 
was in effect at that time.  The Court of Appeals also affirmed Judge O’Brien’s determination that the 
definitions for “accessory building” and “accessory supplemental building” were not applicable to 
Plaintiffs’ buildings because those definitions only apply to residential buildings and not to 
“agricultural buildings” that are used for commercial purposes.  The Court of Appeals then 
distinguished Troy’s  zoning ordinance definition of “accessory supplemental building,” which 
expressly includes greenhouses, by holding that this provision was intended to regulate only those  
greenhouses that are used for hobby, and not commercial greenhouses.  The Court of Appeals 
opinion does not supply the basis or the law for this distinction.  However, based on this distinction, 
the Court of Appeals upheld Judge O’Brien’s opinion that there are no applicable Troy regulations 
for agricultural buildings that are used for commercial purposes.   

The opinion also affirms Judge O’Brien’s determination that the Plaintiffs did not have to seek 
site plan approval on the basis of futility.  In making this ruling, the Court relied on the notification 
from the City, which advised the Plaintiffs that permits would not be issued, since the proposed size 
of the buildings was in violation of City ordinances.  In so ruling, the Court failed to acknowledge that 
site plan approval is within the discretion of the Planning Commission.    

The Court did not even address the City’s argument that under the zoning ordinance, a 
person who proposed a structure that is prohibited by the ordinances has an opportunity to seek 
variances.  In this case, even though Plaintiffs were advised that their proposed buildings did not 
comply with City ordinances, they built them anyway, without seeking a variance or other approval.   

The City has the option of appealing the Court of Appeals decision by filing an application for 
leave to appeal with the Michigan Supreme Court by January 26, 2010.  Although we feel the Court 
of Appeals decision is erroneous, we do not recommend the filing of an application.  This 
unpublished decision is based on the Court’s interpretation of Troy’s ordinance, and therefore will 
not have statewide impact.  If the City does not appeal, the Plaintiffs will be allowed to continue to 
use all current buildings on their property.  However, zoning ordinance changes could be enacted to 
address any further commercial expansion of Telly’s Nursery upon their residentially zoned property.  

If you have any questions concerning the above, please let us know.              



 
-1- 

S T A T E  O F  M I C H I G A N  
 

C O U R T  O F  A P P E A L S  
 
 
 
GUST PAPADELIS, NIKI PAPADELIS, 
TELLY’S GREENHOUSE & GARDEN 
CENTER, INC., and TELLY’S NURSERY, LLC, 
 
 Plaintiffs/Counter Defendants-

Appellees, 
 

 
 UNPUBLISHED 
 December 15, 2009 

v No. 286136 
Oakland Circuit Court 

CITY OF TROY, MARK STIMAC, and 
MARLENE STRUCKMAN, 
 

LC No. 2005-067029-CZ 

 Defendants/Counter Plaintiffs-
Appellants, 

 
and 
 
MICHIGAN FARM BUREAU, 
 
 Amicus Curiae. 
 

  

 
Before:  Beckering, P.J., and Cavanagh and M. J. Kelly, JJ. 
 
PER CURIAM. 
 
 Defendants appeal by right the denial of their motion for an order directing plaintiffs to 
remove buildings and other structures constructed without permits or approvals and the dismissal 
of their counterclaim in this land use dispute that dates back to the early 1990s.  We affirm.   

 The significant history of this matter has been set forth in previous opinions of the Court 
and will not be repeated at length here.  See City of Troy v Papadelis (On Remand), 226 Mich 
App 90, 95-96; 572 NW2d 246 (1997) (Papadelis II); City of Troy v Papadelis, unpublished 
opinion per curiam of the Court of Appeals, issued May 10, 1996 (Docket No. 172026) 
(Papadelis I), vacated 454 Mich 912 (1997).  In brief, plaintiffs own two adjacent parcels of land 
in Troy, Michigan, which have been referred to as the north and south parcels.  The Papadelises 
reside on the north parcel and have operated a nursery and garden center on the south parcel for 
over 25 years.  Both parcels are zoned “R-1D,” or “single-family residential,” under the city’s 
zoning ordinance.  As such, there has been much litigation over plaintiffs’ use of the parcels.  
Ultimately this Court held that the operation of the nursery business on the south parcel could 
continue as a valid nonconforming use.  Papadelis II, supra at 95-96.  Use of the north parcel for 



 
-2- 

business purposes,1 however, was not a valid nonconforming use because no commercial activity 
occurred on the north parcel before the enactment of the zoning ordinance.  Id. at 96.  Thus, this 
Court remanded the case “for entry of an order enjoining the commercial use of the northern 
parcel.”  Id. at 98.   

 In 2001, plaintiffs sought an agreement with the city that would allow them to develop 
the north parcel so as to accommodate their nursery business.  After plaintiffs attempted to obtain 
a mutually agreeable consent judgment, the city council decided to pursue a court order 
enjoining the commercial use of the north parcel and thereby enforcing this Court’s decision that 
had been issued four years before.  On March 27, 2002, that order was entered.  Plaintiffs were 
required to remove all commercial materials from the north parcel and were directed to use that 
parcel consistent with its R-1D residential zoning.   

 Subsequently, plaintiffs purchased additional property that, combined with the north and 
south parcels, gave them more than five acres of property, thereby meeting the requirements for 
agricultural use under the city’s zoning ordinance.  When the city pursued contempt charges 
against plaintiffs for failing to comply with the court’s order of March 27, 2002, by continuing to 
conduct commercial activity on the north parcel, the trial court held that because of the new size 
of the property, plaintiffs could use the north parcel for agricultural use under the zoning 
ordinance.  Plaintiffs then built two greenhouses on the north parcel.  Eventually they built a pole 
barn and periodically, at least, used cold frames on the north parcel.   

 Defendants issued two citations related to the construction of the greenhouses.  One 
citation was for constructing a greenhouse without approval from the city’s Board of Zoning 
Appeals.  Defendants alleged that plaintiffs were not entitled to an agricultural exemption from 
building permits under the Construction Act because such exemption did not apply when a 
building is used for retail trade.  The second citation was for constructing an “accessory 
supplemental building” over 600 square feet, or more than one-half of the ground floor area of 
the main building on the premises, contrary to § 40.57.04 of the city’s zoning ordinance.   

 After unsuccessfully seeking dismissal of the citations through the City of Troy, plaintiffs 
sued on June 13, 2005.  Their three count complaint included (1) a claim that defendants 
repeatedly harassed plaintiffs by failing to follow prior court rulings, the Right to Farm Act 
(RTFA), MCL 286.471 et seq., the Construction Act, and the city’s zoning ordinance in violation 
of 42 USC 1983, (2) a request for declaratory judgment on the ground that their use was 
protected under the RTFA and exempt from the zoning ordinance and the Construction Act, and 
(3) a request for a permanent injunction, enjoining defendants from interfering with their 
agricultural use of their property.  Defendants filed a counterclaim seeking (1) abatement of a 
nuisance, i.e., the removal of the two greenhouses and any other structures found to be an 
unlawful expansion of plaintiffs’ nonconforming use, and (2) injunctive relief.   

 The parties filed cross-motions for summary disposition.  On February 17, 2006, the 
court granted defendants’ motion as to plaintiffs’ § 1983 claim (Count I) and denied plaintiffs’ 
request for injunctive relief (Count III).  It granted summary disposition for plaintiffs on 
                                                 
1 It appears that plaintiffs used the parcel in part for storage and display of farm products, and the 
parking of customer and employee automobiles.  Papadelis II, supra at 96.   



 
-3- 

defendants’ counterclaim.  The court also granted summary disposition in plaintiffs’ favor with 
regard to their request for a declaratory judgment (Count II), holding that plaintiffs’ use of their 
property was agricultural use that was protected under the RTFA, and was exempt from the 
pertinent section of the zoning ordinance and exempt from the Construction Act, MCL 125.1501 
et seq.  Defendants appealed and plaintiffs cross appealed.   

 This Court affirmed the trial court’s decision to grant summary disposition in plaintiffs’ 
favor with regard to Count II of their complaint seeking declaratory relief.  Papadelis v City of 
Troy, unpublished opinion per curiam of the Court of Appeals, issued September 19, 2006 
(Docket No. 268920) (Papadelis III).  This Court held that (1) plaintiffs’ use of the north parcel 
was protected under the RTFA and could not be found to be a nuisance, (2) the greenhouses on 
the north parcel were exempt from building permit requirements under the Construction Act, 
MCL 125.1510(8), and (3) the city’s zoning ordinances regarding building size and permit 
requirements conflict with the RTFA and thus could not be enforced against plaintiffs with 
regard to the north parcel.  Papadelis III, slip op at 6-8.  This Court also affirmed the trial court’s 
dismissal of plaintiffs’ claim under 42 USC 1983.  Id., slip op at 8.   

 Leave to appeal to our Supreme Court was sought by both parties and, in lieu of granting 
leave, the Supreme Court reversed in part the judgments of the trial court and this Court “to the 
extent that they hold that the Right to Farm Act, MCL 286.471 et seq. (RTFA), and the State 
Construction Code, MCL 125.1502a(f), exempt the plaintiffs from the defendant city’s 
ordinances governing the permitting, size, height, bulk, floor area, construction, and location of 
structures used in the plaintiffs’ greenhouse operations.”  The June 29, 2007, order continued: 

Assuming that the plaintiffs’ acquisition of additional land entitled them under the 
city’s zoning ordinances to make agricultural use of the north parcel (a point on 
which we express no opinion, in light of the defendant city’s failure to exhaust all 
available avenues of appeal from that ruling after the remand to the Oakland 
Circuit Court in the prior action, see City of Troy v Papadelis (On Remand), 226 
Mich App 90; 572 NW2d 246 (1997)), the plaintiffs’ structures remain subject to 
applicable building permit, size, height, bulk, floor area, construction, and 
location requirements, under the defendant city’s ordinances.  The plaintiffs’ 
greenhouses and pole barn are not “incidental to the use for agricultural purposes 
of the land” on which they are located within the meaning of MCL 125.1502a(f).  
As no provisions of the RTFA or any published generally accepted agricultural 
and management practice address the permitting, size, height, bulk, floor area, 
construction, and location of buildings used for greenhouse or related agricultural 
purposes, no conflict exists between the RTFA and the defendant city’s 
ordinances regulating such matters that would preclude their enforcement under 
the facts of this case.  We REMAND this case to the Oakland Circuit Court for 
further proceedings not inconsistent with this order.  In all other respects, the 
applications are DENIED, because we are not persuaded that the remaining 
questions presented should be reviewed by this Court.  [Papadelis v City of Troy, 
478 Mich 934; 733 NW2d 397 (2007) (Papadelis IV).] 

 On July 11, 2007, defendants filed in the trial court their “motion for order directing 
plaintiffs to remove buildings and structures constructed without permits or other approvals as 
required by ordinance.”  Defendants sought the removal of “two large greenhouses, the pole 



 
-4- 

barn, the several cold frame structures, and every other structure constructed on said property 
without permit and/or in violation of Troy ordinances.”  Defendants first argued that all of the 
structures were built without permits or other approvals required under § 40.55.00(C) of the 
zoning ordinance.  Second, the two greenhouses—sized at 2,250 and 1,800 square feet—and 
cold frames violated former § 40.57.04 that limited the size of accessory buildings on one 
residentially zoned parcel to 600 square feet, or one half the ground floor area of the main 
building on the property.  Third, under § 04.20.03(D), a greenhouse falls within the definition of 
a supplemental accessory building and, under § 40.56.03, the total area of a residential parcel 
that may be occupied by supplemental accessory buildings is only 200 square feet—another 
violation.  Fourth, the pole barn violated several sections, including §§ 40.56.02(E) [height], 
40.56.00(B) [occupies more than 25 percent of yard], 40.56.02(C) [excess ground floor area], 
40.56.02(D) [too close to main building], and 30.10.05 [covers more than 30 percent of lot].  
And fifth, at the time plaintiffs constructed their greenhouses and cold frames, § 40.57.10 
required approval from the Board of Zoning Appeals to construct accessory buildings and no 
approval was sought or received.  Pursuant to the former City and Village Zoning Act in effect at 
the time this lawsuit was filed (MCL 125.587) and the current provisions of the Michigan Zoning 
Enabling Act (MCL 125.3407), the use of any structure or building erected in violation of a 
zoning ordinance was a nuisance per se.  Thus, defendants argued, abatement by the court was 
required and they were entitled to such an order.   

 On July 24, 2007, plaintiffs filed their response in opposition to defendants’ motion for 
an order to compel removal of structures.  Plaintiffs argued that the ordinances defendants cited 
were not applicable to their greenhouses or agricultural structures.  Their structures were for 
commercial agricultural uses and were necessary to the greenhouse/floricultural industry.  
Plaintiffs’ uses of their property were both residential and commercial and neither use was 
subordinate to the other—they were complementary.  Therefore, the greenhouses and other 
agricultural structures were not “accessory” because they were not “supplemental and 
subordinate to the main use and used for purposes clearly incidental to those of the main use.”  
Further, under § 04.20.03(D), a “greenhouse” is one of a group of accessory supplemental 
buildings “for recreation or pleasure,” which was not applicable to plaintiffs’ commercial 
agricultural use.  Therefore, plaintiffs argued, they were not subject to the height, bulk, and size 
requirements of “greenhouses” or “accessory buildings” as those structures were defined by 
defendants.  Plaintiffs requested an evidentiary hearing to develop the record in this matter.   

 After a four-day evidentiary hearing, the trial court (1) denied defendants’ motion, 
holding that plaintiffs’ greenhouses, cold frames, and pole barn do not violate any applicable 
ordinance, (2) dismissed defendants’ counterclaim, and (3) granted judgment in plaintiffs’ favor.  
Defendants’ motion for reconsideration was denied and this appeal followed.  Subsequently, this 
Court entered an order granting a motion to file an amicus curiae brief on behalf of Michigan 
Farm Bureau.  Papadelis v City of Troy, unpublished order of the Court of Appeals, entered 
March 4, 2009 (Docket No. 286136).   

 On appeal, defendants first argue that the trial court failed to properly construe the 
provisions of the zoning ordinance which led to the erroneous conclusion that they were not 
applicable to plaintiffs’ greenhouses, cold frames, and pole barn.  We disagree.   

 A lower court’s interpretation of the meaning of an ordinance is reviewed de novo.  
Ballman v Borges, 226 Mich App 166, 167; 572 NW2d 47 (1997).  The rules of statutory 



 
-5- 

construction apply to the interpretation of an ordinance.  Goldstone v Bloomfield Twp Pub 
Library, 479 Mich 554, 568 n 15; 737 NW2d 476 (2007).  The primary goal of such 
interpretation is to give effect to the intent of the legislative body.  Ballman, supra.  The specific 
language used in the ordinance is the first criterion in determining intent.  Id. at 168.  If the plain 
and ordinary language is clear, judicial construction is normally neither necessary nor permitted.  
Id.   

 It is undisputed that plaintiffs’ north parcel is zoned R-1D, which is single-family 
residential.  It may, therefore, be used for the purposes described in §§ 10.00.00 through 
10.20.08 of Troy’s zoning ordinance.  Section 10.20.00 describes the “principal uses permitted” 
and provides that “no building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected except for 
one or more of the following specified uses, unless otherwise provided in this Chapter.”  Those 
specified uses are set forth in sections.  Section 10.20.01 provides for one-family dwellings, 
§ 10.20.02 provides for “agriculture,” § 10.20.03 provides for publicly owned and operated 
libraries, parks, parkways, and recreational facilities, § 10.20.04 provides for cemeteries, 
§ 10.20.06 provides for “accessory buildings,” and so forth.  Thus, “agriculture” is specified as a 
permitted principal use of property zoned R-1D.   

 Next we turn to the definition of “agriculture.”  Article IV sets forth the definition of 
“agriculture” as “[f]arms and general farming, including horticulture, floriculture, dairying, 
livestock, and poultry raising, farm forestry, and other similar enterprises, or uses . . . .”  See 
§ 04.20.05.  In this case, defendants do not contest that the floriculture and horticulture that are 
occurring on plaintiffs’ property are “agriculture” and thus constitute a permitted principal use of 
plaintiffs’ property.  Rather, defendants seem to claim that, although the use is permitted, the two 
greenhouses, pole barn, and cold frames are not permitted because they are in violation of other 
provisions of the zoning ordinance.  In particular, defendants claim that they are all “accessory 
buildings” or “accessory supplemental buildings” under the ordinance and thus subject to certain 
regulations.   

 Turning back to Article IV, an “accessory building” is defined at § 04.20.01 as follows: 

A building, or portion thereof, which is supplemental or subordinate to the main 
building or to the use of the land and is devoted exclusively to an accessory use.  
The various types of accessory buildings shall be further defined as follows: 

A.  Barn: A building specifically or partially used for the storage of farm animals 
such as, but not limited to:  horses, cattle, sheep, goats, and fowl, other than a dog 
house. 

B.  Garage:  A building, or portion of the main building, of not less than one 
hundred eight [sic] (180) square feet designed and intended to be used for the 
periodic parking or storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard 
maintenance equipment or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to boats, 
trailers, all terrain vehicles and snowmobiles. 

C.  Storage Building/Shed:  A building designed and intended to be used for the 
storage of tools, garden tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small recreation 
vehicles such as, but not limited to, snowmobiles, ATV’s, and motor scooters. 



 
-6- 

Defendants argue that the two greenhouses, pole barn, and cold frames meet this definition 
because the main use of the property is residential so the buildings are subordinate to that use.  In 
the alternative, defendants argue, if the main use is agriculture, these structures support the 
agricultural use and are subordinate to that use.  We disagree with both claims.   

 First, at the evidentiary hearing, defendants’ only witness, Mark Stimac, the Director of 
Building and Zoning, testified that he, in fact, did not know what the principal use of the north 
parcel of plaintiffs’ property was, but the principal uses could be both agriculture and residential 
without either being subordinate to the other use.  Stimac did not know if the residence on the 
north parcel was the main use of the property.  Further, Stimac testified that “[t]he greenhouses 
in building area certainly exceed by almost ten-fold the size of the residential single family house 
that’s on the property.”  Plaintiffs’ witness, Leslie Meyers, testified that over 75 percent of the 
north parcel was used for floriculture and agricultural activities and were not accessory to 
residential use.  Thus we reject defendants’ unsubstantiated claim that the main use of the 
property is residential and that “the buildings are subordinate to the main residential building.”   

 We also reject defendants’ alternative argument that, even if the main use is agriculture, 
the two greenhouses, pole barn, and cold frames meet the definition of “accessory building” as 
defined in § 04.20.01.  The second sentence of the definition, set forth above, provides:  “The 
various types of accessory buildings shall be further defined as follows” and then specifically 
lists barns, garages, and storage buildings/sheds, with definitions for each.  We note that under 
§ 04.10.01, “the word ‘shall’ is mandatory and not directory.”  Further, it is well established that, 
like statutes, if the ordinance defines a term, that definition controls.  See Haynes v Neshewat, 
477 Mich 29, 35; 729 NW2d 488 (2007).  Thus, if the greenhouses, pole barn, and cold frames 
are not a barn, a garage, or a storage building/shed as defined by the ordinance, they are not 
“accessory buildings” under the ordinance.   

 Section 04.20.01(A) defines a “barn” for purposes of the ordinance as a building for the 
storage of farm animals.  Plaintiffs did not store farm animals in any of the contested structures; 
therefore, none of their buildings could be considered a “barn.”  Section 04.20.01(B) defines a 
“garage” for purposes of the ordinance as a building “designed and intended to be used for the 
periodic parking or storage of one or more private motor vehicles, yard maintenance equipment 
or recreational vehicles such as, but not limited to boats, trailers, all terrain vehicles and 
snowmobiles.”  Plaintiffs did not store private vehicles, yard maintenance equipment or 
recreational vehicles in any of the contested structures; therefore, none of their buildings could 
be considered a “garage.”  Section 04.20.01(C) defines a “storage building/shed” for purposes of 
the ordinance as a building “designed and intended to be used for the storage of tools, garden 
tractors, lawn mowers, motorcycles, small recreation vehicles such as, but not limited to, 
snowmobiles, ATV’s, and motor scooters.”  There is no record evidence that plaintiffs used any 
of the contested buildings as a “storage building/shed,” i.e., to store tools, garden tractors, lawn 
mowers, motorcycles, or small recreation vehicles.  Accordingly, contrary to defendants’ claims, 
the two greenhouses, pole barn, and cold frames do not meet the definition of “accessory 
building” as set forth in § 04.20.01.  Therefore, they are not accessory buildings within the plain 
meaning and defined terms of the ordinance.   

 Next we consider whether the greenhouses and cold frames are accessory supplemental 
buildings as defendants claim.  We again turn to Article IV, and find that an “accessory 
supplemental building” is defined at § 04.20.03 as follows: 



 
-7- 

An accessory building used by the occupants of the principal building for 
recreation or pleasure, such as a gazebo, a swimming pool cabana, a building 
housing a spa or greenhouse.  The various types of accessory supplemental 
buildings shall be further defined as follows: 

*  *  * 

D. Greenhouse: A detached building that is used for non-commercial purposes, 
constructed of permanent or temporary framing that is set directly on the ground 
and is covered with glass panels or plastic or other transparent material, and is 
used to grow plants. 

Clearly, this definition contemplates a residential use as the main use of the property by its 
reference to a “building used by the occupants of the principal building for recreation or pleasure 
. . . .”  And there is no evidence that plaintiffs’ greenhouses and cold frames were used “for 
recreation or pleasure.”   

 In fact, the evidence of record indicates that the greenhouses and cold frames were used 
in conjunction with plaintiffs’ horticulture and floriculture commercial business that is located on 
the south parcel.  Again, the ordinance sets forth a mandatory and limited definition of the 
various types of accessory supplemental buildings and it includes the definition of a 
“greenhouse” as a detached building that “is used for non-commercial purposes.”  Defendant 
Stimac testified at the evidentiary hearing that agricultural operations in residentially zoned 
districts can sell their products, but not by retail sale operations occurring on the property.  That 
is, commercial operations can occur on the property without violating an ordinance.  
Accordingly, plaintiffs’ greenhouses and cold frames do not meet the definition of “accessory 
supplemental building” as defined in § 04.20.03 and, thus, are not accessory supplemental 
buildings within the plain meaning and defined terms of the ordinance.   

 Nevertheless, defendants argue that the trial court’s conclusion that the greenhouses, cold 
frames, and pole barn are neither “accessory buildings” nor “accessory supplemental buildings,” 
was erroneous.  Defendants contend that even if these are “agricultural buildings,” as the trial 
court held, they still must comply with the regulations for structures on residentially zoned 
properties.  In other words, plaintiffs were allowed to either build a “one-family dwelling,” 
pursuant to §10.20.01 or an “accessory building” pursuant to § 10.20.06.  We disagree.   

 Sections 10.20.00 through 10.20.08 list the principal uses permitted and, although one-
family dwellings and accessory buildings are included in that list, so is “agriculture” under 
§ 10.20.02.  In other words, § 10.20.00 describes the “principal uses permitted” and provides that 
“no building or land shall be used and no building shall be erected except for one or more of the 
following specified uses . . . agriculture.”  As discussed above, plaintiffs’ buildings were not 
“accessory buildings.”  For clarity purposes, the trial court appears to have termed plaintiffs’ 
buildings “agricultural buildings.”  We will do the same.   

 Defendants argue that these agricultural buildings had to comply with the same 
regulations that would apply if the principal use of this property had been a one-family dwelling.  
But there is no indication in the ordinance of such requirement.  An ordinance must give a person 
of ordinary intelligence a reasonable opportunity to know what is prohibited or required.  See 



 
-8- 

English v Blue Cross Blue Shield of Michigan, 263 Mich App 449, 469; 688 NW2d 523 (2004).  
In fact, as the trial court noted, there are significant indications to the contrary.  The definition of 
“agriculture” is “general farming, including horticulture, floriculture, dairying, livestock, and 
poultry raising, farm forestry, and other similar enterprises, or uses . . . .”  § 04.20.05.  This 
definition implies that such agricultural use would occur in buildings.  Stimac testified that, 
according to his interpretation of the ordinance, a 100 acre farm, being used for agricultural 
purposes, that also has a 1,000 square foot home could only have 600 square feet of barns, silos, 
and other agricultural buildings.  But, again, the ordinance does not set forth such a requirement 
with regard to agricultural buildings.   

 Next, defendants argue that allowing plaintiffs to maintain the contested agricultural 
buildings violates the intent of the ordinance which is to “provide for environmentally sound 
areas of predominantly low density single family detached dwellings.”  We disagree.  The 
intention of providing low-density, single-family dwellings actually appears to be furthered by 
plaintiffs’ agricultural use of their property.  Preserving agricultural uses compatible with limited 
residential development, protecting the decreasing supply of agricultural land by allowing only 
limited residential development and/or maintaining some rural character to the community 
arguably provides “for environmentally sound areas of predominately low density single family 
detached dwellings.”  In any case, this argument is without merit.   

 Defendants also argue that the trial court’s interpretation and conclusion that defendants’ 
ordinance contains no provisions that relate to agricultural buildings “defies common sense” and 
leads to an absurdity.  We disagree.  The wisdom of an ordinance, like a statute, is for the 
determination of the legislative body and must be enforced as written.  See City of Lansing v 
Lansing Twp, 356 Mich 641, 648; 97 NW2d 804 (1959).  Agriculture is a principal use 
permitted, as are one-family dwellings, accessory buildings, and others.  That defendants’ 
ordinance provides detailed and specific regulations with respect to some principal uses and does 
not include agriculture within the ambit of those regulations is the prerogative of the legislative 
body and we may not second-guess such wisdom.  Further, plaintiffs’ expert witness, Leslie 
Meyers, testified that as a zoning administrator in every municipality she has worked where there 
has been farming, agricultural buildings have been exempt from such regulation.   

 Defendants also claim that the trial court’s decision must be reversed because it “failed to 
accord great weight to how the ordinance has been applied by the officer or agency charged with 
its administration.”  We disagree.  Stimac testified that plaintiffs’ two greenhouses, pole barn, 
and cold frames were “accessory structures” but, clearly, they did not meet the definition 
provided by defendants’ own ordinance.  Stimac testified that the greenhouses and cold frames 
were “accessory supplemental buildings” but they clearly did not meet the definitional 
requirements of a “greenhouse.”  Stimac also testified that he did not know what the principal 
use of the north parcel was but that such a determination would be necessary in deciding whether 
a use complied with the zoning ordinance provisions.  Stimac did not know the difference 
between a “hobby greenhouse” and a “commercial greenhouse.”  Stimac did not know that to 
operate a floriculture or horticulture operation in Michigan, flowers would have to be grown in 
greenhouses and cold frames.  Stimac did not take into consideration what might be normal for 
an agricultural operation that is a permitted use when he is determining whether a building is in 
compliance with a zoning ordinance.  Although the trial court made findings that were contrary 
to or inconsistent with Stimac’s testimony, defendants have failed to show that such findings 



 
-9- 

were erroneous.  The trial court was permitted to draw its own conclusions from all of the 
available evidence and to make credibility determinations.   

 In summary, defendants’ arguments in support of their claim that the trial court failed to 
properly construe certain provisions of the zoning ordinance leading to an erroneous conclusion 
that they were not applicable to plaintiffs’ greenhouses, cold frames, and pole barn are all 
without merit.  The trial court’s decision on the matter is affirmed.   

 Next, defendants argue that the trial court abused its discretion and violated the 
constitutionally mandated separation of powers in determining that Troy’s zoning ordinance 
requiring site plan approval was not applicable to the buildings constructed by plaintiffs.  
However, that was not entirely the trial court’s ruling.  Rather, the trial court held that, plaintiffs 
did attempt to comply with the ordinance by seeking permits and site plan approvals, but Stimac 
refused to review those requests on the ground that the proposed buildings violated the zoning 
ordinance.  Stimac testified that plaintiffs’ site plans were not reviewed because the structures 
violated the ordinance with regards to the allowable size of accessory buildings.  Stimac also 
testified that if plaintiffs had requested permits for the structures on the north parcel, they all 
would have been denied, presumably also on the grounds that they were “accessory buildings” or 
“accessory supplemental buildings.”  Accordingly, the trial court’s conclusion that, “[p]laintiffs’ 
attempts to obtain a building permit or site plan approval were futile,” was supported by the 
record evidence.  Thus, this issue is without merit.   

 Next, defendants argue that the trial court abused its discretion in allowing the testimony 
of plaintiffs’ expert witnesses.  We disagree.  The admissibility of expert testimony is reviewed 
for an abuse of discretion.  Woodard v Custer, 476 Mich 545, 557; 719 NW2d 842 (2006).  An 
abuse of discretion occurs when the trial court’s decision is outside the principled range of 
outcomes.  Id.   

 First, as they did in the trial court, defendants argue that Donald Juchartz should not have 
been allowed to testify as an expert witness because his expertise in horticulture would not assist 
the trial court to determine a fact in issue, i.e., whether plaintiffs’ buildings violated ordinance 
provisions, as required under MRE 702.  Plaintiffs responded, as they do here, that the testimony 
was relevant to the issue of what is involved with an agricultural use, which was a principal use 
permitted by defendants’ ordinance.  We agree.   

 “Agriculture” is specified in defendants’ ordinance as a permitted principal use of 
property zoned R-1D.  Horticulture and floriculture are included within the definition of 
“agriculture” provided in § 04.20.05 and plaintiffs were engaged in these activities on the north 
parcel.  MRE 702 provides for the admission of specialized knowledge if the court determines 
that it would be of assistance “to understand the evidence or to determine a fact in issue . . . .”  
That the trial court found this standard was met with respect to the admission of Juchartz’s 
testimony does not constitute an abuse of discretion.  Testimony relating to the normal incidents 
and practicalities of an agricultural use clearly could be helpful to the trial court in this case.   

 Second, defendants argue that the trial court abused its discretion in allowing the 
testimony of Leslie Meyers because she was not on plaintiffs’ witness list and her testimony did 
not meet the requirements of MRE 702.  We disagree.  Although Leslie Meyers was not 
specifically listed on plaintiffs’ witness list that was tendered about two years before this 



 
-10- 

hearing, the witness list did include “all necessary rebuttal expert witnesses” and Meyers was 
offered as a rebuttal witness to Stimac’s testimony.  Apparently, before this hearing on 
defendants’ motion for an order directing plaintiffs to remove the contested structures was 
conducted, plaintiffs requested that additional discovery occur and defendants objected.  Under 
MCR 2.401(I)(2), the trial court likely could have prohibited the testimony, but in light of the 
circumstances apparently declined to do so.  This decision does not constitute an abuse of 
discretion.   

 Further, the trial court did not abuse its discretion when it admitted Meyers’ testimony.  
She was offered as an expert in planning and zoning matters.  Defendants objected to her 
testimony on the grounds that she was not an expert in Troy’s zoning ordinance, particularly 
since she had just recently reviewed the ordinance online; therefore, Meyers could not be a 
benefit in assisting the court on the issue whether the buildings in question comply with the 
ordinance.  Plaintiffs responded that Meyers had a long history and expertise in zoning matters 
and planning.  Stimac testified as to his understanding of the ordinance provisions and Meyers 
was offered to give the court another perspective as to the interpretation and applicability of 
those provisions.  The court permitted the testimony.   

 Again, MRE 702 provides for the admission of specialized knowledge if the court 
determines that it would be of assistance “to understand the evidence or to determine a fact in 
issue . . . .”  In light of Stimac’s testimony, it appears that the testimony of Meyers would be of 
significant assistance to the court.  For example, Stimac testified that he did not know the 
primary or principal use of the north parcel, although that information would be required to 
determine whether the use complied with ordinance provisions.  Stimac also testified that all 
agricultural structures, on an area not less than five acres in size, had to meet the same 
requirements applicable to single-family residences that were on 8,500 square foot lots.  
Testimony that might provide additional details with regard to plaintiffs’ specific use of the 
property, including their agricultural use, how that lawful use is impacted by the application of 
various ordinance provisions, as well as her interpretation of the provisions clearly could be 
helpful to the court in this case.  Thus, the trial court did not abuse its discretion in admitting the 
testimony.   

 Finally, defendants argue that the trial court’s ruling conflicts with our Supreme Court’s 
order that held that plaintiffs’ structures remained subject to the applicable building permit, size, 
height, bulk, floor area, construction, and location standards under defendants’ ordinances.  We 
disagree.   

 The Supreme Court’s order, as quoted above, indicates that “the plaintiffs’ structures 
remain subject to applicable building permit, size, height, bulk, floor area, construction, and 
location requirements, under the defendant city’s ordinances.”  Papadelis IV, supra.  We 
disagree with defendants’ claim that the Supreme Court directed the trial court to apply the 
zoning ordinance provisions discussed above, including those applicable to “accessory 
buildings” and “accessory supplemental buildings.”  The issue whether these or any of 
defendants’ ordinances apply to plaintiffs’ greenhouses, pole barn, and cold frames was never 
reached or decided.  While a lower court, on remand, has a duty to comply strictly with the 
mandate of an appellate court, we discern no such mandate in the order.  See Schumacher v 
Dep’t of Natural Resources, 275 Mich App 121, 128; 737 NW2d 782 (2007).  Accordingly, the 



 
-11- 

trial court’s decision, that the particular structures do not violate any applicable zoning 
ordinance, does not conflict with our Supreme Court’s order.   

 Affirmed.  Plaintiffs are entitled to tax costs under MCR 7.219(A). 

/s/ Jane M. Beckering 
/s/ Mark J. Cavanagh 
/s/ Michael J. Kelly 
 



 

Richard K. Carlisle, President      R. Donald Wortman, Vice President       Douglas J. Lewan, Principal      John L. Enos, Principal 
Jennifer L. Coe, Associate    Sally M. Elmiger, Associate    David J. Scurto, Associate    Brian M. Oppmann, Associate    Zachary Branigan, Associate 

MEMORANDUM 
 
TO: John Szerlag, City Manager 
 
FROM: Richard K. Carlisle 

DATE: January 18, 2010 
 
RE: Privatization Progress Report 
 
 
I previously spoke to Council about the approach we would take to evaluate the potential for 
privatizing some City service functions.  Since mid-November, we have been working with city 
management, department heads, and the ad hoc privatization committee appointed by you.  Our 
work is yielding results, and I would like to report our progress. 
 
Background and Process 
 
Responding to the City’s most severe budget crisis in its history, City Management has directed 
an evaluation of every City service and function to determine the feasibility of privatization.  The 
evaluation was done in the context of the large challenge by City Management to explore various 
options and opportunities for privatization, consolidation, and regionalization. 
 
Department heads were interviewed to determine the following: 
 
1. Identify those functions which it is possible to privatize. 
 
2. Identify those functions which should remain in-house and why. 
 
3. Document functions which have already been outsourced, even to other public entities or 

to the private sector. 
 
Among our general observations of City operations is that a number of Departments, DPW and 
Engineering for example, have outsourced work to private contractors for years.  The Planning 
Department made a rapid transformation to privatization over the past year.  Finally, almost all 
departments have downsized and sought efficiencies in their operations. 
 
Current Results 
 
Most of the current effort has focused on “on demand” services, which are services most affected 
by the economic downtown.  The objective we are seeking is to achieve a 40% savings through 
outsourcing.  As such, there has been a number of positive steps taken towards privatization with 
the following results: 
 

campbellld
Text Box
N-01



- 2 - 

1. Golf Course Operations – Council members are likely aware that the City has received 
proposals from private firms to manage both golf courses.  Those proposals are being 
advanced to the second step with interviews. 

 
2. Building Inspections / Plan Review – A request for statement of qualifications (SOQ) 

has been released by the City, and is due early February.  The SOQ seeks qualified 
contractors to provide full service building inspection and building plan review services. 

 
3. Code Enforcement – A SOQ has been prepared, and will be distributed before the end of 

the month.  The SOQ seeks qualified contractors to enforce zoning and other City 
nuisance codes. 

 
4. Board Minutes – The privatization committee has studied options for minute-taking to 

be outsourced for various boards and commissions. 
 
The committee continues the investigation of outsourcing portions of the following departments: 
 

− Assessing 
− Parks and Recreation 
− Engineering 
− Public Works 
− Finance 
− IT 

 
In the course of our investigation, the consolidation of a number of functions has been identified.  
For example, maintenance currently being performed by Parks and Recreation can be 
consolidated with the Department of Public Works.  Such consolidation opens additional 
opportunities to combine contracts with current vendors or expand opportunities for new 
vendors. 
 
City management is committed to allowing City staff to compete with private contractors.  Once 
proposals are received from outside sources, City staff will be permitted to compete.  The 
committee is also developing a protocol and procedures for City staff to submit competitive bid 
proposals. 
 
I look forward to presenting these results to Council. 
 
 
CARLISLE/WORTMAN ASSOC., INC. 

 
 
 #225-10-2901 


	AGENDA: January 25, 2010
	COVER MEMO
	PUBLIC COMMENT
	AGENDA: Return to 1st Page
	EXPLANATION BOOKLET:  Return to 1st Page
	CERTIFICATES OF RECOGNITION:
	C-1 Presentations:
	On behalf of the City of Troy Employees’ Casual for a Cause Program (November/December), Community Affairs Director Cindy Stewart will present a check in the amount of $1,130.05 to Honor Flight Michigan Inc.


	CARRYOVER ITEMS:
	D-1 No Carryover Items

	PUBLIC HEARINGS:
	E-1 No Public Hearings

	PUBLIC COMMENT:
	POSTPONED ITEMS:
	G-1 No Postponed Items

	REGULAR BUSINESS:
	H-1 Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Appointments: None Scheduled
	City Council Appointments: Building Code Board of Appeals

	H-2 Nominations for Appointments to Boards and Committees:
	Mayoral Nominations: None Scheduled
	City Council Nominations: Board of Zoning Appeals and Building Code Board of Appeals

	H-3 General Obligation Unlimited Tax Refunding Bonds
	H-4 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest Site Condominium, South Side of Square Lake Road, between Willow Grove and John R Road, Section 11 – R-1C
	H-5 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Oak Forest South Site Condominium, East Side of Willow Grove, South of Square Lake Road, Section 11 – R-1C
	H-6 Preliminary Site Condominium Approval (Extension) – Adams Road Site Condominium, East Side of Adams, South of South Boulevard, Section 6 – R-1A

	CONSENT AGENDA:
	I-1a Approval of “I” Items NOT Removed for Discussion
	I-1b  Address of “I” Items Removed for Discussion by City Council
	I-2  Approval of City Council Minutes
	I-3 Proposed City of Troy Proclamations:
	School Board Recognition Month – January 2010

	I-4 Standard Purchasing Resolutions:
	a) Standard Purchasing Resolution 2:  Bid Award – Lowest Acceptable Bidders – Custodial Supplies
	b) Standard Purchasing Resolution 1:  Award to Low Bidder – Snow Removal Services – Fire Stations and Training Center
	c) Standard Purchasing Resolution 3:  Exercise Renewal Option – MITN Cooperative Gasoline and Diesel Fuel

	I-5 Request for Approval of Relocation Claim – John R Road Improvement Project, Square Lake to South Boulevard – Project No. 02.204.5 – Parcel 43 – Sidwell #88-20-02-279-002 – Munchiando
	I-6 William and Elaine Middlekauff v. City of Troy
	I-7 Renewal of Membership in the Traffic Improvement Association (TIA) of Oakland County

	MEMORANDUMS AND FUTURE COUNCIL AGENDA ITEMS:
	J-1 Announcement of Public Hearings:  None Submitted
	J-2 Memorandums (Items submitted to City Council that may require consideration at some future point in time): None Submitted

	COUNCIL REFERRALS:
	K-1   No Council Referrals Advanced

	COUNCIL COMMENTS
	L-1   No Council Comments Advanced

	REPORTS
	M-1 Minutes – Boards and Committees:
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Final – October 1, 2009
	Retiree Health Care Benefits Plan and Trust/Final – October 14, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Final – December 2, 2009
	Planning Commission/Draft – December 8, 2009
	Planning Commission/Final – December 8, 2009
	Employees’ Retirement System Board of Trustees/Final – December 9, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Draft – December 15, 2009
	Planning Commission Special/Study/Final – December 15, 2009
	Election Commission/Final – December 17, 2009
	Building Code Board of Appeals/Draft – January 6, 2010
	Advisory Committee for Senior Citizens/Draft – January 7, 2010
	Liquor Advisory Committee/Draft – January 11, 2010
	Election Commission/Draft – January 14, 2010

	M-2 Department Reports:
	Building Department – Permits Issued December 2009
	Building Department – Permits Issued July 2009 through December 2009
	Building Department – Permits Issued January 2009 through December 2009
	Police Department – Liquor License Compliance Checks
	City Manager’s Office – December 31, 2009 Quarterly Financial Report
	City Attorney’s Office – 2009 Fourth Quarter Litigation Report
	Police Department – 1st Quarterly Review of Performance and Compliance of Towing Contract – A & M Towing

	M-3  Letters of Appreciation:
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Phil and Myra Jones Regarding the Courtesy and Thoughtfulness of Officers Linton and Stansbury
	Letter of Thanks to Chief Mayer from Troy Sports Center President Dennis Bostick Regarding the Hard Work and Dedication of Officers Morgan and Malik
	Letter of Thanks to Rick Shepler from George Renaud Regarding Professionalism and Assistance of Andy Willetts and Troy Water Department
	Letter of Thanks to Troy Fire Department from the Sakalian Family
	Letter of Appreciation from Dominick Tringali Architects Regarding the Professionalism of Building, Planning and Fire Departments
	Letter of Thanks to Community Center Counselors Kelly Molinar, Lauren Johnson and Preston Alman from Winter Break Aqua Camp Attendees

	M-4  Proposed Proclamations/Resolutions from Other Organizations:
	Village of Beverly Hills Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325
	Royal Oak City Commission Resolution in Support of House Bill 5325

	M-5  Communication from Acting Planning Director Brent Savidant Regarding Troy/Birmingham Transit Center Project Update
	M-6  Communication from City Attorney Lori Grigg Bluhm Regarding The Michigan Medical Marihuana Act:  A Municipal Lawyer’s Perspective Article Authored by Assistant City Attorney Christopher Forsyth
	M-7  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Molnar v. City of Troy et. al.
	M-8  Communication from City Attorney’s Office Regarding Papadelis v. City of Troy (Telly’s Nursery)

	STUDY ITEMS
	N-1  City Manager John Szerlag Requests an Update on Organizational Restructuring from Consultant Richard Carlisle of Carlisle-Wortman Associates

	CLOSED SESSION:
	O-1 Closed Session

	ADJOURNMENT



